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PUBLIC ENTITY’S
GENERAL
INFORMATION
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REGISTRATION NUMBER:		 1989/001413/08
OFFICE ADDRESS: 			
66 Margaret Mcingana Street
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						2113
POSTAL ADDRESS: 			
					
					

PO Box 500
Newtown
2113

TELEPHONE NUMBER: 			
087 7000 683 / (011) 838 1383
FAX NUMBER: 				(011) 838 6363
EMAIL ADDRESS: 				info@nac.org.za
WEBSITE ADDRESS: 			
www.nac.org.za
EXTERNAL AUDITORS: 			
The Auditor-General of South Africa
						61 Central Street
						Johannesburg
BANKERS:		
			
ABSA Bank
						15 Alice Lane
						Sandton
						2196
COMPANY SECRETARY: 			Fluidrock Governance
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FOREWORD
BY THE
CHAIRPERSON

Mr. Hartley Ngoato

WE MUST REGAIN
LOST TIME

T

he 2018/2019 year should have
been one of growth and building
on the NAC five-year strategy
launched the previous financial
year February 2018. Instead it ended up
being one of stagnation and frustration.
Unfortunately, for a better part of the
year, the organisation was hamstrung by
multiple investigations involving its most
senior leader, the Chief Executive Officer.
Frustratingly, each of the investigations
dealt with the same allegations, and resulted
in the CEO taking special leave to allow
investigations to continue unimpeded.
These consecutive investigations saw dayto-day operations and issues of importance
placed on the back burner and meant that
instead of moving forward, the organisation
was constantly being pulled back to deal with
old allegations.
Ultimately, each of the six forensic
investigations found no evidence of

8

wrongdoing, exonerated the CEO and,
therefore, made it possible for her to return
to the helm of the organisation to resume
her duties with the full support of the
Council. By then, eight months had passed,
ample time had been wasted and the year
was drawing to a close.
Several lessons were learned in the process
which must be taken on board to ensure
that, going forward the organisation and its
operations are strengthened. The experience
of the past year highlighted serious flaws in
a number of the organisation’s processes
National Arts Council of South Africa Annual Report 2018/19

that were surprising for an entity that is 21
years old. The expectation was that with
the level of experience gathered over the
past two decades, the council would be an
expert in running funding programmes
and accounting for how money is spent, in
monitoring and evaluating the impact of
the council’s reach and programmes. It’s
regrettable that this is not the case, that
we had no idea of how many events were
showcased from month to month. So far
down the line, we should know what we
have done, where we have done it, where
our footprint is and which areas we have not
covered and why. It is disappointing that this
is not the case.
Looking into the future
What is clear from the experience of
the 2018/2019 financial year is that the
organisation needs to break from a boxticking approach to monitoring and
evaluation. If we are to properly measure
our impact, we are going to have to delve
deeper into understanding how grants have
been issued, spent and reported on. We can
no longer accept a simple “yes” to questions
around whether funds have been disbursed.
We must understand how that disbursal of
funds happened, within a blink of an eye,
be able to indicate how much money was
dispersed where, what it was used for and
what impact that funding had.
We should be able to immediately identify
who we have developed in the past 21 years.
We should be able to identify students
whose studies have been funded by the
organisation, we should be able to point out
institutions and events that we can proudly
claim as being possible because of the NAC
funding. We need to get the operational
effectiveness correct. These are things we
should not be struggling to do. Yet we are.
Reporting on spending is not only
a challenge for the council itself.
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Beneficiaries struggle to report on grants
awarded to them which often leaves them
unable to claim on the second or third
tranches of funding due to them. We must
begin to understand why a beneficiary
would apply for funding and present a good
business plan as part of that application
process and then, after receiving the first
tranche of money, fail to produce a basic
reporting feedback to enable access to

“We can no
longer accept
a simple “yes”
to questions
around whether
funds have been
dispersed. “

further funding. We must understand
the motivation behind this. We must also
put better systems in place to ensure that
successful beneficiaries who fail to report
are picked up by the system on multiple
levels when they apply for funding again.
The council must also begin to use the legal
avenues available to it to recover funds
from people who cannot account for how
the money granted to them was used.
It is only by changing this current state
of affairs that the organisation will be
in a position prevent a repeat of the
investigation-addled 2018/2019 financial
year.

9

major provinces of Gauteng, Western Cape
and KwaZulu-Natal.
We cannot have artists only coming from
three provinces out of nine – that’s a
misnomer on its own. We must get better at
making sure that we penetrate the furthest
areas to ensure that deserving talent is
discovered and supported. The arts industry
is dynamic and so talent should be harnessed
in all spheres and in all provinces. We must
begin to showcase more widely South
Africa’s arts culture and what differentiates
our art from other countries.

Yet it was not all doom and gloom.
Highlights
The NAC received a clean audit from the
auditor-general. What this means is that the
entity met the requirements that govern the
disbursement of public funds – that we made
a call for applications, applications were
received, they were evaluated on merit and
grants were awarded. From that perspective
the organisations finances are in good stead.
Over the course of the year, the entity was
able to issue grants to beneficiaries. Staff
members from the organisation managed to
visit all provinces to announce the funding
outcomes to the successful beneficiaries.
Also, special effort was made to interact with
several beneficiaries across the country.
Our travels revealed that there is much work
to be done to improve on the representivity
of beneficiaries from provinces. Provinces
that have been marginalised in the past
– North West, Northern Cape, Limpopo,
Eastern Cape, Free State and Mpumalanga
for example – and where only a few
applications are received need to begin to
benefit at the same level of funding as your

10

Way Forward
Ours is not an easy task. Where there is
money, there will be attempts to misspend
it, so the staff members of the NAC must
focus on getting our processes right, loose
ends must be tied up and our focus must be
on ensuring that whatever budget we have,
deserving artists whose aim is to promote
the arts in this country are the beneficiaries.
We need a culture change within the
organisation, our focus must be on service.
Where there are issues, they must be dealt
with in good faith and always with the best
interests of the organisation in mind.
We cannot lose another year, there is much
work to be done. The National Arts Council
has a vital role in building this country and
promoting social cohesion among its people.

Mr Hartley Ngoato
Chairperson
National Arts Council
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CHIEF
EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Ms Rosemary Mangope
REFLECTION,
GROWTH AND THE
YEAR AHEAD

A

s we reflect on the past year, it is
imperative that we take stock of
what we have been through as an
organisation, to identify the lessons
that we can take from it and rebuild a stable
entity based on mutual trust.
As difficult as the past year was for me
personally, I recognise that the numerous
investigations and my absence as a result of
my special leave has had a negative impact
on the reputation of the organisation, that
there was a destabilising ripple effect on the
staff and that the image of the entity that we
worked so hard to preserve was tarnished.
And so we need to reflect, acknowledge
what has happened and begin to heal both
as individuals and as an organisation.
Personally, I have emerged from that
reflection with a sense of gratitude, with a
greater understanding of who I am, and with
a sense of purpose about what needs to be
done differently within the organisation
and what I need to do to empower my staff
through skills transfer.
12

So what are the lessons?
In this second phase of being back at the NAC
on a second five-year tenure, my aim is to grow
leaders. In the past, the focus was on setting a
trend and a tone for the organisation, this time
around my aim is to grow leaders. Champions
within the organisation have been identified
and going forward we will work together to
stabilise and grow the entity.
Communication is the cornerstone of what
drives the organisation and instead of leaving
communication with staff to managers of
units and sections, I am now meeting directly
with staff in different units within the entity.
National Arts Council of South Africa Annual Report 2018/19

Staff meetings once a month were not enough
to ensure familiarisation with the new strategy.
But it’s not just communication within the
organisation that must improve. We deal with
a lot of complex beneficiaries, many of whom
become disgruntled when they are unsuccessful
in their funding applications. To circumvent
this, we need to be better at communicating
the outcomes of our funding decisions, we
need to be better at educating our stakeholders
and beneficiaries on the processes and criteria
involved in applying for funding, and we need
to be better at doing preliminary checks on
whether potential beneficiaries actually meet
the criteria. Doing these checks upfront, instead
of post-funding, as has been the case in the past,
will go a long way to solving a number of issues
that the entity has been faced with.

“ During the period
under review, the
NAC has made
substantial progress
to futureproof its
methods. ”

The period under review should have seen the
organisation really begin to implement its fiveyear strategy that had been launched in February
2018 of the preceding year. The aim of the strategy
– funding for impact – should have been well and
truly entrenched but while some gains have been
made, much remains to be done.
As mentioned in last year’s review, we have to
find ways to overcome the boundaries that exist
between financial and non-financial support and
those that exist between various programmes.
What we have recognised is that our beneficiaries
need more than financial support, and so in our
effort to fund for impact, we have to ensure that
the beneficiaries themselves are in a position
to make an impact in their areas. The key to this
lies in partnerships and collaboration between
the entity and its alumni and between new
beneficiaries and the alumni.
Introducing our new funding programmatic
approach funding and its impact
There has been a move away from disciplinespecific funding – which has become increasingly
irrelevant in a multidisciplinary art sector. Our
focus now is on a programmatic approach that is
governed by five key programmes:
•

Social cohesion and nation-building is
a programme where the funding allocation
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•

•

•

is underpinned by equity, inclusivity,
diversity and participation of various
groups of people (women, youth, vulnerable
people and in particular people living with
disabilities). Entities that have benefitted
under this programme in the year under
review include Kgabo-Tona Entertainments
and Projects (Mpumalanga); the South
African Deaf Association (Gauteng), and
Absolute Art Productions (North West).
Over R5.2-million of the organisation’s
R106-million budget was spent on social
cohesion and nation-building programmes
in the 2018/2019 financial year.
Innovation, design and creation
recognises that content creation lies at
the heart of the creative industries. This
programme aims to promote excellence and
innovation in new works. New innovative
designs and works have an intrinsic and
economic value that brings in the element
of dynamism and vibrancy to the arts.
Research and development are essential
elements in the creation of new works.
More than R5.3-million was spent on this
programme.
Art platforms/showcases/ exhibitons
programme recognises that arts content
creation and distribution are important
for audience development, audience
engagement and for the consumption of the
arts. Nearly R10-million was spent on these
programmes.
Strategic initiatives focuses on working
13

•

with partners to leverage available
funding, build sustained capacity
and achieve real impact for the arts
community. These initiatives raise
the profile of the sector. They have
the potential to develop and promote
the arts significantly locally, on the
continent and globally. Spending on
strategic initiatives accounted for
R2.164-million of the budget.
Capacity building programmes
provide support for the provision of
training and education. This programme
offers grants and scholarships to help
grow the talent of art practitioners,
arts managers and other industryrelated professionals. Entities that have
benefitted here include Afrika Burns
Creative Projects (Northern Cape),
Keiskamma Trust (Eastern Cape) and
the Lesedi African Theatre (North
West). Almost R660 000 of the overall
budget from the year under review was
spent on individual capacity building
projects while more than R4.2-million
was spent on organisational projects.

Part of these programmes will include looking
at previously funded beneficiaries who can
become partners to ensure the sustainability
of new beneficiaries, understanding that it
is very hard for standalone artists who are
not in collaboration with an institution or in
partnerships, to stay afloat. To this end, we
will be developing a database of all our alumni,
which will allow us to quickly connect likeminded individuals and entities.
Beneficiaries in their applications should
also begin to show how they plan to use
the funding to create partnerships to bring
them to sustainability so that year-on-year
their survival is not based on the success of
a funding application to the NAC. And while
NAC funding will be made through structured
institutions, those artists who apply for
funding on their own will be linked with
potential collaborators, always with the aim of
long-term sustainability.
Each of these programmes, while in their
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infancy, present an opportunity to break
from the past and to build an arts sector that
is responsive to the needs of the country and
that assists in showcasing the depth of South
Africa’s artistic talents.
But all of this takes money. In the 2018/2019
financial year, the NAC received a budget of
R106-million from the Department of Arts and
Culture. Seventy percent (70%) of this was
allocated to grant-making. What is clear is that
the entity cannot solely rely on government
funding to deliver on its mandate to promote
and develop excellence in the arts.
The NAC needs to also look to partnerships to
increase its funding coffers. Part of succeeding
in this is to ensure that the application process
and decision-making for grant awards are
beyond reproach. A change in the grant
management system from paper to electronic
means a decrease in the opportunity for
human error. Since the introduction of
the system, 4697 applicants were received
electronically. Our turnaround time from
application to decision now stands at two and
a half months and applicants report feeling
more confident in the system.
But, as with any organisation that undergoes
change, there are challenges. By far the
greatest hindrance is the fear of change
itself and an inability to adapt to changing
processes. We are operating in a VUCA
(volatile, uncertain, complex and ambiguous)
world but instead of being weighed down by
this we need to shift the volatility to vision, the
uncertainty to understanding, complexity to
clarity and the ambiguity to agility. Achieving
this will mean we are always at the forefront of
driving change and be best placed to succeed.
Challenges we faced
We also need greater buy-in on the five-year
strategy, particularly from provinces. During
my absence, my colleagues and the board were
at pains to popularise the strategy in provinces
but more ought to be done. One only has to
look at where applications are coming from
to understand that the new key strategic
programmes are still quite unfamiliar in some
places.
National Arts Council of South Africa Annual Report 2018/19

What we have realised is that physical visits
to the provinces are not the only way to get
the message across. We will be innovative in
our approach and use technological tools, like
YouTube, available to extend our reach.
We also have to identify better ways to support
our Provincial Arts Councils (PAC) some
of whose functioning has been paralysed
by infighting and conflict. We need to
identify what problems exist and help these
entities find appropriate solutions. PACs are
important bodies but if they are dysfunctional,
and impacting on the work that needs to be
done as a national body we will identify other
entities that we can work with to ensure that
artists and beneficiaries do not bear the brunt
of the PACs inefficiencies.
Another gap that has been identified in
our processes is how we monitor our
implementation. If we say, we are funding for
impact, we must have the tools to measure
this impact. We have partnered with the
National School of Governance (NSG) to help
us develop-fit-for-purpose tools to monitor
our funding impacts and to develop courses
on monitoring and evaluation. By knowing
the effect of what we are doing, we will be
in a better position to upscale or adapt our
programmes for greater impact.
Unfortunately, a key area that we have not
been able to deliver on effectively this past
financial year due to being on special leave
was to have more programmes that would
benefit people living with disabilities. What
we wanted to do for the Nelson Mandela year
was to fund an initiative that would have,
performed and managed by people living with
disabilities, but this came to naught as a result
of the forensic investigations that needed to
be completed.
Highlights
There have been some wins though. A
successful programme in this area was
the From The Hip: Khulumakahle . This
programme was aimed at training sign
language interpreters to be able to sign for
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theatre. Rolling out this initiative will see a
family with a child that has a hearing disability
being able to attend a theatre production
together.
Another win has been the Africa meets Africa
grouping, a consortium of mathematicians,
historians, visual artists and English teachers
that the NAC has funded to produce teacher
and student learning guides to teach the
four subjects using the art of Ndebele artist,
Esther Mahlangu. Through Mahlangu’s
paintings, Ndebele history and traditions can
be taught, the geometric shapes she uses in all
of her work forms the foundation for maths
and so forth. What this illustrates is that
opportunities exist for indigenous knowledge
systems to be used in mainstream learning.
We need to identify more Esther Mahlangu’s
to elevate the dignity of our African people
and to send the message that being illiterate
(in that you have not gone to school) does
not mean you are not talented. You can break
through even if you do not have any academic
background to talk about because academic
prowess does not equate to talent and it does
not equate to creativity.
So as we move into the next financial year
let us shout from high that the National
Arts Council is open for business, that we
are innovating, discovering, cleaning up,
monitoring and enhancing our efforts so as
to emerge with instruments that will help us
better serve our beneficiaries.

Ms Rosemary Mangope
Chief Executive Officer
National Arts Council
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STATEMENT OF
RESPONSIBILITY AND
CONFIRMATION OF
ACCURACY FOR THE
ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of my knowledge and belief,
I confirm the following:
All information and amounts disclosed in the
annual report are consistent with the annual
financial statements audited by the AuditorGeneral.

The external auditors are engaged to express
an independent opinion on the annual
financial statements.

The annual report is complete, accurate and
is free from any omissions.

In our opinion, the annual report fairly
reflects the operations, the performance
information, the human resources
information and the financial affairs of the
public entity for the financial year ended 31
March 2019.

The annual report has been prepared in
accordance with the guidelines on annual
reports as issued by National Treasury.

Yours faithfully,

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E)
have been prepared in accordance with the
GRAP standards applicable to the public
entity.

16

The Accounting Authority is responsible
for the preparation of the annual financial
statements and for the judgements made in
this information.

___________________
Chief Executive Officer
Ms Rosemary Mangope
August 2019

The Accounting Authority is responsible
for establishing and implementing a system
of internal control designed to provide
reasonable assurance as to the integrity and
reliability of the performance information,
the human resources information and the
annual financial statements.

___________________
Chairperson of the Board
Mr Hartley Ngoato
August 2019
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STRATEGIC
OVERVIEW
6.1 Vision

The vision of the National Arts
Council (NAC) is to promote,
through the arts, the free expression of South Africa’s
cultures.

Mission
6.2
The mission of the NAC is
to promote excellence in
the arts.

6.3 Values
The stated values of the NAC are:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
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Accountability;
Results-orientated;
Professionalism and integrity;
Making a difference;
Employee fulfilment;
Excellence and synergy;
Transparency and openness.
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07

LEGISLATIVE
AND OTHER
MANDATES

The NAC derives its mandate from the
National Arts Council Act (No. 56 of
1997, as amended). The Act mandates
the NAC to:
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

•

Provide and encourage the provision of
opportunities for persons to practice
the arts;
Promote the appreciation,
understanding and enjoyment of the
arts;
Promote the general application of the
arts in the community;
Foster the expression of a national
identity and consciousness by means
of the arts;
Uphold and promote the right of any
person to freedom in the practice of
the arts;
Give the historically disadvantaged
such additional help and resources as
required to give them greater access to
the arts;
Address historical imbalances in the
provision of infrastructure for the
promotion of the arts;
Promote and facilitate national
and international liaison between
individuals and institutions in respect
of the arts; and
Develop and promote the arts and
encourage excellence in regard to
these.

The NAC is wholly funded by an annual
budget allocation from the Department
of Arts and Culture (DAC). In terms
of the Act, 75% must be distributed
through grants in support of the arts
18

and the remaining 25% is used for
administration.
Over and above the specific
stipulations of the NAC Act and related
regulations, the NAC as a Schedule 3
Public Entity of the PFMA must comply
with:
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The Promotion of Access to
Information Act (No 2 of 2000);
Promotion of Equality and Prevention
of Unfair Discrimination Act (No 4 of
2000);
The Public Audit Act (No 25 of 1994);
Labour Legislation including the Basic
Conditions of Employment Act (No 75
of 1997), Labour Relations Act (No 66
of 1995) and the Employment Equity
Act (No 55 of 1998);
The Occupational Health and Safety
Act (No 85 of 1993);
The Income Tax Act (No 58 of 1962 as
amended) and all subsequent Taxation
Laws Amendment Acts;
The Revenue Laws Amendment Act,
1996;
The Skills Development Act (No 97 of
1998);
The Preferential Procurement Policy
Framework Act (No 5 of 2000);
The Remuneration of Public Office
Bearers Act (No 20 of 1998, as
amended);
The Unemployment Insurance Act (No
63 of 2001);
The Division of Revenue Act (No 5 of
2012);
The Broad-Based Black Economic
National Arts Council of South Africa Annual Report 2018/19

•

Empowerment Act (No 53 of 2003); and
The National Credit Act (No 34 of 2005).

The White Paper on Arts, Culture
and Heritage, promulgated in 1996,
continues to make sweeping changes to
the arts and culture landscape. A critical
aspect of this transformation was the
creation of new funding mechanisms
that would make funds accessible to
artists across all disciplines and in
so doing, redress the bias towards
particular art forms that were previously
not supported under Apartheid. The
White Paper outlines the role of the NAC
as follows:
Distribute public funds to artists, cultural
institutions, NGOs and CBOs to promote
the creation, teaching and dissemination
of literature, oral history and storytelling,
music, dance, theatre, musical theatre, opera,
photography, design, visual art and craft
which fully reflect the country’s diversity;
Provide study bursaries in the fields of arts
and culture to practitioners, administrators
and educators; and Carry out research,
especially regarding policies linked to its
mandate, and also execute investigations and
research at the request of the Minister.
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19

08

ORGANISATIONAL
STRUCTURE
COUNCIL

ORGANISATIONAL
EFFECTIVENESS
CO-ORDINATOR

BOARD
SECRETARY

CHIEF
FINANCIAL
OFFICER

FINANCE
OFFICER

ARTS
ACCOUNTANT

FINANCE
OFFICER X2

SUPPLY CHAIN
OFFICER

PA to CFO

MARKETING &
COMMUNICATIONS
MANAGER

MARKETING &
COMMUNICATIONS
ASSISTANT

RECEPTIONIST

20

National Arts Council of South Africa Annual Report 2018/19

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

PA to CEO

ADM

ARTS
DEVELOPMENT
OFFICER X8

PA to ADM

GENERAL
WORKER X2
HR
MANAGER

PROJECT
MANAGER

HR
ASSISTANT

National Arts Council of South Africa Annual Report 2018/19

IT MANAGER

ADMIN
HUB X3
SYSTEMS
ADMINISTRATION
& ANALYTICS

OFFICE
ASSISTANT

21

PART b
Performance
Information

22

National Arts Council of South Africa Annual Report 2018/19

National Arts Council of South Africa Annual Report 2018/19

23

01

AUDITOR’S REPORT:
PREDETERMINED
OBJECTIVES

The AGSA(auditor) currently performs the necessary audit procedures on the performance
information to provide reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit
conclusion on the performance against predetermined objectives is included in the report
to management, with material findings being reported under the Predetermined Objectives
heading in the Report on other legal and regulatory requirements section of the auditor’s
report.
Refer to page 115 to 155 of the Report of the Auditors Report, published as Part E: Financial
Information.

02

SITUATIONAL
ANALYSIS

2.1 SERVICE DELIVERY ENVIRONMENT

T

he NAC is undergoing constant and
unrelenting transition, evolution
and adaptation at strategic and
operational levels. It is imperative
for the NAC to change faster than its
environment in order to stay relevant to the
needs and expectations of its stakeholders
and to deliver on its mandate as a public
entity. The NAC currently faces a number
of exceptional circumstances that will
impact on its destiny in the period covered
by this APP. What are these exceptional
circumstances?

The NAC will continuously need to take
heed of the direction of the White Paper on
Arts, Culture and Heritage, and position
itself to play a meaningful role in supporting
the DAC’s strategic aspirations. The NAC
has reviewed its Enhanced Five-Year
strategy (2015/16 – 2019/20) which will see
various changes in the way it implements its
programmes, and will continue to implement
its updated strategy (2016/17 – 2020/21) which
will permit the organisation to deliver on its
overall mandate, as set out in the NAC Act.
The NAC is presently experiencing budget
constraints to execute its full mandate

3The King IV Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa 2016 and the copyright and trademarks for King IV are owned by the Institute of Directors in
Southern Africa NPC and all of its rights are reserved with the required link http://www.iodsa.co.za/?page=AboutKingIV
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and cannot rely solely on funding from
government to achieve this. It needs to
accelerate the leveraging of funding and
resources, as contemplated in Section 16
of the NAC Act. In addition to this, from a
strategic perspective, the NAC will continue
to implement its collaborative strategy
execution with key strategic partners to
ensure effective use of the available budget.
The NAC needs to fund for impact and have
evidence of the impact that the entity has
made and continues to make on the sector.
This is especially important not only from
a strategic implementation perspective
but also from a reporting perspective as
performance will be a crucial part of internal
and external audit.
In an environment where government
funding is finite and the needs of the sector
are disproportionately large, it is critical to
ensure that all funding is fully allocated and
utilised, ensuring that it is allocated so as to
maximise its potential impact. It also means
ensuring that funding is effectively disbursed
and utilised in compliance with the principles
and practices of sound governance.
There is an urgent need to address the
systemic factors contributing to the
past and current financial surpluses
experienced by the NAC. These surpluses
are not created through a limited range of
funding opportunities or non-allocation of
grants, but rather through non-disbursal
because of shortcomings in beneficiary
compliance requirements. This will require
the strengthening of the monitoring and
evaluation system that will timeously
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identify such shortcomings and ensure that
scarce funding is not tied up unproductively.
The NAC has embarked upon an

The NAC has
embarked upon
an organisational
development
initiative that was
supported by the
National Treasury’s
Technical Assistance
Unit.

organisational development initiative
that was supported by the National
Treasury’s Technical Assistance Unit.
The NAC is currently implementing the
recommendations from this process.
An important challenge that will need
to be addressed is the very high cost of
compliance within the NAC. The NAC
employs 32 permanent and project staff, and
remunerates a further 44 people through
their participation in the NAC’s governance
structures. This provides a 1:3 ratio of
employees to participants in governance
structures and is comparable to a ratio of
approximately 1:0.1 in other jurisdictions.
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2.2

ORGANISATIONAL
ENVIRONMENT

The NAC has over the past 12 months undergone an exciting and future focused journey of
reviewing its strategy and organisational design.
One of the key outcomes of the review period
is the realisation by the organisation’s leadership of need for a focused, coherent, and robust
framework to operationalise and entrench the
NAC’s strategy and its Annual Performance
Plan. Organisational development as an organisational discipline has been identified as a vehicle to catapult the NAC into its desired future as
clearly articulated in its signed off strategy.

South Africa. The approval of the NAC strategy
in February 2018, necessitated the HR unit to
review the current organisational design, on
how the NAC can leverage on its changed business model. This process will enable the NAC to
have a proper structure and requisite skills that
will not only support the new strategy, but build
internal capacity. Competency profiling and gap
analysis will form part of the NAC organisational development initiative. The NAC will make a
concerted effort to mobilise resources to implement the structure.

Despite a number of governance and leadership
challenges over past years, the NAC has continued to deliver on one essential element of
its mandate – to provide funding to the arts in

During the 2018/19 financial period, the NAC
employed 32 full time staff. The NAC governance structures comprise 21 Council members
and 23 Panel members.

2.3

KEY POLICY DEVELOPMENTS AND
LEGISLATIVE CHANGES
There were no key policy developments or policy changes that have
affected the NAC’s operations during the period under review.
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03
3.1

PERFORMANCE
INFORMATION
BY PROGRAMME

Programme 1: Arts Administration
For the period under review, the Arts Administration Programme focused on
the following objectives:

Goal 1: Create a vibrant, inclusive and transformed
Arts and Culture Sector
This goal is focused on driving content creation and distribution at both
an individual and at organisational level. It represents the more traditional
NAC grant-making role and it is important because content creation and its
distribution lies at the heart of the creative industries. It aims to promote
excellence and innovation in new works as well as to develop and support the
platforms required to showcase the arts.

Goal 2: Achieve global recognition for our unique
South African arts and culture
This goal aims to address some of the legacies of apartheid through a positive focus
on content creation and distribution that favors disadvantaged and marginalised
sectors of South African society. It aims to support indigenous art forms, the
youth, disabled people, women and marginalised communities, particularly those
in rural areas.

Goal 3: Develop a sustainable capability that enables
the arts to entertain, enrich and inspire
This goal focuses on the key resources required for sustainable arts practice –
infrastructure, people, money and information. These are the basic building blocks
and foundational capabilities for a sustainable arts sector. Through support for
the provision of training and education, this goal will also allocate developmental
grants and scholarships to help grow the talents of art practitioners and other
professionals such as CAC Managers, theatre technicians and arts administrators.
This will ensure that South Africa has a sustainable base of talents and leaders to
see us through to the next stage of our cultural development. Training will also
incorporate e-learning to reach a wider potential audience at a lower cost as well
as cultural exchanges to nurture the next generation of arts practitioners and
managers.
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Goal 4: Achieve increased access to markets and
enable creative engagement for South African
arts and artists
Growing and creating access to markets has been identified as an important
need of emerging artists. Supporting platforms which showcase artists’
work has a dual benefit in terms of both creating access to markets and
building an awareness of arts in a readily accessible way. International cooperation is also critically important. Arts exchanges enable the NAC to
collaborate with other governments and government agencies to promote
South African arts in new markets. This facilitates personal growth and
development, showcases South Africa’s creativity and artistic expression,
showcases the country as a destination for tourists and cultivates
international audiences and markets.
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PART A

PROGRAMME AND SUB-PROGRAMME
PLANS: PROGRAMME NAME: ARTS
DEVELOPMENT & PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT

Table 1:

Arts Administration: Targets and achievements

Strategic Goal 1: Create a vibrant, inclusive and transformed arts and culture sector
Strategic
Objectives

Performance
Indicator

Actual
Achievement
2017/2018

Planned Target 2018/2019

Actual
Achievement
2018/2019

Deviation from
Planned
Target for
2018/2019

Variance
from 2017/18
to 2018/19
(if applicable)

Comment on
Variances

Percentage of
disbursements
made in
accordance
with the agreed
disbursement
criteria

Percentage
of project
disbursement
made in
accordance
with the
agreed
disbursement
criteria

100%
compliance
with agreed
disbursement
criteria

100% of disbursements
to be made in
accordance
with agreed
disbursement
criteria

100% of
disbursements
made in
accordance
with agreed
disbursement
criteria

None

None

None

Reduce
unclaimed
funds through
effective
oversight to a
maximum of a
percentage
of projects and
grants budget

Reduce surplus
funds through
effective
oversight to a
maximum of a
percentage of
projects
budget

70.68%
disbursements
made and
expiration
of projects
undertaken

90% disbursements
made

86.22% disbursements
made

3.68% less
disbursements made

15.54% more
of disbursements made
during the
period under
review

3.68% less of
disbursement
made due
to noncompliance of
beneficiaries
to reporting
time lines. The
late approval
of project
funding
and bursary
funding during
the financial
year also
affected the
disbursement
rate.

Ensure a
balanced
allocation of
project and
grant funding
across
all disciplines
and NAC
strategic
imperatives

Percentage
of grants and
project funding
allocation
across all
disciplines and
NAC strategic
imperatives

51.23%
allocated
for arts
promotions.
27.44% for
creation of
new work
and 20.93%
for capacity
building

Allocation of
grants/
Projects per
funding
session: 50%
for arts
promotion,
30% for
creation of
new work, 20%
for capacity
building

52.13% allocated for
arts promotions.
41.06% for
creation of
new work
and 27.20%
for capacity
building

2.13% more
allocated
for arts
promotions.
11.06% more
for creation
of new work
and 7.20%
more for
capacity
building

0.90% more
allocated for
arts promotions. 13.62%
more for
creation of
new work and
6.27 % more
for capacity
building

More projects
applications
received that
deal with arts
promotions,
capacity
building and
creation of
new work.
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Table 2:

Arts Administration: Targets and achievements

Strategic Goal 2: Achieve global recognition for our unique south africa arts and culture
Strategic
Objectives

Performance
Indicator

Actual
Achievement
2017/2018

Planned
Target
2018/2019

Actual
Achievement
2018/2019

Deviation
from
Planned
Target for
2018/2019

Variance
from 2017/18
to 2018/19
(if
applicable)

Comment
on
Variances

Allocate and
disburse
funding to
support
indigenous art
forms

Percentage
of funding
allocated
to support
indigenous art
forms

18.45% of
allocated
funding
disbursed
to support
indigenous art
forms

6% of
funding
allocated
to support
indigenous
art forms

20,50% of
funding allocated
to support
indigenous art
forms

15.50% more
funding
allocated
to support
indigenous
art forms

2.05% more
funding
allocated
to support
indigenous art
forms

A great
response of
applications
was received
for the
development
and
promotion of
indigenous
art forms.

Allocate and
disburse
funding to
support
projects in
targeted
rural areas or
provinces

Percentage
of funding
allocated to
targeted rural
areas/
provinces

25.69% of
allocated
funding
disbursed
to support
projects in
targeted rural
areas/
provinces

25% of
funding
allocated
to support
projects in
targeted rural
areas/
provinces

28.09% of
funding
allocated to
support projects in
targeted rural
areas/
provinces

3.09% more
funding
allocated
to support
projects in
targeted rural
areas/
provinces

2.40% more
of funding
allocated
to support
projects in
targeted rural
areas/
provinces

More
applications
received
from targeted
rural areas/
provinces
that deserve
NAC support.

Allocate and
disburse
funding to
support
women and
women-led
organisations

Percentage
of funding
allocated
to support
women
and womenled
organisations

22.36%
allocated
funding
disbursed to
women and
women-led
organisations

10% funding
allocated
to support
women and
women-led
organisations

26.26% funding allocated
to support
women and
women-led
organisations

16.26% more
of funding
allocated
to support
women and
women-led
organisations

3.90% more
of funding
allocated
to support
women and
women-led
organisations

A great
response of
applications
was received
from
women and
women-led
organisations
due to regular
provincial
workshops
with womenled groups.

Allocate and
disburse
funding to
support
organisations
working
with people
living with
disabilities
and
individuals
living with
disabilities

Percentage
of funding
allocated
to support
organisations
working with
people living
with
disabilities
and individuals
living with
disabilities

2.82 % of
allocated
funding
disbursed
to
organisations
working
with people
living with
disabilities,
and
individuals
living with
disabilities

2% of funding
allocated
to support
organisations
working
with people
living with
disabilities,
and
individuals
living with
disabilities

6.02% of funding allocated
to support
organisations
working
with people
living with
disabilities,
and individuals
living with
disabilities

4.02% more
of funding
allocated
to support
organisations
working
with people
living with
disabilities,
and
individuals
living with
disabilities

3.20% more
of funding
allocated
to support
organisations
working
with people
living with
disabilities,
and individuals
living with
disabilities

Increased
number of
applications
received from
organisations
working
with people
living with
disabilities
and
individuals
living with
disabilities.

Allocate and
disburse
funding to
projects that
benefit the
youth

Percentage
of funding
allocated
To support
projects that
benefit the
youth

30.05% of
allocated
funding
disbursed
to projects
benefiting the
youth

18% of
funding
allocated
to support
projects
benefiting the
youth

32.26% of
funding allocated
to support
projects
benefiting the
youth

17.26% more
of funding
allocated
to support
projects
benefiting
the youth

2. 21% of
funding
allocated
to support
projects
benefiting the
youth

A great
response of
applications
was received
on projects
that benefit
the youth.
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Table 3:

Arts Administration: Targets and achievements
Strategic Goal 3: Sustainable arts capability

Strategic
Objectives

Performance
Indicator

Actual
Achievement
2017/2018

Planned
Target
2018/2019

Actual
Achievement
2018/2019

Deviation
from
Planned
Target for
2018/2019

Variance
from 2017/18
to 2018/19
(if
applicable)

Comment
on
Variances

Fund local and
international
bursaries in
the arts

Percentage
of funding
allocated
to local and
international
bursaries
approved

21.03% of
funding
allocated to
bursaries
approved

20% of
funding
allocated to
bursaries
approved

20.28% of
funding
allocated to
bursaries
approved

0.28% more
of funding
allocated to
bursaries
approved

0.75% less
of funding
allocated to
bursaries
approved

Increase in
number of
deserving
bursaries
approved

Fund training
and
development
programmes
in
the arts

Fund training
and
development
programmes in
the arts

7 training
and
development
programmes
funded and
implemented
by the
Forgotten
Angle
Collaborative
and
Grahamstown
Foundation

Fund 7
training and
development
programmes

7 training and
development
programmes
funded and
implemented
by Moving Into
Dance

None

None

Not
applicable

Support the
training of
community art
centre
managers
to ensure
community art
centres
function
at an
acceptable
level

Number of
community
art centres
considered
to be
functioning
at an
acceptable
level

The
training of 7
community
art centres
managers
supported
through
the Eastern
Cape Arts
and Culture
Council

Support the
training of 7
community
art centre
managers

The training of
8 community
art centres
managers
supported
through
the Eastern
Cape Arts
and Culture
Council

One more
Community
Arts Centre
manager
trained

One more
Community
Arts Centre
manager
trained

The NAC
would like
to see an
improvement
in the
functioning
of
community
art centres

Identify and
fund flagship
projects

Number of
flagship
projects
supported

5 flagship
projects
identified and
supported
HESOP;
Atelier for
Festival
Managers;
MACUFE
Seychelles and
Dakar

Identify
and fund
4 flagship
projects

12 flagship
projects
identified and
supported,
ISEA,
Liberation
Project,
MIDM,
Forgotten
Angle
Collaborative
and all projects
funded under
the Strategic
Initiatives
Programme

8 more
flagship
project
supported.

7 more flagship
projects
supported

More
strategic
initiatives
projects
supported
as per the
response
on the open
call for
applications.
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Establish
a strategic
partnership
for
the
development
of arts
education

Number of
partnerships
established

Partnerships
established
with Africa
Meets Africa
and Heritage
Council
for the
development
of Arts
Education

Establish 2
partnerships
with relevant
structures
for the
development
of arts
education

Partnerships
established
with
Masifundisane
Visual Arts
Project and
the Visual Arts
Foundation
Project

None

None

Not
applicable

PROGRAMME NAME: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT
Arts administration: Market access and creative
Table 4:
engagement
Strategic Goal 4: Market access and enrichment through arts and culture
Strategic
Objectives

Performance
Indicator

Actual
Achievement
2017/2018

Planned
Target
2018/2019

Actual
Achievement
2018/2019

Deviation
from
Planned
Target for
2018/2019

Variance
from 2017/18
to 2018/19
(if
applicable)

Comment
on
Variances

Establish
partnerships
with
government
structures
and
other
recognised
structures

Number of
partnerships
established
with
government
and
other relevant
structures

Partnership
established
with 1
government
structure
and 2 other
relevant
structures,
namely,
SanParks,
Tshwane
University of
Technology
and,
Mpumalanga
Department
of Arts &
Culture.

Partnerships
established
with 1
government
structure
and 2
other relevant
structures

Partnership
established with
1 government
structure and 2
other relevant
structures,
namely,
University of
Kwa Zulu Natal,
ISEA and the
Liberation
Project.

None

None

Not
applicable

Partnership
established
with relevant
structures
that promote
nation
building
and social
cohesion

Partnership
established
with a relevant
structure that
promotes
nation building
and
social cohesion

Partnership
established
with relevant
structures
which
promotes
nation
building
and social
cohesion,
namely, the
Lalela Project
Trust and
the Heritage
Council

Partnership
established
with relevant
structures
which
promotes
nation
building
and social
cohesion

Partnership
established
with relevant
structures
that promotes
nation building
and social
cohesion,
namely, The
Paleontological
Society Trust
and Kgabo-Tona
Entertainment
and
Projects(Pty)
Ltd

None

Not applicable

Not
applicable
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ARTS ADMINISTRATION AND FUNDING
Following a strategy review in August 2017 and
its approval in March 2018, the National Arts
Council is at a critical juncture in reinventing
itself to remain relevant in an ever-changing
art, culture and heritage sector. The NAC
has remained committed to supporting
the objectives of the Department of Arts
and Culture, such as, social cohesion and
nation building, focus on Africa, promoting
community arts, arts education, arts and
cultural development. In maintaining this
support and addressing some of the challenges
previously experienced, the entity has begun
to implement with its strategic realignment.
Strategy realignment has showcased the
importance of recognising the breadth of the
arts sector and has forced the organisation to
think around the extended value chain in the
sector.

3.2.1

Following the strategic realignment process,
the NAC introduced new goals that speak
to country imperatives and the needs of the
sector. Furthermore, the NAC has moved
away from a discipline-based approach to
funding and introduce a programmatic
approach which will see funding allocation
to beneficiaries located within specified
programmes instead of individual disciplines.
Invitations for funding focused on the
new programmes namely, Social Cohesion
and Nation Building, Innovation Design
and Creation, Arts Platforms/Showcases/
Exhibitions/Festivals and Capacity Building.
Artistic expressions continue to emerge
and have now become transversal, making
distinct delineation challenging. Applicants
are required to apply in any of the following
programmes:

Social Cohesion and Nation Building:

The arts play a significant role in contributing to nation building and social cohesion in South
Africa. It is important that funding is underpinned by equity, inclusivity, diversity and participation of various groups of people (women, youth, vulnerable people and in particular people
living with disabilities). The geographical footprint of the allocation pays special attention to
rural areas and provinces.

3.2.2

Innovation, Design and Creation:

This programme focuses on driving content creation at both an individual and organisational
level. Content creation lies at the heart of the creative industries. It aims to promote excellent
and innovation in new works. New innovative designs and works that have intrinsic and economic value which bring in the element of dynamism and vibrancy to the arts. Research and development are the essential elements in the creation of new works.

3.2.3

Arts platforms/showcases/exhibitions/
festivals:

Art Platforms enable the arts to be showcased and appreciated. It is important to develop and
support the platforms required to showcase the arts. Arts content creation and distribution is
important for the development of audiences, audience engagement and for the consumption
of the arts. Platforms allow artists to showcase creativity, innovation and excellence and to enhance market access.
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3.2.4

Strategic Initiatives:

Strategic Initiatives help to raise the profile
of the National Arts Council, develop
and promote the arts significantly in
South Africa. Strategic Initiatives include
innovation, capacity building, the leveraging
of finances and partnerships and focus on
execution to deliver value in line with the
National Arts Council’s overall mandate.
Strategic Initiatives focus on working with
partners to leverage available funding,
build sustained capacity and achieve real
impact for the arts community. This requires

3.2.5

the National Arts Council to pro-actively
identify potential opportunities to make a
real, sustained impact in the communities it
serves. This programme takes into account
several considerations. The main one being
the identification of programmes and
projects most likely to make a lasting impact
of the NAC as a catalyst for social inclusion.
Working with marginalised communities
inclusive of people living with disabilities,
plays an integral part in achieving this goal.

Capacity Building

Capacity building is an essential element for developing the arts to ensure excellence.
Through support for the provision of training and education, this programme offers grants
to help grow talent of arts practitioners and other industry related professionals such as
Community Art Centre managers and art programme managers, art technicians and arts
administrators. This will ensure that South Africa has a sustainable pool of talented artists
and leaders.

3.3

FUNDING ALLOCATED

Part of the NAC mandate entails the support
of capacity building, creation of new work
and its distribution by individual artists and
organisations through funding. To this end,
the NAC has supported 229 individuals and
232 organisations.
A great response of applications dealing
with indigenous art forms was received.
20.50% of funding was allocated to support
indigenous arts forms. Targeted rural
provinces and areas were supported
with 28.09% of the funding with the aim
of redressing geographical inequality.
26.26% of the funding was allocated to
organisations led by women and women in
the arts as a means to transform our society.
Organisations supporting youth received
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32.26% of the funding allocation and 6.02%
of funding was allocated to organisations
working with people living with disabilities.
The NAC supported projects that enabled
development and growth of the arts through
capacity building and also focused on
capabilities required to sustain art practice
in terms of both supply and demand. As
part of the goal to create sustainable arts
capacity, the NAC funded bursaries that
support the growth of talent, development
and the enhancement of skills for art
administrators and practitioners. 20.28%
of funding was allocated to local bursaries.
A total of 7 training and development
programmes funded and implemented by
Moving Into Dance.
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SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS FOR
PROGRAMMES

Table 7

2017/2018
Arts
Administration

Total

Budget

Actual
Expenditure

2018/2019
Over)/Under
Expenditure

Budget

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

74 369

78 478

(4 109

76 691

77 915

(1 224)

74 369

78 478

(4 109)

76 691

77 915

(1 224)

IMAGE GOES HERE
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04

NAC GRANT
BENEFICIARIES
2018/19

Project Funding Round 2018 opened on the 6 May 2018 and closed on the 1 August 2018. This
funding round included applications for individual international bursaries, project funding
for organisations and project funding for individuals.
This was the first round that categorised applications by focus area in line with the NAC strategic initiative. Applicants chose one of the following focus areas:
•
•
•
•
•

Arts platforms/showcases/exhibitions/festivals
Capacity building,
Innovation, design and creation,
Social cohesion and nation building
Strategic initiatives

All international bursaries were categorised as Capacity Building projects. Applicants still
chose which genre (Craft, Dance, Literature, Music, Multi-disciplinary, Theatre or Visual
Arts) their application fell into.

PROGRAMME: CAPACITY BUILDING
INDIVIDUAL PROJECTS - 2018/19
FUNDING NO

INDIVIDUAL NAME

PROVINCE

684001

Tshediso Kabulu

Free State

688901

Nelsie Ndimande

Gauteng

692601

Hazel Thembeka Ndlovu

KwaZulu-Natal

45 943,00

764801

Nozipho Zulu

KwaZulu-Natal

80 000,00

815601

Vincent Sekwati Mantsoe

Gauteng

80 000,00

1055901

Victor Geduldt

Free State

200 000,00

1078701

Fai-qah Abrahams

Western Cape

52 500,00

CB-002/19

Xolane Marman

Western Cape

20 000.00

AP-001/19

Kgotso Pati

Gauteng

44 621.60

CB-001/19

Jeanne-Louise Moolman

Free State

29 850.00

TOTAL

36

AMOUNT
99 520,00
100 000,00

752 434.60
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PROGRAMME: CAPACITY BUILDING
ORGANISATION PROJECTS - 2018/19
FUNDING NO

INDIVIDUAL NAME

PROVINCE

AMOUNT

597001

The Mothertongue Project

Western Cape

200 000,00

683701

Phronesis Training Academy

Northern Cape

200 000,00

834401

Ukusa Performing Arts Programme

KwaZulu-Natal

150 000,00

841701

Doras Dancers Multi Project

Gauteng

100 000,00

842801

Clowns Without Borders South Africa

Western Cape

150 000,00

875201

Tshwane University of Technology

Gauteng

100 000,00

900601

Greatmore Studios Trust

Western Cape

200 000,00

9296

Zimele Development Community

KwaZulu-Natal

150 000,00

931201

Zikulise Community Upliftment Project NPC

KwaZulu-Natal

150 000,00

1036401

Indigenous Knowledge Systems of SA Trust

Gauteng

300 000,00

1039701

Intlantsi Creative Development Project

Eastern Cape

250 000,00

1060301

On Time Projects

Eastern Cape

150 000,00

1067301

Arts and Ubuntu Trust

Western Cape

200 000,00

1077601

Afrika Burns Creative Projects

Northern Cape

150 000,00

1079301

Our Hands Honor Creativity Organisation

Mpumalanga

280 000,00

1092501

Nongo Business Enterprise

Limpopo

240 000,00

1135301

Endumbeni Cultural & Creative Arts Centre

Mpumalanga

200 000,00

1147601

Morris Isaacson Centre for Music

Eastern Cape

250 000,00

792901

Zanoncedo Empowerment Centre

Eastern Cape

150 000,00

766401

Keiskamma Trust

Eastern Cape

176 137,00

742901

Light of Nation Youth

Gauteng

100 000,00

627101

The Coloured Cube (Pty) Ltd

Gauteng

120 000,00

607901

Lesedi African Theatre

North West

270 000,00

TOTAL
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4 236 137,00
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PROGRAMME: STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
INDIVIDUAL PROJECTS - 2018/19
FUNDING NO

INDIVIDUAL NAME

PROVINCE

AMOUNT

585601

Prince Mbusi Dube

Gauteng

270 000,00

1022301

Tebogo Kgobokoe

North West

350 000,00

1075001

Khanyisa Nosana Sondiyazi

Free State

213 000,00

1076201

Dr Brown Bavusile Maaba

Gauteng

249 000,00

TOTAL

1 082 000,00

PROGRAMME: STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
ORGANISATION PROJECTS - 2018/19
FUNDING NO

INDIVIDUAL NAME

PROVINCE

AMOUNT

628601

Reakopana Online

Gauteng

280 000,00

637501

The Forgotten Angle Theatre Collaborative NPC

Mpumalanga

500 000,00

690701

The Arts and Culture Trust

Gauteng

500 000,00

1090001

The WOT-IF? Trust

Gauteng

499 445,00

1002201

Imbali Visual Literacy Project

Gauteng

499 994,00

TOTAL

38

1 082 000,00
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PROGRAMME: SOCIAL COHESION
INDIVIDUAL PROJECTS - 2018/19
FUNDING NO

INDIVIDUAL NAME

PROVINCE

AMOUNT

796401

Innocentia Jabulisile Mhlambi

Gauteng

30 000,00

821501

Janita Holtzhausen

Western Cape

40 000,00

824301

Mpho Mookapilo

Northern Cape

296 500,00

840201

Francios J Joubert

Limpopo

842501

Tebogo Maboa

North West

397 850,00

861501

Musa Ngcobo

Gauteng

153 000,00

862201

Janine Titus

Northern Cape

340 898,00

880601

Sinethemba Ncetani

Eastern Cape

62 500,00

935801

Miranda Fihla

Gauteng

242 000,00

1002001

Shoki Abigale Chuene

Limpopo

30 000,00

1039201

Moeketsi Petrus Pharoe

Free State

75 000,00

1046101

Hulisani Netshifhefhe

Mpumalanga

62 000,00

1057701

Patrick Pasha t/s Phuti Maintenance & Supply

Eastern Cape

200 000,00

1063701

Nazli Johaardien

Western Cape

110 500,00

141901

Molemo Moiloa Garape

Gauteng

40 606,00

840301

Bafana Nkosi

Gauteng

43 300,00

TOTAL

32 539,00

2 156 693,00

PROGRAMME: SOCIAL COHESION
INDIVIDUAL PROJECTS - 2018/19
FUNDING NO

INDIVIDUAL NAME

PROVINCE

AMOUNT

569601

Izigi Performing Arts

Mpumalanga

400 800,00

773301

Seulaula SA Publishing and Production

Eastern Cape

100 000,00

823601

arepp:Theatre for Life

Western Cape

250 000,00

830701

Mother Box: Organisation for Cooperation in the
Arts

Gauteng

189 400,00

837601

Absolute Art Productions

North West

300 000,00

864501

South African National Deaf Association (SANDA)

Gauteng

400 000,00

865301

Kgabo-Tona Entertainments and Projects (Pty) Ltd

Mpumalanga

400 000,00

1018201

Gauteng Brass Ensemble

Gauteng

245 300,00

797101

KAM Outreach Programme For Young
Instrumentalists

Northern Cape

245 087,00

1030201

Tlou Ya Mmogo o Moso Foundation

Limpopo

250 000,00

1022401

PAST (Palaeontological Scientific Trust)

Gauteng

300 000,00

TOTAL
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PROGRAMME: ARTS PLATFORMS/
EXHIBITIONS/FESTIVALS & SHOWCASES
INDIVIDUAL PROJECTS - 2018/19
FUNDING
NO

INDIVIDUAL NAME

PROVINCE

AMOUNT

565201

Mochaka I Mohale

Free State

50 000,00

585201

Nkule Mabaso

Western Cape

100 000,00

603901

Bonani Tony Miyambo

Gauteng

100 000,00

608201

Mondli Mdanda

KwaZulu-Natal

100 000,00

616401

Dr Sharlene Khan

Eastern Cape

90 000,00

628901

Thandolwethu Mtshatsha

Eastern Cape

26 700,00

631501

Zanoxolo Sylvester Mqeku

Free State

80 000,00

648301

Xolisa Ngubelanga

Eastern Cape

50 000,00

654601

Surprise Khoza

Mpumalanga

100 000,00

694401

Kirvan Fortuin

Western Cape

50 000,00

761501

Bongani J. Khoza

Gauteng

50 000,00

771901

Pierre-Henri Wicomb

Western Cape

50 000,00

858301

Semano Tom Motloung

Free State

100 000,00

930701

Anthea Pokroy

Gauteng

40 000,00

933301

Deliwe Lebohang Mthunzi

Gauteng

100 000,00

951201

Ben Nhlanhla Nsusha

KwaZulu-Natal

100 000,00

973601

Malesela Jan Calvin Tlooke

Limpopo

50 000,00

983401

Nontsikelelo Ndzume

Free State

150 000,00

991301

Antionette Morkel

Gauteng

50 000,00

1049501

Nadene Mckenzie

Western Cape

91 500,00

1052101

Jabulani Zulu

Gauteng

150 000,00

1058401

Collen Makua

Mpumalanga

80 000,00

1075701

Khwezi Gule

KwaZulu-Natal

100 000,00

1084101

Karabelo Plaatjie

Free State

150 000,00

1087101

Coral Bijoux

KwaZulu-Natal

100 000,00

1099401

Lebo Leisa

Free State

150 000,00

1103401

Sabelo Sakhile Maphumulo

KwaZulu-Natal

100 000,00

1124501

Maishe Maponya

Gauteng

100 000,00

1127301

Tinah Mnumzana

Free State

32 250,00

1139501

James Webb

Western Cape

72 000,00

1144401

Bonile Bam Catalogue on Photography

Eastern Cape

75 000,00

1150101

Kieron Jina

KwaZulu-Natal

100 000,00

1153101

Andile Precious Masiso

Gauteng

100 000,00

1160701

Titus Matiyane

Gauteng

100 000,00

1165801

Malesela Jan Calvin Tlooke

Limpopo

50 000,00

TOTAL
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2 987 450,00
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PROGRAMME: ARTS PLATFORMS/
EXHIBITIONS/FESTIVALS & SHOWCASES
ORGANISATION PROJECTS - 2018/19
FUNDING
NO

INDIVIDUAL NAME

PROVINCE

AMOUNT

559601

Marimba Melodika

North West

100 000,00

560101

Abantu Book Festival

Western Cape

100 000,00

570501

Thuthukani Music Conservatoire

Gauteng

100 000,00

597701

Fetogang Makgarebe Cultural Village

Limpopo

100 000,00

625401

Future Development Arts Production

Free State

200 000,00

668901

Khanyiso Social Enterprise

Eastern Cape

100 000,00

712201

The National School Of The Arts

Gauteng

100 000,00

732201

Matswanafike (Early Birds)

Free State

100 000,00

754101

Tumit Sparkle (Pty) Ltd

Gauteng

100 000,00

762601

Clique Concepts

Gauteng

100 000,00

768401

National Arts Festival Grahamstown

Eastern Cape

200 000,00

683201

Friends of Music

KwaZulu-Natal

100 000,00

777901

Wall of Arts Trading Pty (Ltd)

Northern Cape

150 000,00

782901

Baxter Theatre Centre at UCT

Western Cape

200 000,00

784301

Darkroom Contemporary

Western Cape

100 000,00

684901

Soul Truth Music Cc

Gauteng

200 000,00

796301

Dreamworks Foundation

Northern Cape

100 000,00

806001

Remedy 4ur Soul

Northern Cape

150 000,00

820701

Vuyani Dance Theatre

Gauteng

100 000,00

822201

Inkwazi Cultural Dance

Mpumalanga

100 000,00

837901

Nyathela Dance Projects

Mpumalanga

100 000,00

813101

Dance Theatre Africa

Western Cape

100 000,00

907901

Sophumelela Recording Studio t/a C Tone Productions

Eastern Cape

150 000,00

664901

University of KwaZulu-Natal, Centre for Creative Arts

KwaZulu-Natal

100 000,00

830901

Khuze Music

KwaZulu-Natal

150 000,00

984401

Free State Wombman In Theatre - NPO

Free State

200 000,00

1022801

University of Stellenbosch SU Woordfees

Western Cape

50 000,00

1048101

Thabang Tabane Matjale Tour

Gauteng

100 000,00

1052601

Jabulani Nonke

Gauteng

200 000,00

1072501

Xhentsa Arts Education

Mpumalanga

150 000,00

1101601

Afrosue Education Arts Ensemble

Gauteng

100 000,00

1102501

Sikhula Sonke Beadwork and Traditional Attire

Gauteng

100 000,00

1104501

FJM Development of all cutlures Somakhawula

Mpumalanga

150 000,00

574401

One Step Productions cc

North West

200 000,00

1108701

Jazz Expression

KwaZulu-Natal

150 000,00

982601

Madlera Community Development

North West

150 000,00
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1125801

KwaZulu-Natal Society for the Blind

KwaZulu-Natal

100 000,00

922401

Ethnikids (Pty) Ltd

Gauteng

50 000,00

1134601

Matatiele Arts Development Organisation

Eastern Cape

50 000,00

1137701

Mfiliji Holdings

Mpumalanga

50 000,00

1143801

Samsrec Productions

Limpopo

100 000,00

1143601

Gone Are Those Days Production - t/a Neo Vin Studios

KwaZulu-Natal

100 000,00

992601

Mjambala And Mavona Partners (Pty) Ltd

Limpopo

100 000,00

1158201

Omama Besxaxa

Gauteng

100 000,00

1141001

South AfricanTheatre Practitioners in Advance

North West

100 000,00

995701

Motlalepule Segwai

Northern Cape

100 000,00

1073707

Ngwao Ya Batswana

North West

150 000,00

567801

Diamond Discover Promotion

Northern Cape

100 000,00

1157101

KKM Entertainment and Music Productions cc

North West

130 000,00

1037701

Masasa Communications

Northern Cape

150 000,00

1067401

Makokolf General Trading

Northern Cape

100 000,00

854301

Flip n Flap

Limpopo

150 000,00

1000501

Botlokoa Development Group

Limpopo

100 000,00

770001

Isiko Foundation

Limpopo

150 000,00

740601

Myekeni Dance Theatre Company

Limpopo

100 000,00

TOTAL
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PROGRAMME: INNOVATION, DESIGN AND
CREATION OF NEW WORKS INDIVIDUAL
PROJECTS - 2018/19
FUNDING NO

INDIVIDUAL NAME

PROVINCE

AMOUNT

1158701

Tebogo George Mahashe

Gauteng

100 000,00

1153201

Carly Whitaker

Gauteng

100 000,00

1113901

Lehlohonolo Mkhasibe

Gauteng

51 452,00

1107001

Nkanyiso Kunene

KwaZulu-Natal

300 000,00

1104401

Kristina Johnstone

Western Cape

65 200,00

1104101

Paula Anne Goosen

KwaZulu-Natal

200 000,00

1080601

Roshina Ratnam

Western Cape

200 000,00

1079901

Dr Oupa Morare

Gauteng

160 000,00

1075601

Jackï Job

Western Cape

120 000,00

1073801

Maidi Margaret Sebeduga

Limpopo

43 090,00

1067001

Ralph Borland

Western Cape

300 000,00

1056901

Angel Nontuthuko Goba

KwaZulu-Natal

38 400,00

1014801

Lonwabo Jobodwana

Eastern Cape

30 000,00

1011701

Thulani Cekiso

Eastern Cape

200 000,00

990001

Nompi Vilakazi

Gauteng

200 000,00

982701

Stephen Dyer

Gauteng

200 000,00

981301

Phumlani Mtiti

Gauteng

300 000,00

958201

Sylvia Glasser

Gauteng

197 917,30

933901

Koketso Matlabane

Gauteng

38 408,00

929201

Bole Lang John Leepile

Gauteng

87 635,00

894301

Lunga Radebe

Gauteng

120 000,00

887801

Gavin J Krastin

Eastern Cape

178 300,00

831301

Joanne Hichens

Western Cape

157 000,00

792601

Prudence Lulu Mlangeni

Eastern Cape

350 000,00

754401

Rudzani Nemasetoni

Gauteng

80 000,00

746301

Goodenough Mashego

Mpumalanga

64 000,00

722901

Harm Roche van Tiddens

Western Cape

41 000,00

685801

Luyolo Mapekula

Eastern Cape

100 000,00

670801

Robert Berold

Eastern Cape

43 877,00

655101

Fortunate Makhene

Gauteng

14 999,00

571001

Baatile Stona

Gauteng

50 900,00

1164801

Vusumuzi Mbatha

KwaZulu-Natal

51 000,00

1171601

Mcedisi Mkhize

KwaZulu-Natal

33 300,00

1172201

Hlengiwe R Ndlovu

KwaZulu-Natal

35 000,00

1167501

Kwanele I Bhengu

KwaZulu-Natal

35 200,00

TOTAL
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INNOVATION, DESIGN AND CREATION OF NEW
WORKS ORGANISATION PROJECTS - 2018/19
FUNDING NO

INDIVIDUAL NAME

PROVINCE

AMOUNT

1069501

Early African Intellectuals as Composers of Music

KwaZulu-Natal

350 000,00

863401

The hands of Soweto ArtWork

Gauteng

150 000,00

1010501

Gcwabe Primary Cooperative

KwaZulu-Natal

100 000,00

838501

Mel Media and Productions

KwaZulu-Natal

200 000,00

683801

VSG Trading Enterprise

Gauteng

100 000,00

662701

INFINIT

Free State

161 000,00

11719/01

Kwaqimba bead works company

KwaZulu-Natal

40 000,00
1 101 000,00

TOTAL

BURSARIES - 2018/19
CAPACITY BUILDING: LOCAL BLOCK
INSTITUTIONAL BURSARIES - 2018/19
FUNDING NO

INDIVIDUAL NAME

INSTITUTION NAME

1186801

Chris De Beer

Durban University of Technology
- Jewellery Design

1325301

Charles Nkosi

1270601

AMOUNT

KwaZulu-Natal

100,000.00

Funda Community College

Gauteng

60,000.00

Lee Watkins

Rhodes University, (ILAM),

Eastern Cape

120,000.00

1178701

Averil Barry-Hughes

Jazzart Dance Theatre

Western Cape

92,173.00

1282401

Yvonne-Marié Brand

North West University School of
Music

North West

216,000.00

1271401

Nicole Finney

Oakfields College

Gauteng

60,000.00

1318501

Phyllis Klotz

Sibikwa Arts Centre

Gauteng

150,000.00

1177001

Peter J Sabbagha

The Forgotten Angle Theatre
Collaborative

Mpumalanga

150,000.00

1309301

Katherine Arbuckle

UKZN School of Arts CVA

KwaZulu-Natal

100,000.00

1216701

Karen von Veh

University of Johannesburg

Gauteng

105,000.00

1190601

Fihliwe Ndala

University of South Africa

Gauteng

90,000.00

1282001

Adelheid von Maltitz

University of the Free State

Free State

100,000.00

1289901

Masedi Godfrey Manenye

University of Zululand

KwaZulu-Natal

100,000.00

1293901

Jan Nel Beukes

University Of Free State Odeion
School of Music

Free State

100,000.00

TOTAL
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PROVINCE

1,543,173.00
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CAPACITY BUILDING: LOCAL POST-GRADUATE
INDIVIDUAL BURSARIES - 2018/19
FUNDING NO

INDIVIDUAL NAME

INSTITUTION NAME

1230701

Viola Greyling

Tshwane University of Technology

1249401

Retha Labuschagne

North-West University

1203101

Raymond Taylor

1244801

PROVINCE

AMOUNT

Gauteng

20,000.00

North West

35,000.00

University of the Free State

Gauteng

14,570.00

Nina Nosworthy

University of the Witwatersrand

Gauteng

45,000.00

1240201

Nericke Labuschagne

University of Stellenbosch

Western Cape

35,000.00

1247301

Natali Frenz

University of Stellenbosch

Gauteng

40,000.00

1294901

Lo Makandal Schiess

Witwatersrand University

Gauteng

35,000.00

1283701

Lizelda Labuschagne

Tshwane University of Technology

Gauteng

21,990.00

1188701

Joshua Stevens

University of Stellenbosch

Free State

40,000.00

1175501

Johandi Du Plessis

University of the Free State

Free State

20,000.00

1200901

Jessica Mayson

University of the Witwatersrand

Western Cape

45,000.00

1305301

Jeannette Badenhorst

University of Stellenbosch

Free State

35,000.00

1174901

Jayne Batzofin

University of Cape Town

Gauteng

45,000.00

1191301

Jaylin Richardson

University of Johannesburg

Gauteng

35,000.00

1278701

Charlotte von Fritschen

University of Pretoria

Western Cape

43,000.00

1265701

Vincent Varrie

University of Stellenbosch

Western Cape

35,000.00

1242501

Thakirah Allie

University of Cape Town

Western Cape

40,000.00

1303501

Terri Dennis

University of Stellenbosch

Western Cape

9,566.00

1281901

Nolan Africa

University of the Witwatersrand

Western Cape

35,000.00

1200101

Monique Biscombe

University of Stellenbosch

Western Cape

40,000.00

1228901

Mignon Mayhew

Tshwane University of Technology

Gauteng

22,500.00

1309001

Matthew Winter

Tshwane University of Technology

Gauteng

35,000.00

1258201

Malcolm-Leigh Pegram

Tshwane University of Technology

Northern Cape

35,000.00

1237001

Keanan Lyle Mitchell

University of Cape Town

Western Cape

45,000.00

1258501

Kay'leigh Fisher

University of the Witwatersrand

Gauteng

35,000.00

1242601

Caron Tremble

University of Stellenbosch

Western Cape

35,000.00

1305401

Ashwin May

Rhodes University

Eastern Cape

33,968.00

1222901

Zolile Tricarter Kalashe

UNISA

Eastern Cape

40,000.00

1303801

Zodwa Mtirara

Rhodes University

Eastern Cape

30,000.00

1177401

Zinziswa Mavuso

Rhodes University

Eastern Cape

27,000.00

1290801

Zanele Lucia Radebe

Vaal University of Technology

Gauteng

30,410.00

1224801

Zamo Ndhlazi

Tshwane University of Technology

Gauteng

35,000.00

1270001

Xolani Khumalo

Tshwane University of Technology

Mpumalanga

22,000.00

1176201

Vuyolwethu Madyibi

University of the Witwatersrand

Eastern Cape

35,000.00

1311101

Vhulahani Nangambi

University of Limpopo

Limpopo

30,000.00

1234101

Tshepo Zacharia Rapola

Tshwane University of Technology

Limpopo

35,000.00
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46

FUNDING NO

INDIVIDUAL NAME

INSTITUTION NAME

PROVINCE

1228301

Thobekile Masombuka

Rhodes University

1247201

Thembalihle Mncadi

University of KwaZulu-Natal

1177801

Thembakazi Mdeni

University of the Witwatersrand

1315101

Themba Nkululeko Nkosi

University of Johannesburg

1220201

Themba Mkhize

University of the Witwatersrand

1326401

Thabo Makhoana

1241101

AMOUNT

Gauteng

45,000.00

KwaZulu-Natal

35,000.00

Eastern Cape

35,000.00

Gauteng

35,000.00

KwaZulu-Natal

40,000.00

Vaal University of Technology

Gauteng

32,500.00

Thabiso Majola

Vaal University of Technology

Gauteng

22,000.00

1313701

Tebogo Radebe

University of Stellenbosch

Gauteng

36,000.00

1325801

Tana Calvin Mofokeng

Vaal University of Technology

Free State

27,000.00

1194901

Smangaliso Ngwenya

University of the Witwatersrand

Mpumalanga

31,553.00

1277001

Sizwe Seleka

Tshwane University of Technology

Gauteng

35,000.00

1182301

Siza Patrick Mthembu

BA applied Theatre

KwaZulu-Natal

35,000.00

1318101

Sithabiso Zulu

University of KwaZulu Natal

KwaZulu-Natal

35,000.00

1198701

Sisa Tsebula

University of the Witwatersrand

Western Cape

35,000.00

1239301

Siphuxolo Gqwetha

Vaal University of Technology

Western Cape

23,000.00

1195701

Sinenhlanhla Memela

University of KwaZulu-Natal

KwaZulu-Natal

35,000.00

1191601

Sindisile Nkuna

Tshwane University of Technology

Mpumalanga

35,000.00

1176501

Simangaliso Thango

University of the Witwatersrand

KwaZulu-Natal

35,000.00

1279701

Sicelo Mabaso

University of the Witwatersrand

KwaZulu-Natal

35,000.00

1218601

Sellinah Dire

University of the Witwatersrand

Gauteng

35,000.00

1320401

Sbusiso Ntsalaze

Tshwane University of Technology

KwaZulu-Natal

35,000.00

1300701

Sanelisiwe Dlamini

University of the Witwatersrand

KwaZulu-Natal

35,000.00

1219401

Ripfumelo Mongwe

Tshwane University of Technology

Limpopo

35,000.00

1208801

Relebohile Mabunda

University of the Witwatersrand

Gauteng

35,000.00

1287701

Prince Maseko

Tshwane University of Technology

Mpumalanga

35,000.00

1212901

Phuti Seabi

University of Cape Town

Limpopo

35,000.00

1314101

Phuti Maphaka

Tshwane University of Technology

Limpopo

35,000.00

1196001

Nqaba Sipunzi

University of the Witwatersrand

Eastern Cape

38,000.00

1227401

Nonkululeko Vilakazi

University of the Witwatersrand

Gauteng

35,000.00

1301901

Nomveliso Tshabalala

University of the Witwatersrand

Gauteng

35,000.00

1221001

Nompumezo Gubevu

University of Cape Town

Eastern Cape

35,000.00

1212701

Noluthando Mkhize

Tshwane University of Technology

KwaZulu-Natal

35,000.00

1305701

Nokwanda Mlambi

University of the Witwatersrand

KwaZulu-Natal

30,000.00

1192101

Nobuhle Mahlangu

University of the Witwatersrand

KwaZulu-Natal

35,000.00

1319901

Nkululeko Nkebe

Central University Of Technology

Free State

24,000.00

1274901

Nkosenathi Ernie Koela

University of Cape Town

Western Cape

40,000.00

1198601

Nash Lucky Magobane

University of the Witwatersrand

Gauteng

35,000.00

1269401

Nambitha Tyelbooi

University of the Witwatersrand

Gauteng

35,000.00

1198301

Naledi Mabeleng

University of the Witwatersrand

Free State

35,000.00

1177701

Mpho Malesa

Tshwane University of Technology

Gauteng

35,000.00

1241601

Mmatumisang Motsisi

Rhodes University

Gauteng

28,000.00
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1191701

Minenhle Nxele

Durban University of Technology

KwaZulu Natal

15,000.00

1303401

Merline Mengwai

Tshwane University of Technology

Limpopo

20,000.00

1291801

Mbali Sibiya

University of the Witwatersrand

KwaZulu Natal

35,000.00

1319301

Masechaba Phakela

University of the Witwatersrand

Gauteng

35,000.00

1297301

Manyatsa Monyamane

University of the Witwatersrand

Gauteng

45,000.00

1178101

MAHLUBANDILE
Nontlanga

University of the Witwatersrand

Eastern Cape

40,000.00

1326501

Maboroko Ramusi

AFDA Johannesburg

Limpopo

35,000.00

1180901

Lireko Qhobela

University of the Witwatersrand

Free State

35,000.00

1190501

Lesego Chauke

University of Cape Town

Limpopo

40,000.00

1279301

Lerato Sekele

University of the Witwatersrand

Gauteng

40,000.00

1201901

Lennece Walter Mkhari

University of the Witwatersrand

Limpopo

40,000.00

1196401

Lehlohonolo Shale

University of Cape Town

Free State

25,500.00

1288101

Lehlohonolo Makhele

Tshwane University of Technology

Gauteng

35,000.00

1181401

Lehlohonolo Collin
Khantsi

University of the Witwatersrand

Free State

35,000.00

1318001

Lebohang Moli

North-West University

Free State

35,000.00

1183501

Kopano Maema

Rhodes University

Gauteng

30,000.00

1189501

Kolodi Senong

University of the Witwatersrand

Gauteng

36,000.00

1298801

Khumbulani Bonani

Tshwane University of Technology

Eastern Cape

35,000.00

1236701

Kgomotso S Moshugi

University of the Witwatersrand

Gauteng

27,000.00

1270501

Keikanetsi Mbiza

Vaal University of Technology

Gauteng

35,000.00

1204201

Kedibone Nkosi

University of the Witwatersrand

Limpopo

35,000.00

1254501

Katlego Moncho

Tshwane University of Technology

Western Cape

35,000.00

1224901

Katlego Gabashane

Rhodes University

North West

40,000.00

1219901

Kadi Ntlhane

University of Johannesburg

Gauteng

35,000.00

1310401

Hector Kunene

University of the Witwatersrand

Gauteng

35,000.00

1270501

Keikanetsi Mbiza

Vaal University of Technology

Gauteng

35,000.00

1204201

Kedibone Nkosi

University of the Witwatersrand

Limpopo

35,000.00

1254501

Katlego Moncho

Tshwane University of Technology

Western Cape

35,000.00

1224901

Katlego Gabashane

Rhodes University

North West

40,000.00

1219901

Kadi Ntlhane

University of Johannesburg

Gauteng

35,000.00

1310401

Hector Kunene

University of the Witwatersrand

Gauteng

35,000.00

FUNDING NO

INDIVIDUAL NAME

INSTITUTION NAME

1312001

Gregory Maqoma

University of the Witwatersrand

1244101

Gomolemo Sefotlhelo

Vaal University of Technology

1222701

Gcotyelwa Mashiqa

University of Western Cape

1217201

Gcebile Dlamini

University of the Witwatersrand

1221201

Fikile Booysen

1299301

PROVINCE

AMOUNT

Gauteng

35,000.00

North West

25,000.00

Eastern Cape

40,000.00

KwaZulu-Natal

41,000.00

Tshwane University of Technology

Free State

35,000.00

Duduzile Mnguni

Tshwane University of Technology

Mpumalanga

35,000.00

1188501

Dimpho Tshale

Tshwane University of Technology

Gauteng

35,000.00

1254201

Dimakatso Ngake

University of the Witwatersrand

Mpumalanga

43,000.00
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1307001

Dibona Mokubung

University of the Witwatersrand

Gauteng

35,000.00

1176901

Bongani Malinga

University of the Witwatersrand

Mpumalanga

40,000.00

1223701

Boitumelo Tlhoaele

University of Stellenbosch

Gauteng

40,000.00

1255801

Ayanda Nyembe

Tshwane University of Technology

KwaZulu-Natal

35,000.00

1243101

Athenkosi Nelani

Rhodes University

Eastern Cape

25,000.00

1251101

Angel Mchunu

Tshwane University of Technology

KwaZulu-Natal

35,000.00

1189201

Anela Ngxabani

Tshwane University of Technology

Gauteng

35,000.00

1210001

Andisile Nkosi

Tshwane University of Technology

Mpumalanga

TOTAL
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35,000.00
4,217,307.00
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ARTS ORGANISATION
SUPPORT FUNDING
2017/2018
CRAFT
FUNDING
NUMBER

ORGANISATION NAME

PROVINCE

CC0119

Isakhona Community Development Project

Eastern Cape

150 000,00

CC0219

Imbali Visual Literacy Project

Gauteng

150 000,00

CC0319

Inthuthuko Yesizwe

Limpopo

150 000,00

CC0419

Malengs Trading

Mpumalanga

150 000,00

CC0519

Creative Thinking 524 Trading

Northern Cape

150 000,00

CC0619

Bantu Women Heritage

Free State

150 000,00

CC0719

Noko Design

Gauteng

100 000,00

CC0819

Madi A Thava Tourism

Limpopo

300 000,00

CC0919

Bogaetsu Trading

Northern Cape

150 000,00

CC1019

Ikhwezi Welfare Organisation

KwaZulu-Natal

300 000,00

CC1119

Jabulani Jewellery CC

KwaZulu-Natal

300 000,00

CC1219

Cape Craft Design Institute

Western Cape

300 000,00

TOTAL

AMOUNT
APPROVED

2 350 000,00

DANCE
FUNDING
NUMBER

ORGANISATION NAME

PROVINCE

DC0119

KZN Dance Productions

KwaZulu-Natal

200 000,00

DC0219

Garage Dance Ensemble

Northern Cape

350 000,00

DC0319

The Johannesburg Youth Ballet

Gauteng

200 000,00

DC0419

Koketso Dance Projects

Gauteng

150 000,00

DC0519

Savavidya Natyaalayo

Gauteng

150 000,00

DC0619

Maison Dala Dance

Gauteng

150 000,00

DC0719

The Orange Farm Dance Theatre

Gauteng

180 000,00

DC0819

Dinganga Theatre Creations

Gauteng

200 000,00

DC0919

Luthando Arts Academy

Gauteng

180 000,00

DC1019

Nyavhumbwa wa Dagaila Cultural Village

Limpopo

200 000,00

DC1119

Patriots Dance Theatre

Mpumalanga

150 000,00

DC1219

Foot Expression Dance

North West

200 000,00

DC1319

Sibonelo Dance Project

Western Cape

150 000,00
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AMOUNT
APPROVED
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DC1419

Gauteng Dance Manyano

Gauteng

250 000,00

DC1519

Via Volcano

Gauteng

250 000,00

DC1619

Dance Forum

Gauteng

300 000,00

DC1719

Boyzie Cekwana's Floating Outfit Project

KwaZulu-Natal

200 000,00

DC1819

The Wentworth Arts and Cultural Organisation

KwaZulu-Natal

200 000,00

TOTAL

3 660 000,00

LITERATURE
FUNDING
NUMBER

ORGANISATION NAME

PROVINCE

LC0119

Nkahemacon Pty

Free State

150 000,00

LC0219

Indigenous Poetry Development Programme

KwaZulu-Natal

150 000,00

LC0319

Unity and Cultural Diversity Council

Limpopo

150 000,00

LC0419

Development of Limpopo Literature Organisation

Limpopo

150 000,00

LC0519

HTO Productions

Limpopo

250 000,00

LC0619

Human Rights Media Centre

Western Cape

100 000,00

LC0719

Tiego Creative Writers

Limpopo

300 000,00

LC0819

Puku Children's Literature Foundation

Gauteng

300 000,00

LC0919

Arts Amuse

Free State

300 000,00

LC1019

Imbizo Arts of South Africa

Eastern Cape

350 000,00

TOTAL

AMOUNT
APPROVED

2 200 000,00

MUSIC

50

FUNDING
NUMBER

ORGANISATION NAME

PROVINCE

AMOUNT
APPROVED

MC0119

Ekhaya Creatives and Marketing

Gauteng

200 000,00

MC0219

Music Academy of Gauteng

Gauteng

250 000,00

MC0319

Ladysmith Youth Development Ensemble

Kwazulu-Natal

150 000,00

MC0419

Izithethe Arts Institute

Mpumalanga

250 000,00

MC0519

Masihlangane Productions

Northern Cape

150 000,00

MC0619

Young Blood Arts

Western Cape

100 000,00

MC0719

Gugulethu Arts Festival

Western Cape

100 000,00

MC0819

West Coast Youth Orchestra

Western Cape

150 000,00

MC0919

Africa Arts Group

Western Cape

100 000,00

MC1019

East Cape Opera Company

Eastern Cape

180 000,00

MC1119

Free State Symphony Orchestra

Free State

180 000,00

MC1219

Mangaung String Program

Free State

180 000,00

MC1319

Heritage Music

Gauteng

180 000,00
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MC1419

Soweto Music Ensemble

Gauteng

200 000,00

MC1519

Zonke Bonke Arts Organisation

KwaZulu-Natal

180 000,00

MC1619

Sangeet Vidya Institute (SA)

KwaZulu-Natal

180 000,00

MC1719

Kronendal Music Academy of Hout Bay

Western Cape

180 000,00

MC1819

Artwork for Art

Eastern Cape

200 000,00

MC1919

The Black Tie Ensemble Trust t/a Gauteng Opera

Gauteng

200 000,00

MC2019

Gauteng Music Development

Gauteng

180 000,00

MC2119

Clermont Choir Foundation

KwaZulu-Natal

250 000,00

MC2219

Durban Music School

KwaZulu-Natal

300 000,00

MC2319

Ma-Afrika

Western Cape

180 000,00

TOTAL

4 220 000,00

THEATRE
FUNDING
NUMBER

ORGANISATION NAME

PROVINCE

TC0119

Diniso Kasi Arts

Gauteng

200 000,00

TC0219

Achievers Theatre Company

Limpopo

250 000,00

TC0319

Nhluvuko Enlightenment Production

Gauteng

250 000,00

TC0419

Phambili Ghetto Artists

Gauteng

250 000,00

TC0519

Mavundla and the Roses of South Africa

Gauteng

300 000,00

TC0619

Youth in Action Theatre Productions

Kwazulu-Natal

250 000,00

TC0719

Ladimash Productions

Limpopo

250 000,00

TC0819

Maqhawe Theatre Group

Mpumalanga

250 000,00

TC0919

Theatre Arts Admin Collective

Western Cape

250 000,00

TC1019

Eighty Six Manka

Limpopo

400 000,00

TOTAL

AMOUNT
APPROVED

2 650 000,00

VISUAL ARTS
FUNDING
NUMBER

ORGANISATION NAME

PROVINCE

VC0119

Corelight t/a Seefds of Light

Limpopo

150 000,00

VC0219

Africa South Art Initiative

Western Cape

200 000,00

VC0319

Artist Proof Studio

Gauteng

200 000,00

VC0419

The Thupelo Cape Town Trust

Western Cape

300 000,00

VC0519

Arts Source South Africa

Gauteng

150 000,00

VC0619

Becomo Art Centre

Gauteng

300 000,00

VC0719

VANSA - Visual Arts Network of South Africa

Gauteng

300 000,00

TOTAL
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AMOUNT
APPROVED

1 600 000,00
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MULTI DISCIPLINE
FUNDING
NUMBER

ORGANISATION NAME

PROVINCE

AC0119

Free State Arts and Culture Association

Free State

150 000,00

AC0219

Ithutheng Arts

Gauteng

150 000,00

AC0319

Community and Prison Organisation

Gauteng

180 000,00

AC0419

Lucky Dance Theatre

Gauteng

150 000,00

AC0519

Impophoma Youth Production

Gauteng

150 000,00

AC0619

Village Gossip Productions

Gauteng

150 000,00

AC0719

Kwela Theatre Production

Gauteng

150 000,00

AC0819

Lihlikhono Community Development

Kwazulu-Natal

150 000,00

AC0919

Molepo Traditional Dance

Limpopo

150 000,00

AC1019

Kopano Ke Matla

North West

150 000,00

AC1119

Fitzgerald Goeieman Productions

North West

150 000,00

AC1219

Tshisa Talent

Western Cape

150 000,00

AC1419

Newcastle Creative Network

Kwazulu-Natal

180 000,00

AC1519

ICRD Group Foundation

Gauteng

150 000,00

AC1619

I-Afrika Theatre Education

Gauteng

180 000,00

AC1719

Vilantainment Vilakazi Entertainment

Gauteng

150 000,00

AC1819

Medu Nakeng

Gauteng

150 000,00

AC1919

National Arts and Culture Development

Gauteng

150 000,00

AC2019

Litshani Vhana Vhade Foundation

Limpopo

150 000,00

AC2119

Pakama Productions

Northern Cape

180 000,00

AC2219

Zoe Dance Academy

Free State

180 000,00

AC2319

Mangaung Drama and Dance Group

Free State

180 000,00

AC2419

Masutsa Dance Theatre Projects

Free State

180 000,00

AC2519

Emthonjeni Rural Development

Mpumalanga

180 000,00

AC2619

Enhlanzeni Arts Academy

Mpumalanga

180 000,00

AC2719

Amos Kgaphamadi Community Organisation

Mpumalanga

180 000,00

AC2819

Zimiseleni Projects

Mpumalanga

180 000,00

AC2919

East City Talent House

Mpumalanga

180 000,00

AC3019

Newlife Community Development

Limpopo

180 000,00

AC3119

Masifunde Siphhlisa Umfundi

Eastern Cape

250 000,00

AC3219

Durban African Art Centre Association

KwaZulu-Natal

250 000,00

AC3319

Newcastle Arts Development Organisation

KwaZulu-Natal

180 000,00

AC3419

University of Kwa Zulu Natal

KwaZulu-Natal

250 000,00

AC3519

Dikwena Tse Botse Tsa Ga Matsepe

Limpopo

250 000,00

AC3619

Botsotso

Gauteng

250 000,00

AC3719

Esikhaleni Arts and Culture Initiative

KwaZulu-Natal

180 000,00

TOTAL

52

AMOUNT
APPROVED

6 350 000,00
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T

he project focused on a kinetic, musicmaking mechanical sculpture in the
form of an Afro futuristic spaceship.
It made use of Southern African
vernacular wire art techniques which informal
sector wire artists being employed during the
production phase. Meet Ralph Borland, the artist
behind ‘African Robot meets SPACECRAFT’
who received R300 000 grant assistance for
his project. Borland was born in South Africa
and grew up in both Cape Town and Harare,
in neighbouring Zimbabwe. He has lived and
studied abroad for several years, and this global
influence, mixed with Southern African trends,
shows through in many of his projects.
His project ‘African Robots meets
SPACECRAFT’ delivered on its objectives in
raising the status of wire art as a medium by
bringing it into fine art forums and onto public
platforms. Borland’s work goes along way to
raising the status of informal sector wire artists,
who practice a form of everyday public art in
making and selling work on the street. These
artists are constantly devising new designs
in response to their environments, the media
and popular culture. In addition, the project
aimed to open up opportunities for wire artists
to market and sell their work, as well as raising
the cultural profile of Southern African wire art
practices. The work produced was one of the
most prominent examples of wire art exhibited
in a fine art institution. African Robots and
SPACECRAFT exhibited at a prominent new
fine art museum, the Zeitz MOCAA in Cape
Town, as part of an Afrofuturist exhibition
titled ‘Still Here Tomorrow’. The exhibition
offered a visible platform for the project, and the
impact of the NACSA’s funding programme for
creation of new work. It also furthers the aim
of the broader project to celebrate wire art as a
local vernacular form that can be applied to fine
art projects. It has also opened new territory
in elevating the status of wire art that provides
artists with new opportunities and platforms for
their art form and profession.
An economic impact that the project manifested
was to raise the value of wire art and increase
the opportunities for income of not just the wire
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SUCCESS
STORIES

1.

PROGRAMME:
INNOVATION, DESIGN
AND CREATION

Meet Ralph Borland,
the Artist Behind
‘African Robots meets
SPACECRAFT’

artists who worked on the project and who are
credited in the exhibition, but of a wider wire
art community. The project has put wire art on
an elevated stage and has demonstrated a new
kind of art work that combines many artistic
approaches in a highly collaborative way. The
project combined sculpture, music, mechanics,
sound and technology and in that way it
combined cultural forms from a range of diverse
groups.
The plan was to produce larger scale work that
demonstrates the potential of wire art in making
technological, interactive and spectacular
African art, for a gallery and public space. The
pieces which needed to be realised were a flying
sculptural drone (Zimbabwe Space Station); a
large-scale audio interactive sculpture (Dubship
I: Black Starliner) and a triptych of large-scale
53

high resolution photographs that revealed
the highly skilled artisanship of some wire
artists. The works pulled in a range of
communities and collaborators to realise
the work; an essential part of the project
was the way it draws together communities
of practice. The beneficiary required
funding to support the development and
exhibition of this new work.
According to Borland, as with all his
work, African Robots “pursues an
interdisciplinary approach to teasing
out issues of power, activism, social
engagement via designed objects… and
combines interventionist art, design
fiction and social engagement”.

T

ORIGINS

he NAC has supported the Origins
with grant assistance of R300 000
to create puppetry work which
was workshopped and staged. The
project was an artistic collaboration between
artists specialising in different but related
performance media. With this project the
beneficiary planned on building creative
capacity and social cohesion. The project
aimed to develop the language between
the artistic disciplines using puppetry as a
media of expression. The project resulted
in a professional theatrical production and
two in-depth workshops aimed at skills
transfer and broadening the language of the
interdisciplinary collaboration.

between three artists specialising in three
different activities but related disciplines
namely puppetry, music and dance.

Furthermore, the project planned on
building capacity amongst emerging and
established creatives. It assisted emerging
artists to develop performance skills,
aesthetic thinking and collaboration skills.

After the workshop process was completed
a dramaturge was developed by the
beneficiary and Janni Younge. Origins
was then brought to life with full music
and dance pieces which were specifically
designed for the show. After all the
development and constructions, Origins was
showed at Magnet Theatre on the 02 March
2019. The beneficiary stated that income
generated from ticket sales had enabled him
to create more jobs and to assist three more
emerging artists learn the basics of puppetry
performances. The project was implemented
and fully within the time frames which were
proposed by the beneficiary.

The National Arts Council of South Africa
supported the project (for an amount of
R300,000.00) towards the creation of the
work and a workshop component. The
project brought new artists (the artists were
graduates from University of Cape Town
and Durban University of Technology) into
the professional performance space. The
collaboration of artists created a work called
the Origins which is an artistic collaboration
54

2.

The first step was to develop a new work,
discover dramaturgy and story of the work.
That process needed to be achieved through
collective ideas and building collaborative
relationships via a workshop process with
performers, testing experimenting and
expanding on both the relationship between
puppet characters and between puppets,
movements and music. The full body of the
work was achieved in working with dancers,
puppeteers and musicians like Derek
Gripper.
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3.

PROGRAMME:
SOCIAL COHESION
AND NATION BUILDING

There is No Us or
Them Because We
Are All from One: I
SEE YOU
PAST’s Walking Tall corporate theatre
show, ‘I SEE YOU’ was premised
on palaeontological research and
education in Africa. In light of this,
PAST looked to share the message of the
origins of humankind which point to
early traces of life being found in Africa.
“I See You”, a science theatre production,
communicated scientific facts using physical
theatre to engage, educate and challenge
the audience on issues related to the origins
of humankind, animals and plants - which
all form part of living species on Earth. The
intimate and vigorous bodies of the two male
performers spoke volumes of the intricate
and substantial relationship between
man, animals and nature. It portrayed the
intricate merging and evolution of both as
well as how plants complete this relationship
and provide the nutrients necessary for
the growth and development of both man
and animal. This is aimed at informing and
encouraging society to protect, preserve and
conserve all forms of life.
The project, through the performance of “I
see you” is impactful in that it encourages
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and compels the audience to acknowledge
- physically and significantly see each of
the elements of creation as we know it.
It causes humankind to consider life as
we know it currently, as well as life as it
has developed and evolved. It reinforces
humankind’s dominion over animals and
the plants of the earth, and emphasises the
need to take better care of the earth through
methods of preservation. Added to this, it
calls for humankind, people from all races,
cultures, genders and beliefs to see and
know the significance and importance of
all differences and how these form a part
of the whole of creation. A further benefit
of the project and performance is that it is
tailor-made to suite its various audiences,
it provides an opportunity for this message
to be communicated and understood at the
level of the audience. The production is
taken to various audiences such as schools
and communities. The performance of
scientific perspectives carries a strong
message against discrimination and
destruction of bio-diversity. The cultural
impact of this production is two-fold: firstly,
it influences and impacts the culture of
conservation of the natural bio-diversity
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on earth and secondly, dismisses and
overthrows notions relating to varying
theories of the origins of humankind as
well as nature. It teaches audiences the
importance of recognising that all people
of all races and cultures all originate from
Africa and are important to the survival of
each other as well as that of nature.
Funding was for two main initiatives of
PAST’s acclaimed Walking Tall Educational
Theatre Project including: 1) Walking Tall
physical theatre workshops for secondary
school and community audiences in South
Africa, for which 23 workshops for 3,722
learners and 147 educators were delivered
at schools and festivals in South Africa and
2) development of new learning resources
to augment the Walking Tall workshops,
featuring a series of three five-minute
Walking Tall videos entitled “African
Homeland,” Human Unity Amid Diversity,”
and “The Tree of Life.”
Beneficiaries of the upcoming Walking Tall
season included learners, educators and
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community member in five South African
provinces (Eastern Cape, Free State,
Limpopo, Mpumalanga, Northern Cape).
The new Walking Tall videos will benefit
schools and communities throughout all
of South Africa, with potentially tens of
thousands of individual beneficiaries who
have access to YouTube. The performance
took place at the Women’s Jail, Constitution
Hill on the 18th April 2019.
It has also impacted on educational value
which has been proven over the years to
have high educational impacts for learners
and community members, as annually
demonstrated by the results of the rigorous
monitoring and evaluation system PAST
has maintained for the project for many
years. Added benefits of the programme saw
theatre artists receive training in physical
theatre and training in other diverse theatre
skills by the project’s theatre director.
The quality of this training is reflected in
the large number of Walking Tall alumni
who have gone on to continue pursuing
successful acting careers.
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4.

I

n line with its new funding model and
enhanced strategy, the NAC has taken
an active stand in ensuring that public
funding, which it disperses, is done in
a manner which influences a transformed,
sustainable and impactful Arts and Culture
and Creative Industries sector. One aspect
of this is through the NAC’s Emergency
Funding.
It is worth noting here that the NAC
funding body in all of South Africa which
provides emergency financial assistance
to creatives. Individual creatives and arts
organisations who have been invited to
perform, participate or creatively contribute
at international workshops, conferences,
exhibitions or any other creative activities
outside of the country may be considered for
emergency funding, if invitations come after
the announced NAC funding closing dates.
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PROGRAMME:
CAPACITY BUILDING

These projects have been beneficial in
terms of their capacity building, creative
and economic value. These projects have
been well aligned to the Arts Platforms,
Exhibitions and Festivals programme
and Capacity Building programmes. Arts
Platforms, Exhibitions and Festivals is
premised on the NAC’s identification of the
need to support and encourage creatives
in terms of increasing access to these
platforms. While the Capacity Building
programme looks to provide support to
creatives in terms of learning and skills
training initiatives aimed at improving and
contributing to the further development of
the creative.
Below is an account of three of the
emergency projects funded by the NAC in
which impact and value of the NAC’s funding
can be considered.
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XOLANE
MARMAN
postgraduate Diploma in Music Performance. Marman has since received recognition from his local arts community and
was afforded the opportunity to study at the
Mannheim Opera House in 2017.

On the left: Xolane Marman

M

arman has dedicated his
educational career towards
developing and enhancing his
opera skills and knowledge.
Marman has in light of this participated in a
number of studies and international stage
competitions, and was awarded the Diploma for Senior Vocal in Opera at the Knysna/
Plett Eisteddfod competition and awarded
Gold Certificate in 2009. In 2007, he had
his first recording experience funded by the
UK Lottery at the Peace of Eden Recording
Studio and toured England, performing in
theatres and concert halls around Doncaster, London and Brighton.
In March of 2016, The Marman was selected,
as part of Top 30 singers around the world,
to partake in the Debora Voigt Inaugural
International Vocal Competition, Florida,
USA. In 2011 he started his opera studies
(training as lyric tenor under voice trainer
Mr. Patrick Tikolo) at the University of Cape
Town (College of Music), where he obtained
his Performers Diploma in Opera and his
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Marman was granted emergency funding
to facilitate for his participation in a Stage
Directing Traineeship at the Opernhaus
Zürich in December 2018 to January 2019.
Marman was funded taking into account
that the opportunity presented to him, to
take part in the Stage Trainee programme,
aligned with the NAC’s objectives of achieving increased access to markets and enabling
creative engagement for South African arts and
artists. Added to this, the opportunity to
fund this project also aligned to the NAC’s
goals of achieving global recognition for our
unique South African arts and culture and developing a sustainable capacity that enables the
arts to entertain, enrich and inspire.
This project was supported by the Capacity Building Panel, which stated that “the
invitation was a great opportunity to advance Marman’s opera professional career”.
Furthermore, the panel added that “this
opportunity would allow Marman a unique
opportunity to further develop his operatic
skills at a prestigious international opera
house such as in Zurich, “especially in view
of the limited opportunities that are available in South Africa”. Marman was funded
R20 000.00 towards his visa and subsistence costs.
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5.

V

iolist, Jean-Louis Moolman is
a violist and had been invited
to deliver a lecture-recital as
part of the Viola Congress
conference taking place in Rotterdam. For
this reason, the applicant requested NAC
funding towards the cost of her travel to
the Netherlands. Moolman was funded
R29 850.00 towards the costs of her travel,
accommodation and per diem for the
duration of the conference.

“this project was a
“great opportunity
for the creative arts
of South Africa
to be exposed
internationally at
that level”.
This project was a “great opportunity for the
creative arts of South Africa to be exposed
internationally at that level”.
In her current position as lecturer at the
University of the Free State, Moolman is
in a position not only to teach but to assist
in creating new opportunities for music
students at the University and the music
community she serves. For this reason, her
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JEANNELOUISE
MOOLMAN

experience and exposure to the international
music industry will go some way in creating
new opportunities for the University as well
as for her students.
Furthermore, this opportunity provided
international exposure and recognition of
South African viola repertoire, it contributed
towards giving the South African classical
music genre as well as the artists who have
been a part of the production, international
acclaim and recognition for their
contribution.
By granting funding towards this project,
the NAC contributed towards providing
a platform for the beneficiary to access
and gain exposure to international expert
knowledge and educational opportunities.
This too, was an opportunity for the
composers of the repertoire, Tsepho
Tsotetsi and Mokale Koapeng. This project
allowed for the exposure of South African
viola musician and composers as well as the
rich African culture expressed through the
repertoire.
The project was in line with the NAC’s goals
of achieving global recognition for our unique
South African arts and culture and achieving
increased access to markets and enable creative
engagement for South African arts and artists.
Due to the nature of this conference, the
application falls within the scope of the
Capacity Building Programme, but is also
well aligned to Arts Platforms/ showcase/

59

exhibitions/ festivals programme as it offers
a practical component of skills development,
educational and exposure to a platform for
showcasing.
It may be worth noting that the benefits
of educational programmes like these
may in some instances have a direct
impact not only on the immediate music
community of the Free State (which is one
of the provinces considered as a priority
province which is under-represented
with regards to allocation of funds from
the NAC), but that the exposure and
experience gained by Moolman should
be used as an instrument to further
contribute to and develop the skills
of viola students and musicians in the
country.
Notably, these projects have also had
elements that could be holistically aligned
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to the NAC’s programmes. These projects
were premised on access to international
platforms, improving and further
contributing to the development of the
creatives respectively. The invitations
presented to them to participate in these
projects, paired with the financial support
from the NAC’s emergency funding goes
some way in: transforming their dreams and
opportunities into reality and in investing in
truly and proudly South African arts.
Funding such projects allows the NAC to
make a significant contribution in the lives of
individual creatives, enables local, social and
creative impact brought about by the work
done by these creatives, who in their own
creative production advocate for the benefit
and value of the arts, create employment for
other local creatives and act as ambassadors
for the South African Arts on international
platforms.
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6.

K

gotso Pati is the only known and
established black South African
glassblowing artist. His glass
sculptures incorporate design, craft
and visual arts. Pati has been identified and
acknowledged by the arts industry, interior
designers and hotel owners as a producer
of versatile and uniquely South African
sculptures influenced by traditional South
African beadwork.
Pati held his solo exhibition at the Pretoria
Art Museum in 2017 and has participated
in a number of group exhibitions. Added to
this, Pati has been the recipient of numerous
awards including the Gauteng Premier’s
Excellence Award (2018), the Thami Mnyele
Award (2016) and was selected as a finalist of
the ABSA Art Competition (2012).
Pati was selected by the Small Enterprise
Development Agency (SEDA) to exhibit his
sculptures at the New York Now Exhibition,
2019. This exhibition took place from the 3rd
February to the 5th February 2019 in New
York City. SEDA has in this regard provided
Pati, together with the other artists selected
with accommodation, travel expenses and
exhibition costs. The costs not included in
SEDA’s sponsorship were requested from the
NAC; Pati exhibited under the Exhibition’s
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PROGRAMME:
ARTS PLATFORMS/
SHOWCASES/
EXHIBITIONS AND
FESTIVALS: KGOTSO
PATI

Handmade Collection; this collection is
dedicated to authentic and eco-friendly
designs which are “the industry’s hallmark of
design and craftsmanship across all media”.
Recommendations to fund Pati were received
from the Panel of Chairpersons Committee,
which stated that Pati “is an artistically strong
artists, who creates artistic designs which are
African-inspired glass objects and sculptures”.
Added to this, the panel emphasised the fact
that “Pati’s work is of a high professional
standard and it is encouraging that the art of
glass making from SA is being showcased and
promoted at an international exhibition”.
Pati was funded R44 621.60 towards his visa
and travel costs, subsistence, marketing costs,
packaging and shipping costs.
This project was funded in line with the
Arts Platforms/ Showcases/ Exhibitions and
Festivals programme. With the NAC’s goals of
creating a vibrant, inclusive and transformed arts
and culture sector, to achieve global recognition
for our unique South African arts and culture and
to achieve increased access to markets and enable
creative engagement for South African arts and
artists; as well as developing a sustainable capacity
that enables the arts to entertain, enrich and
inspire.
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7. LALELA
The total number of teachers trained
were 1,080 from 787 schools in seven
provinces. The provinces who completed the
programme were Western Cape, Northern
Cape, Eastern Cape, KwaZulu-Natal, Free
State, Mpumalanga, Limpopo.

L

alela provides educational arts for atrisk youth to spark creative thinking
and awaken the entrepreneurial
spirit. Through Lalela’s arts
curriculum and critical messaging component,
we ignite imagination and teach children how
to map and manifest their dreams and goals,
launching the possibility of a different future
for themselves and their communities.
Everyday after-school, in the hours when
children are most vulnerable to abuse of
every kind, we work to break the barriers of
challenge. We start early (age 6) in developing
the art of imagination and we continue
through to grade 12 to connect the arts to
everything important in a child’s life, from
core academics to critical life skills.
Our role in arts education is to help blaze the
trail in whole brain thinking with a proven
path to innovation and new job creation. Our
programs create permanent change with
positive outlooks, community role models
and the mindset for our students to design a
more certain future for themselves and their
communities.
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From the most recent M&E (monitoring and
evaluation) report, the following statistics
are available:
• 91% of learners whose teachers
received Heart Maps training indicated
that they have more respect for others
due to the Heart Maps project.
• 94% of teachers who were interviewed
reported seeing positive changes
in learners due to Heart Maps,
particularly how they relate to their
peers.
• 77% of learners indicated that they
changed the way they think about
themselves, for the better.
• Learners reported positive changes in
knowledge and skills.
• The majority of learners indicated that
they learned some new art skills from
the project.
• Learners indicated that they had
gained many valuable intangible/
soft skills, such as how to be less
judgmental, how to be kind, how to
self-evaluate, better listening skills,
how to be more open, the importance
of being kind, the importance of
perseverance, increased ability to act
respectfully, how to share and how to
be honest.
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•

Chantel Ross, subject advisor for the
Cape Winelands district of the Western
Cape Education Department (WCED),
has said about the trainings: “Valuable
skills [are] taught to teachers to apply
and implement in their classes that
would assist them in understanding the

learners better” and; “The educators
that attended were as excited about
going through the workshop...as they
could see and experience first-hand the
benefits of the well-structured activities
to be used effectively in class.”

8. HESOP

T

he Heritage Education Schools
Outreach Programme is aimed at
granting learners an opportunity
to know more about their heritage
and culture as a tool of nation building. For
the past years, this programme has had a
positive impact on the lives of the youth
equipping them with a sense of purpose and
appreciation of our cultural diversity. The
project was supported by the Department of
Basic Education (DBE), National Heritage
Council (NHC) together with its partners
the NAC, South African National Parks
(SANParks), South Africa Heritage Resources
Agency (SAHRA), Brand South Africa and
the National Film and Video Foundation
(NFVF). The school programme seeks to
develop young people who are proud of their
African heritage to conserve it for future
generations.
This is an annual national schools project for
grade 8 to 11 learners aimed at encouraging
the youth to know their heritage better as
well as exploring traditions of other cultures.
Schools in the country challenge each other
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to represent their province at a week-long
camp at a national heritage site where
learners are taken through an educational
exchange experience of a lifetime.
The week-long heritage camp from 01 – 05
October 2018, took place at the ecological
and historical Golden Gate Highlands
National Park in the Free State, where
participants including educators had the
pleasure of experiencing the natural cultural
heritage and beauty of the park through the
Brandwag Rock hike as well as a visit to the
Basotho Cultural Village. Learners were
given a glimpse of the traditions and culture
of the Basotho people and were tasked with
assignments based on their excursions to
present to the judges.
The top four outstanding schools out of the
nine are; George Mbulaleni High School
from Limpopo in first place, followed by a
KwaZulu-Natal’s Nsikayethu High School,
Selelekela Secondary School from Free State
took third place and the fourth place went to
Western Cape’s John Ramsay High School.
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9.

PROGRAMME:
STRATEGIC
INITIATIVES:
THE FORGOTTEN
ANGLE THEATRE
COLLABORATIVE
NPC

My body my space
arts festival

T

he My Body My Space Arts Festival
(MBMS)is a festival of cuttingedge performances, installations
and exhibitions that unfold in
public spaces throughout the Emakhazeni
Municipality, in rural Mpumalanga.
Since its inception in 2015, the festival, curated
by the Forgotten Angle Theatre Collaborative,
has developed a unique rural identity and has
gained a reputation for programming work
that is driven by socio-political activism.
In 2019 the MBMS festival marked and
celebrated 25 years of South Africa’s
Democracy. Anchored around Freedom Day
on the 27th April, MBMS 2019 was a creative
platform that celebrated and interrogated the
notion of Freedom.
The festival had 3 programmes:
The Arteries Programme took place from
23- 26 April and provided educational
theatre experiences for children and youth
in Machadodorp, Emthonjeni, Belfast,
Siyathuthuka, Dullstroom, Sakhelwe and
Waterval-Boven/ Emgwenya
The Workshop, Skills Development and
Collaborations programme took place
from 24-26 April and included skills
exchange workshops, arts processes and
mini-training programs offered by Visiting
Artists, Facilitators and Technicians. This
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development component of the festival
was focused on youth, children, women and
people with disabilities and accessed FATC’s
extensive and on-going ELM LEAP Partner
network and local schools.
The Central Nervous System Programme
and the Workshop and Training Programme.
This was the main programme and it took
place from 23 - 28 April 2019. The CNS curated
programme took place in Machadodorp,
Emthonjeni, at the Ebhudlweni Arts Centre
and surrounding areas and was made up of
a selection of commissioned performances.
The audience was guided through an array of
performances, installations and exhibitions
that were held in various public sites such as
street corners, old stations, tourist attraction
sites, rural farms and abandoned buildings.
The project is committed to stimulating the
Emakhazeni economy growing job creation
and developing a vibrant arts and culture
tourism sector. Through NAC funding
the programme is committed to rural
development through providing access to
quality arts experiences and to showcase
work with social conscience.
They had 55 local beneficiaries creating new
work, round table discussions were held
with SADC artists to foster relations with the
following countries: Mozambique, Zimbabwe,
Tanzania and South Africa.
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10.

A

rts education contributes to
an education which integrates
physical, intellectual and creative
faculties. It makes possible more
dynamic and fruitful relations between
education, arts and culture and encourages
capabilities required in facing the 21st
century challenges.
It is critical for learning environments to
develop cognitive as well as emotional
intelligence skills and not have more value
placed on cognitive skills as is currently the
case.
A sufficient body of knowledge and
information exists to indicate that arts
education is critical as a means to enhancing
learning as a whole.
Africa meets Africa has proved beyond doubt
that the material produced will go a long way
in demonstrating the value of arts education
in improving learning. The book illustrated
visual arts, working with mathematics and
history.
Africa meets Africa has established a process
involving research and documenting the
visual cultural expression of particular
cultural landscapes in consultation with
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AFRICA
MEETS
AFRICA

artists, traditional leaders and local
government.
The end result of this process is a series of
richly illustrated resource books and films.
The resource books were introduced
to teachers during training workshops,
presented in partnership with local
government education departments in each
of the rural areas researched.
Project objectives include not only
documenting traditions before they die out,
but also making the work of rural artists
known.
One of the problems with the teaching of
Geometry has been that neither teachers nor
learners have been able to see the relevance
of the topic. By exposing teachers and
learners to the material in a familiar context,
as Africa meets Africa: Ndebele Women
designing Identity does, they will quickly see
the relevance of Geometry to everyday life.
A mathematics writer teacher trainer Jackie
Scheiber has developed innovative Grade
9 learning content on the Theorem of
Pythagoras; Besides illustrating the geometry
of transformations and exposing learners to
many different irregular polygons, the art of
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the Ndebele people illustrates a practical application
of the Theorem of Pythagoras
‘From this home base programme Dr Esther
Mahalngu has managed to draw interests of
the world, as the Belvedre HIV/AIDS campaign,
American singer John Legend and BMW to name
a few. During the day workshops programme 10
schools were trained in the Nkangala district

(Mpumalanga). The teacher guide and learner
guide books illustrates four subjects, History,
Mathematics, Visual Arts and English.
The three master artists, Dr Esther Mahlangu,
Sophie Mahlangu or Esfuer Mngunj visited schools
to also introduce learners to the heritage and the
practice of Ndebele art.’

PROGRAMME NAME: MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS
STRATEGIC GOAL 5: INCREASED ACCESS TO THE
GOAL 5:
ARTS THROUGH ADVOCACY
Table 8 : Goal 5 Increased access to the arts through advocacy
Strategic
Objectives

Performance
Indicator

Actual
Achievement
2017/2018

Planned
Target
2018/2019

Actual
Achievement
2018/2019

Deviation
from
Planned
Target for
2018/2019

Variance
from
2017/18 to
2018/19
(if applicable)

Comment
on
Variances

Position and
strengthen
the NAC
brand
and increase
stakeholder
awareness
and
engagement

Update and
implement
brand
communication
strategy

Brand
communication
strategy
updated and
implemented

Review, update
and implement
brand
communication
strategy

Brand
communications
strategy reviewed
and updated

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Table 9: Strategic Goal 5: Increased access to the arts through advocacy
Strategic
Objectives

Performance
Indicator

Actual
Achievement
2017/2018

Planned Target
2018/2019

Actual
Achievement
2018/2019

Deviation
from
Planned
Target for
2018/2019

Variance
from
2017/18 to
2018/19
(if
applicable)

Comment
on
Variances

Update and
implement
brand
communication
strategy

Brand
communication
strategy
updated and
implemented

Review, update
and implement
brand
communication
strategy

Brand
communications
strategy reviewed
and updated

Brand communications strategy reviewed
and updated

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable

Not
Applicable
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4.2

COMMUNICATIONS

The Communication and Marketing
Unit provides the link between the NAC,
stakeholders and the broader sector.
Strategic Objectives of the Programme
The 2018/19 objectives of the programme were
to advocate the arts and the work of the NAC by
developing a clear positioning of the NAC brand,
ensuring stakeholder understanding of the
NAC’s role and positioning in the arts ecosystem.
The programme aims to utilise traditional,
electronic and social media.
Key Performance Measures, Targets and
Results
For the period review, numerous activities were
carried out through the programme to enhance
the NAC’s brand and position the NAC as an
effective, holistic and development-orientated
organisation. Fulfilling some of the unit’s
programme was a challenge for 8 months due
to the absence of a PR agency which carries out
the services of PR services on a monthly basis.
With the minimum capacity of the departments
resources they had to be stretched to fulfil and
also keep relevant to a forever changing industry.
The NAC actively maintains its website and a
range of social media platforms to communicate
with the sector and in the year under review
the NAC managed to create and launch its new
brand evolution, Instagram page and a YouTube

Table 10

channel. These activities were created with the
aim to keep stakeholders informed, educated,
updated and also penetrating another market
of audience. The NAC’s website has always
remained the same since its inception in 1997 and
was very limiting to use on a standard template.
The NAC website was also launched in the year
under view with the new brand evolution and
user friendly mode with features that allow
videos to be uploaded and played.
The extreme challenges that the unit
experienced were a number of negative media
statements and an absence of a PR agency.
The successful work of the NAC could not be
positioned in a wider and positive range due to
limited resources, this measurement affected
the reputation of the NAC as negative media
surfaced more than positive stories about the
NAC.
The NAC delivered on an effective internal
communication functions and identity. The
Unit fulfilled its plan, under the auspices of
which, the following activities facilitating
information and knowledge exchange between
were implemented: to facilitate information and
knowledge exchanges between the NAC and
its stakeholders. It encompassed a variety of
workshops held to assist in unpacking the new
strategy, goals and funding for impact.

SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS FOR
PROGRAMMES
2017/2018

Communications

Total

Budget

2018/2019

Actual
Expenditure

Over)/Under
Expenditure

Budget

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

1 580

1 776

(196)

1 838

1 462

376

1 580

1 776

(196)

1 838

1 462

376
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3.3

Programme 2: Human Resources,
IT and Financial Administration

The NAC’s Human Resources, Information Technology and Financial resources are
administered by a programme responsible for:
• Financial management;
• Human resources management and development;
• Information technology management and development; and
• Administration management, particularly in support of grant administration.

Strategic objectives, performance
indicators planned targets and actual
achievements
Strategic objectives
The objectives of the programme in 2018/19
were to promote effective corporate
governance by:
•
•
•
•

Achieving an unqualified audit report;
Ensuring compliance with relevant
legislation;
Complying with the King IVTM Report
where applicable
Monitoring and reporting on strategic
objectives;

The objectives of this programme also
included developing systems to improve
efficiency and effectiveness in the delivery of
service by:
•
•
•
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Developing a skilled workforce and
efficiently administer human resources;
Managing risks effectively; and
Implementing cost saving initiatives.

“The NAC
delivered on
an effective
internal
communication
functions and
identity.”
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Table 11:

Goal 6: DEVELOPMENT OF CREDIBLE AND CATALYTIC
ORGANISATION

Strategic
Objectives

Performance
Indicator

Actual
Achievement
2017/2018

Planned
Target
2018/2019

Actual
Achievement
2018/2019

Deviation from
Planned
Target for
2018/2019

Variance
from 2017/18
to 2018/19
(if applicable)

Comment
on Variances

Implement HR
strategy

Implemented
enhanced HR
strategy

Review HR
strategy and
annual HR
plan reviewed
and 86% of
HR strategy
and HR
annual plan
implemented

Enhance HR
strategy and
develop
annual HR
plan

HR strategy
and HR plan
reviewed and
96% of HR
strategy and
annual HR
plan implemented

4% of HR
strategy and
HR plan not
implemented

10% more of
HR strategy
and HR plan
implemented

A portion of
the Culture
change
Programme
was started in
2018/19 and
continues in
2019/20. A
comprehensive Organsational Design
(Road Map)
has been
designed
in ensuring
that the HR
activities
are properly
aligned to the
new enhanced
strategy.

Implement
performance
management
system

Approval of an
implementation
plan for a
performance
management
system

Not Applicable

Approval of
performance
management
system

Performance
management
system not
approved

Performance management
system not
approved

Not Applicable

Performance
management
policy implementation
plan has been
drafted but
the system
will only be
rolled out
in 2019/20
due to lack
of capacity
and time
constraints

Implement ICT
governance
framework

Implement ICT
governance
framework

ICT
governance
framework
implemented

Review ICT
strategy and
annual ICT
plan

ICT Strategy
and ICT
annual plan
reviewed

Not Applicable

ICT Strategy and ICT
annual plan
reviewed

Not Applicable

Implement
effective
financial
management

Implement
effective
financial
management

Unqualified
audit
outcome

Unqualified
audit outcome

Improvement
of business
processes

Improvement
of business
processes

Not Applicable

Implementation of
new business
processes

New business
processes
approved

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Evaluation
of council
subcommittees
and advisory
panels

Evaluation
of council
subcommittees
and advisory
panels

Evaluations
of council and
advisory
panels not
conducted

Performance
evaluation of
council subcommittees
and advisory
panels

Performance
evaluation of
council subcommittees
and advisory
panels not
completed

Performance
evaluation
of council
subcommittees and
advisory
panels not
completed

Performance
evaluation
of council subcommittees
and advisory
panels not
completed

The performance
evaluation of
council subcommittees
and advisory
panels were
deferred to
the 2019/20
due resources
not committed.
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The NAC has maintained an unqualified audit
outcome in other words a clean audit, for the
financial year ended March 2019.
The new Grant Management System (GMS) was
successfully piloted with bursary applications
in September 2017. The roll out of GMS has
improved efficiency in the way applicants apply
for grants and how the NAC office process
submitted applications. In the new financial year,
all applications will use the online system and
will be monitored to ensure a smooth transition
from the previous GMS. Although the system has
been launched as an online system, the NAC still
continues to receive applications manually to
cater for applicants who might not have access to
internet. Forms submitted through the manual
process will still be captured on the GMS. This
move supports the NAC strategy in embracing
technology to enhance operational effectiveness.
The NAC website, which is currently not userfriendly, has been modified and will be launched in
the new financial year.

Table 12:

The ICT unit has continued to work towards
the enhancement of the Grant Management
System(GMS) in ensuring that its easily accessible
via a link provided, user friendly, clear and precise,
that enough storage is provide for uploading
documentation as well as that the discussion board
queries are responded to timeously. With the
welcoming of this system from our stakeholders
and the availability of internal clients of the NAC
to support them through the application process,
this is in line with the NAC strategy in embracing
technology to enhance operational effectiveness.
In order to establish the effectiveness of the system,
it was agreed that a survey will be sent to applicants
to measure the value of the GMS system. A threeyear company funding form as well as an Emergency
funding form were developed and tested prior to the
call being opened.
Going forward, an overall GMS administration
process document will be developed and circulated to
redress gaps that were discovered within the system.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS, PLANNED TARGETS AND
ACTUAL ACHIEVEMENTS

Performance
Indicator

Actual
Achievement
2017/2018

Planned Target 2018/2019

Actual Achievement 2018/2019

Deviation
from Planned
Target for
2018/2019

Variance from
2017/18 to
2018/19
(if applicable)

Comment on
Variances

Implemented
enhanced HR
strategy

Review HR
strategy and
annual HR
plan reviewed
and 86% of HR
strategy and
HR annual plan
implemented

Enhance HR
strategy and
develop
annual HR
plan

HR strategy and
HR plan reviewed
and 96% of HR
strategy and
annual HR plan
implemented

4% of HR strategy and HR plan
not implemented

10% more of
HR strategy
and HR plan
implemented

A portion of the
Culture change
Programme was
started in 2018/19
and continues in
2019/20.

Approval of an
implementation
plan for a
performance
management
system

Not Applicable

Approval of
performance
management
system

Performance
management system not approved

Performance
management
system not
approved

Not Applicable

Performance
management
policy implementation plan has
been drafted but
the system will
only be rolled out
in 2019/20 due to
lack of capacity
and time constraints

70

National Arts Council of South Africa Annual Report 2018/19

Implement ICT
governance
framework

ICT governance
framework
implemented

Review ICT
strategy and
annual ICT
plan

ICT Strategy and
ICT annual plan
reviewed

Not Applicable

ICT Strategy and
ICT annual plan
reviewed

Not Applicable

Implement
effective
financial
management

Unqualified
audit
outcome

Unqualified
audit outcome

Improvement
of business
processes

Not Applicable

Implementation
of new business
processes

New business
processes approved

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Evaluation
of council
subcommittees
and advisory
panels

Evaluations
of council and
advisory panels
not
conducted

Performance
evaluation of
council subcommittees
and advisory
panels

Performance
evaluation of
council subcommittees and
advisory panels
not completed

Performance
evaluation of
council subcommittees and
advisory panels
not completed

Performance
evaluation of
council subcommittees and
advisory panels
not completed

The performance
evaluation of
council subcommittees and
advisory panels
were deferred to
the 2019/20 due
resources not
committed.

SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS FOR
PROGRAMMES

Table 13

2017/2018
Programme/
activity/objective

2018/2019

Budget

Actual
Expenditure

Over)/Under
Expenditure

Budget

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

Finance, IT
and Human
Resources

31 872

35 913

(4 041)

32 986

37 205

(4 219)

Total

31 872

35 913

(4 041)

32 986

37 205

(4 219)

5

REVENUE COLLECTION
2017/2018

2018/2019

Sources of
revenue

Budget

Actual
Expenditure

Over)/Under
Expenditure

Budget

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

Grant

106
241

106
869

(628)

109
677

109
677

0

Other income

0

38

(38)

0

16

(16)

Interest

0

1 856

(1 856)

0

1 843

(1 843)

Total

106 241

108 763

(2 522)

109 677

111 536

(1 859)
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The NAC has maintained an unqualified
audit outcome with no findings, for the
financial year ended 31 March 2019.
The NAC received revenue as per the
approved ENE and schedule of withdrawal
and did not have any under collection of
revenue. All revenue targets are monitored
monthly, quarterly and annually through
financial reporting. The revenue received

5.1

by the NAC does not cover the demands
received by the sector, however, the NAC uses
a target approach to funding in an attempt
to meeting its mandate. The target on the
revenue is exceeded due to the fact that the
NAC does not budget for interest income
and other income. The NAC is embarking
on resource mobilisation and forming
partnership to achieve its full mandate.

CAPITAL INVESTMENT

The NAC does not have substantive infrastructure projects and capital expenditure that is
managed within the finance section.
2017/2018
Infrastructure
projects

Total
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Budget

Actual
Expenditure

2018/2019
Over)/Under
Expenditure

Budget

Actual
Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

R’000

628

628

0

1 800

600

1 200

628

628

0

1 800

600

1 200
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PART c
Governance
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01

INTRODUCTION
The NAC is a Schedule 3A public entity established in terms of the National Arts Council Act (Act No. 56 of 1997) (NAC Act). The corporate
governance principles of the National Arts Council (NAC) are governed
by the NAC Act, as amended by the Cultural Laws Amendment Act (Act
No. 36 of 2001) and the Public Finance Management Act (Act No. 1 of
1999) (PFMA). In addition, the NAC has a corporate governance framework in place, which is aligned with the King IV Report on Corporate
Governance in South AfricaTM3 (King IVTM).

The NAC’s corporate governance framework
was approved by Council in 2015 with a clear
definition of the roles and responsibilities of
the constituent elements of the organisation’s
management structure. This enables Council
to plan, execute, control and monitor the
NAC’s activities in accordance with its strategic
objectives. The delegation of authority
framework determines levels of authority for
Council and management in terms of financial
and operational decision-making. This includes
major investments, capital expenditure and
contractual engagements.
The internal audit function monitors
compliance with these authority levels and
checks for compliance with the corporate
governance framework. In terms of Section 4
of the NAC Act, the NAC functions under the
authority of a Council appointed by the Minister
of Arts and Culture. For the period under review,
the NAC had a 21 member Council. There were
two resignations from Ms Thandiwe ProfitMcLean and Mr Moshe Apleni during the year
under review. Council meetings were held
quarterly and, when necessary, special meetings
were convened.
The NAC maintained a functional Audit and
Risk Committee and internal audit function
for the year under review, in compliance with

the PFMA. The advisory panels, established in
terms of Section 11 of the Act and chaired by
the duly appointed Council member, facilitated
the allocation of Arts Organisation Support,
and project and bursary funding in the year
under review by evaluating applications and
making recommendations to Council. The
NAC further maintained a functional Executive
Committee as required in terms of the NAC
Act and a Council mandated Human Resource
Committee. Parliament, the Executive and the
Accounting Authority of the public entity are
responsible for corporate governance.

“ The NAC
maintained a
functional Audit
and Risk Committee
and internal audit
function for the year
under review, in
compliance with the
PFMA. ”

3The King IV Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa 2016 and the copyright and trademarks for King IV are owned by the Institute of Directors in
Southern Africa NPC and all of its rights are reserved with the required link http://www.iodsa.co.za/?page=AboutKingIV
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02

PORTFOLIO
COMMITTEES
The Parliamentary Portfolio Committee on Arts and Culture is
responsible for oversight on the work of the NAC, along with the
Department of Arts and Culture (DAC) and all other public entities
reporting to the DAC. The NAC appeared before the Portfolio Committee on the following occasion/s:

Dates
18 April 2018

Purpose
Gobodo Investigation report

29 August 2018
30 January 2019

Remedial Action on the Gobodo Report
Subpoena from the Public Protector

03
The NAC
reports
quarterly to
the Minister
of Arts and
Culture using
a template as
prescribed by
the DAC.
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EXECUTIVE
AUTHORITY
The NAC reports quarterly to the Minister of Arts and Culture using a
template as prescribed by the DAC. Furthermore, through the annual
Shareholder’s Compact signed by the NAC and the Minister of Arts
and Culture, a series of structures were established to promote effective relations between the DAC and the public entities that report to
it. A Chief Financial Officer’s Forum, CEO’s Forum and Chairpersons’
Forum were established. The NAC attended the following meetings in
the year under review.
Dates
29 June and
30 November 2018
2 March 2019
7 June 2018

Purpose
DAC CFO’s Forum
CEO’s Forum
Signing of Shareholder’s Compact
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04

THE ACCOUNTING
AUTHORITY
(COUNCIL)

According to the NAC Act, the Council has a direct responsibility for decisions with regard to grant
funding, and as such, the NAC Council is expaected to meet at least four times a year to approve
funding as well as oversight functions for the entity.

The role of the Council is as follows:
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
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It holds absolute responsibility for
the performance of the public entity;
It retains full and effective control
over the public entity;
It has to ensure that the public
entity complies with applicable laws,
regulations and government policy;
It has unrestricted access to
information of the public entity;
It formulates, monitors, reviews
corporate strategy, major plans of
action, risk policy, annual budgets
and business plans;
It ensures that the shareholders
‘performance objectives are
achieved;
It manages potential conflicts of
interest;
It develops a clear definition of
levels of materiality;
The Council must attend annual
meetings;
It ensures financial statements are
prepared;
The Council must appraise the
performance of the Chairperson;
It must ensure an effective Council
induction;
Must maintain integrity,
responsibility and accountability.
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COUNCIL
CHARTER
As recommended by the King Code, the Council has a charter setting out its responsibilities,
which should be disclosed in its annual report.
At a minimum, the charter should confirm:
•
•
•
•

The Councils’ responsibility for the
adoption of strategic plans,
Monitoring of operational performance
and management,
Determination of policy processes to
ensure the integrity of the public entity
risk management and internal controls,
Communication policy, and director
selection, orientation and evaluation

During the period under review the Council
complied with the Council Charter.

COMPOSITION
OF COUNCIL
The NAC Council comprises of 21 members.
However, the CEO and CFO are Ex-Officio
members. 21 Council members are appointed by
the Minister of Arts and Culture and 9 members
are Provincial representatives appointed by the
MECs of the presented provinces. During the
year under review, Ms Thandiwe January-Mclean
and Mr Moshe Apleni resigned from Council
and new appointments for the Provincial
representatives were Mr Jabulani Sithole for
KwaZulu-Natal, Mr Johannes Chisekula for
North West and Mr Phumulani Manzi for the
Northern Cape. According to section 8(1) of the
NAC Act, Council meets no less than three times
a year. However, the Chairperson may at any
time convene a special meeting with Council.
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NAC COUNCIL MEMBERS
AND DESIGNATIONS
NO. NAME

DESIGNATION

APPOINTMENT RESIGNATION
DATE
DATE

1.

Hartley Ngoato

•

Council Chairperson

1 January 2017

2.

Jabu Dlamini

•

Council Deputy
Chairperson
Mpumalanga Provincial
Representative

1 September 2015

ARC Chairperson

1 January 2017

•
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3.

Avril Joffe

•

4.

Erica Elk

HRC Chairperson

1 September 2015

5.

Bongani Mavuso

Council Member

1 January 2017
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NO. QUALIFICATIONS
1.

•
•
•

B. Proc
LLB
HRD Dip

AREA OF
EXPERTISE

BOARD OF
DIRECTORSHIP

•

•

Legal and
Human
Resources

•
•
•

2.

•
•
•

3.

•
•
•

4.

•
•
•

Bachelor Degree:
Humanities
Diploma: Education
Certificate: Project
Management

•

M Phil in
Development
Studies
BA in Economics
BA Honours in
Industrial Sociology

•

Cultural policy
Cultural
economy
research and
training

Diploma: Teaching
BA Fine Arts
Postgraduate
Diploma Fine Arts

•

Arts and Crafts

•

•

BA Degree:
Communication,
Information and
Technology,
Hons Degree: Social
Sciences

•
•

•
•

•

Member: Security •
Committee (Risk
Management);
Chair: Law
Council: School for
Legal Practice;
Chair:
Employment
Equity Committee;
Chair:
Occupational
Health and Safety
(Section 16)
Appointee

Social
Development

•

5.

Poetry and
Literature
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OTHER
COMMITTEES

South African
Student Travel
Service:
Director - Cape
Digital
Foundation

EXCO (Chair)

NUMBER OF
MEETINGS
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

EXCO
Provincial SubCommittee

•
•
•

Council 8
EXCO 1
Report to Minister
10
Public Protector
Report 3
Hand over
with previous
Chairperson 1
Board Secretary
Disciplinary
Hearings 8
Staff meeting 1

•

Council 9
EXCO 1
Provincial
Committee 1
Panel Chairs 2

•
•

ARC (Chair)
EXCO

•
•
•
•

Council 8
EXCO 1
ARC 7
Risk Workshop 1

•
•
•

HRC (Chair)
EXCO
Communication
Committee

•
•
•

HRC (Chair)
EXCO
Communication
Committee
Council 7
EXCO 1
HRC 2
Communication
Committee 1

•
•
•

•

Panel of Chairs
Committee

•
•

Council 4
Panel Chairs 2
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NO. NAME

DESIGNATION

APPOINTMENT RESIGNATION
DATE
DATE

6.

Thandiwe Profit-McLean

Council Member

1 January 2017

7.

Dr Same Mdluli

Innovation, Design and Creation 1 January 2017
Chairperson

8.

Edmund Mhlongo

Council Member

1 January 2017

9.

Mandy van der Spuy

Capacity Building Chairperson

1 January 2017

September 2018
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NO. QUALIFICATIONS
6.

•
•

7.

•
•
•
•

8.

•
•
•
•

•
9.
•
•

AREA OF
EXPERTISE

BOARD OF
DIRECTORSHIP

OTHER
COMMITTEES

NUMBER OF
MEETINGS

Bachelor’s Degree:
English and
Sociology,
Diploma: Public
Relations and
Organisational
Development
and Strategic
Management

•

•

•

HRC

•
•

Council 4
HRC 1

B-Tech: Fine Arts
(cum laude)
Certificate: Arts and
Culture Teacher
Training
MA: Arts
and Culture
Management
PhD: History of Art

•

Arts and Culture
(Visual Arts)

•

Panel of Chairs
Committee

•
•

Council 8
Panel Chairs 1

MPHL:
Development
Studies
BA Honours:
Sociology, Research
Methods
Doctorate: Business
Administration
(DBA)
Executive Diploma:
Quantitative
Methods

•

Business, Project
Management &
Administration

•

Council 6

Degree: Languages
and Literature
Postgraduate
Degree: Theatre
Studies
Master’s Degree:
Literature

•

Arts and Culture
(Literature)

•
•

Council 5
Panel Chairs 2

•
•

Human
Resources
Public Relations
Business
Management
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•

Board Member
of SA Express
Airways
BMW South Africa

•

Panel of Chairs
Committee
Panel of Chairs
Committee

83

84

NO. NAME

DESIGNATION

APPOINTMENT RESIGNATION
DATE
DATE

10.

Pheni Ngove

Council Member

1 January 2017

11.

Advocate Nakedi Ribane

Social Cohesion and Nation
Building Chairperson

1 January 2017

12.

Moshe Apleni

Western Cape Provincial
Representative

1 January 2017

13.

Jerry Mabuza

Gauteng Provincial
Representative

1January 2017

14.

Zolani Mkiva

Eastern Cape Provincial
Representative

1 January 2017

March 2019
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NO. QUALIFICATIONS
10.

•

•

•
•
•

•

11.

•
•
•

12.

•
•

AREA OF
EXPERTISE

National
Diploma: Public
Administration and
Management
Postgraduate
Diploma: Urban
Economic
Development
Postgraduate
Certificate: Law for
non-lawyers
Postgraduate
Certificate: Local
Government Law
Postgraduate
Certificate: Public
Finance and Fiscal
Management
Postgraduate
Certificate:
Advanced
Administrative Law

•

LLB
Certificate:
Marketing and
Research
Diploma: Speech
and Drama

•
•

•

Certificate: Business •
Leadership
Certificate: Desktop
Publishing

BOARD OF
DIRECTORSHIP

Business
Management
Finance

14.

•

•
•
•

Diploma: Further
Education and
Training, Arts
and Culture
Administration

•

BA: Social Science.
•
Hons: Development
Studies
Certificate: Training
-Community and
conflict resolution.

NUMBER OF
MEETINGS
•

Council 1

Legal matters
•
Arts and Culture
(Theatre)

Editorial Member •
: World Council of
Science and factual
producers

Panel of Chairs
Committee
(Chair)

•
•
•

Council 9
EXCO 1
Panel of Chairs
Committee 1

Business
Leadership and
media

Board Member:
Diocesan College
Council
Deputy
Chairperson:
Western
Cape Cultural
Commission:
EXCO member:
Old Diocesan
Union

•

Communication
Committee

•
•
•

Council 7
EXCO 1
Communications
Committee 1
Risk Workshop 1

Director:
Cathsseta.

•

•
•

•

13.

OTHER
COMMITTEES

Arts
Administration

•

•

•

Arts and Culture •
(Literature)
•
•
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Board Member:
Black Sea, Caspian
Sea: International
Fund
Board Member:
International
Delphic Council
Director:
Institution of
African Royalty

•

Provincial
Sub-Committee
(Chair)
EXCO

•
•
•

Council 9
EXCO 1
Provincial SubCommittee 1

Provincial SubCommittee

•
•

Council 6
Provincial Sub
Committee 0
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86

NO. NAME

DESIGNATION

APPOINTMENT RESIGNATION
DATE
DATE

15.

Thoko Nogabe

Free-State Provincial
Representative, Arts Platforms/
showcase Chairperson.

1January 2017

16.

Prof. Sekgothe Mokgoatšana

Limpopo Provincial
Representative

1 January 2017

17.

Maleshini Naidoo

Council Member

1 December 2017

18.

Michael Arendse

Strategic Initiatives Chairperson 1 January 2017

19.

Johannes Chisekula

North West Provincial
Representative

February 2019

20.

Phumulani Manzi

Northern Cape Provincial
Representative

November 2018

21.

Jabulani Sithole

KwaZulu-Natal Provincial
Representative

January 2019
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NO. QUALIFICATIONS
15.

16.

•

•

•

•
•

•

17.

•
•

18.

•
•
•

19.

•
•

Teacher;
Choreographer;
Actor; Musician

AREA OF
EXPERTISE
•

BOARD OF
DIRECTORSHIP

Music
Practitioner

OTHER
COMMITTEES

NUMBER OF
MEETINGS

•

Provincial SubCommittee
Panel of Chairs
Committee

•
•

•
•
•

Council 9
HRC 3
Provincial SubCommittee 1

•

•

Council 8
Provincial SubCommittee 1
Panel of Chairs
Committee 2

Education
Arts: Literature
and Music
Indigenous
Knowledge
Folklore Studies

•
•

Provincial SubCommittee
HRC

Bachelor of
•
Commerce Honours
degree (Accounting)
Bachelor of
Commerce degree

Auditing and
Accounting

•

ARC

•
•
•
•

Council 6
ARC 5
Risk Workshop 1
External ARC
member Interview 1

MA Culture, Policy
and Management
(London)
BA Arts
Management
(Australia)
National Diploma:
Journalism (South
Africa)

•

Arts
Management

•

Panel of Chairs
Committee

•
•

Council 9
Panel of Chairs
Committee 2
Risk Workshop 1

National Diploma in
Dramatic Arts
NQF Level 4
Community Arts
Development

•

Distinction in
History, Music
and Education,
Music Theory III,
and Grade V –
Distinction
BA Hons- Folklore,
Poetry, Drama,
Morphology and
Research
MA (cum laude)
Postgraduate
Diploma: Tourism
Management and
Development
D Litt et Phil
(Postgraduate
Autobiography)

•
•
•
•

•

Arts
Management

•
•

•

20.

•

21.

•

Chairperson of
Luthuli Museum

•
•
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Provincial SubCommittee
HRC (Effective
May 2019)

•
•

Council 2
Provincial SubCommittee 0

Provincial SubCommittee
HRC (Effective
May 2019)

•
•

Council 2
Provincial SubCommittee 0

Provincial Sub•
Committee
•
Communications
Committee
(effective May
2019)

Council 0
Provincial SubCommittee 0
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COMMITTEES
COMMITTEES

NUMBER OF
MEETINGS HELD

NUMBER OF
MEMBERS

NAME OF MEMBERS

EXCO

5

•
•
•
•
•

Hartley Ngoato (Chairperson)
Jabu Dlamini (Deputy Chairperson)
Erica Elk (HRC Chairperson)
Avril Joffe (ARC Chairperson)
Jerry Mabuza (Chairperson for Provincial
representatives)

HUMAN
RESOURCES
COMMITTEE

5

•
•
•
•
•

Erica Elk (Chairperson)
Prof. Sekgothe Mokgoatšana
Phumlani Manzi
Johane Chisekula
Lufuno Motsherane

AUDIT AND RISK
COMMITTEE

4

•
•
•

Avril Joffe (Chairperson)
Nchoke Raphela (external member)
Sikhuthali Nyangintsimbi (external
member)
Maleshini Naidoo (internal member)
Charliene Louw (external member)

•
•
PANEL
CHAIRPERSONS

5

•
•
•
•
•

REMUNERATION
OF COUNCIL
MEMBERS

88

Advocate Nakedi Ribane (Social Cohesion
and Nation Building)
Thoko Nogabe (Arts Platforms/ Showcases/
Exhibitions/ Festivals)
Dr Same Mduli (Innovation, Design and
Creation)
Mandie van der Spuy (Capacity Building)
Michael Arendse (Strategic Initiatives)

Council members are remunerated in accordance
with the rates stipulated by the National Treasury
for particular categories of public entities. The
remuneration is inclusive of preparations fees.
Remuneration of Council members is detailed as
note 20 of the Annual Financial Statements.
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Council Member Remuneration For The
Period Under Review
Name

Remuneration

Other fees

Audit and Risk
Committee

Total

Mr Hartley Ngoato

76 345

111 768

-

188 113

Ms Jabu Dlamini

-

-

-

-

Mr Michael Arendse

90 767

21 190

-

111 957

Dr Same Mdluli

54 788

2 382

-

57 170

Mr Zolani Mkiva

23 821

2 382

-

26 203

Mr Moshe Apleni

64 565

11 662

-

76 227

Mr Masengana Mabuza

55 161

9 156

-

64 317

Ms Thokozile Nogabe

71 587

7 022

-

78 609

Ms Avril Joffe

45 509

9 280

95 122

149 911

Ms Thandiwe Profit-McLean

28 834

4 516

-

33 350

Mr Bongani Mavuso

23 822

2 382

-

26 204

Prof. Sekgothe Mokgoatšana

64 565

6 898

-

71 463

Mr Edumond Mhlongo

21 439

-

-

21 439

Ms Mandie van der Spuy

52 405

4 764

-

57 169

Mr Pheni Ngove

4 764

-

-

4 764

Ms Maleshini Naidoo

26 203

2 382

40 712

69 297

Ms Erica Elk

50 273

6 898

-

57 171

Adv. Nakedi Ribane

80 990

7 146

-

88 136

Mr Jabulani Sithole

-

-

-

-

Mr Johannes Chisekula

9 528

-

-

9 528

Mr Phumulani Manzi

9 528

-

-

9 528

Total

854 894

209 828

135 834

1 200 556
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Panel Member Remuneration For The
Period Under Review

90

Name

Remuneration

Other
Allowance

Other re-imbursements

Total

Mr Tsietsi Winston Mohapi

42 256

42 256

Ms Celeste Wannenburg

42 256

42 256

Mr Piet Jan Masilela

4 226

4 226

Ms Busisiwe C Sikhonde

42 256

42 256

Dr Conroy Cupido

29 579

29 579

Mr Njabulo Mkhondo

33 805

33 805

Mr Theo Lawrence

33 805

33 805

Mr Papama Mnqandi

29 579

29 579

Mr Fhumulani Kenneth Mathivha

29 579

29 579

Mr Zothani Vilakazi

54 933

54 933

Mr Arthur Zitha

38 030

38 030

Ms Thando Mgqolozana

8 451

8 451

Mr Kingdom M Moshounyana

25 354

25 354

Ms Georgina Thomson

25 353

25 353

Mr Trevor Mokeyane

25 354

25 354

Ms Carol Brown

25 354

25 354

Ms Molebogeng Mokomele

33 805

33 805

Mr S Kea Malao

33 805

33 805

Mr Njabulo Mthimukulu

33 805

33 805

Mr Themba Luthuli

33 805

33 805

Total

625 390

625 390
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05

RISK
MANAGEMENT

The NAC manages risk in accordance with the risk register approved
by Council and updated annually. The risk register is based on an
annual risk assessment conducted by the NAC’s internal auditors.
The risk register is based on the strategic plan of the NAC. The risk
register, including mitigation strategies and progress with regards to
implementation is updated quarterly and presented to ARC, EXCO and
Council.

INTERNAL
CONTROL UNIT
The NAC does not have an internal control unit. This function is
performed under the guidance of the Audit and Risk Committee.

07

INTERNAL AUDIT
AND AUDIT
COMMITTEES

In accordance with the PFMA, the NAC has a duly
constituted Audit and Risk Committee comprising
two Council members and two external members.
In terms of the Corporate Governance Framework
and Charter of the Audit Committee the role of the
committee is to ensure:
×× Effectiveness of the internal control system;
×× Effectiveness of the internal audit function;
×× Risk areas of operations to be covered in the
scope of internal and external audits.
Ensure the adequacy, reliability and accuracy of
financial information provided to management and
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06

other users of such information;
×× Any accounting and auditing concerns
identified as a result of internal and external
audits;
×× Compliance with legal and regulatory
provisions; and
×× Activities of the internal audit function,
including its annual work programme,
coordination with the external auditors (i.e.
Auditor-General), the reports of significant
investigations and the responses of
management to specific recommendations.
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NO. NAME

QUALIFICATIONS

INTERNAL OR EXTERNAL

1.

Avril Joffe

•
•
•

MPhil: Development Studies
BA: Economics
BA Honours: Industrial Sociology

Internal

2.

Maleshini Naidoo

•

Bachelor of Commerce Honours degree
(Accounting)
Bachelor of Commerce degree

Internal

MBA: Management;
Bachelor of Science Honours degree in
Computer Science;
Bachelor of Science degree in Computer
Science.

External

•
•

MPhill Internal Audit;
MBL; BComm; CIA; CRMA; CGAP;
CCSA.

External

•

Admitted Attorney, LLB, Executive
Development (Wits), MBA (Current)
and CSSA (Current)

External

•

3.

John Nchoke Raphela •
•
•

4.

Sikhuthali
Nyangintsimbi

5.

Charlene Louw

The NAC has a
Fraud Prevention
Strategy available
to all staff.
92
92
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NO. IF INTERNAL, POSITION
IN THE PUBLIC ENTITY

APPOINTMENT
DATE

1.

1 January 2017
•

Chairperson : Audit and Risk
Committee

RESIGNATION
DATE

NO. OF MEETINGS
ATTENDED
•
•
•

2.

•

Audit Committee Member

3.

•

External Audit Committee
member.

4.

•

External Audit Committee
member.

5.

•

External Audit Committee
member.

December 2017

1 October 2015

1 October 2015

01 November 2018

•
•

ARC 7
Interview External ARC
member 1
Risk Workshop 1

•

ARC 7
Interview External ARC
member 1
Risk Workshop 1

•

ARC 6

•
•
•

ARC 7
Interview External ARC
member 1
Risk Workshop 1

•
•

ARC 1
Risk Workshop 1

The NAC reports quarterly
to the Minister of Arts and
Culture using a template as
prescribed by the DAC.
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08
09

COMPLIANCE
WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Supply Chain Management policy was reviewed and approved.

FRAUD AND
CORRUPTION

The NAC has a Fraud Prevention Strategy available
to all staff. Assessing possible fraud risks is part
of the annual risk assessment workshop wherein
staff members are encouraged to disclose and
share any information that might pose a risk to the
NAC. The Fraud Prevention Awareness Campaign
co-ordinated by the DAC is also implemented at the
NAC. Information to create awareness is displayed
on the NAC notice board.
The campaign makes staff aware of mechanisms
to report fraud and corruption through surveys,
the results of which are published for employee
awareness. Employees are provided with
confidential numbers to report any possible fraud
and corruption including, but not limited to, the
Presidential hotline.

94

Fraud prevention activities at the NAC also include
pre-employment screening for all appointments
and evidence of such screening is maintained by
the HR Department. The following aspects are
included in the screening:
•
•
•
•
•

Verification of identity;
Police criminal history;
Reference checks with the two most recent
employers – this will normally require
telephone contact;
A consideration of any gaps in employment
history and the reasons for those gaps; and
Verification of formal qualifications claimed.

A fraud workshop was conducted in September
2017 by internal audit.

National Arts Council of South Africa Annual Report 2018/19

10

MINIMISING
CONFLICT OF
INTEREST

The NAC stipulates that members of Council
and Advisory Panel members should not receive
grant funding from the organisation. In 2014/2015,
Council, with the support of the DAC, approved
an interpretation of this clause which would allow
the organisations that individual members are
employed by or associated with to apply for funding,

but that would explicitly exclude individual
Council members from applying. In support of this
commitment to effective governance, Declarations
of Interest were completed prior to each Council or
sub-committee meeting and annual declarations
were completed by all Council members.

11

CODE OF
CONDUCT

The conduct of Council is governed by the NAC Corporate Governance Framework which stipulates
that each member is obliged to act honestly and in good faith. In particular, the Framework requires all
members to:
Act within their powers and in the interest, and for
the benefit of the NAC;
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Not to act with self interest in making short
and long-term decisions;
Carry out their duties with appropriate skill
and care, and exercise their own judgement;
Uphold the values and objectives of the NAC;
Uphold the NAC’s core policies;
Contribute to and share responsibility for
Council decisions;
Read Council papers;
Attend and effectively participate in
meetings, training sessions and other events;
Represent the NAC and its values, policies
and decisions;
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•
•
•
•

Declare any relevant interest;
Furnish the NAC’s auditors with all
information and explanations they require;
Respect confidentiality of information and
not disclose confidential information about
the NAC, its staff or its stakeholders; and
Comply with the law, letter and spirit of
the corporate governance principles and
practices set out in the Framework.

Council members not complying are subject to the
provisions of the NAC Act with regard to vacating
their seat on Council and non-compliant staff
members are subject to the NAC’s disciplinary
process.
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12

HEALTH
SAFETY AND
ENVIRONMENTAL
ISSUES

The NAC is a very small organisation with no specific hazards in the work conducted on a daily
basis. In accordance with the Occupational Health and Safety Act, the NAC has a duly appointed
safety officer, floor marshals and first aid resources.
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13

COMPANY/
BOARD
SECRETARY

The NAC Board Secretary is responsible
for the following duties:

•

Providing Company Secretarial and
Administrative Support

•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Assist Chairperson of Council and CEO
to determine the Annual Council Plan;
Compile and distribute Council packs 7
days prior to the meeting;
Accurate capturing and distribution of
minutes 10 days after the meeting;
Ensure that resolutions, policies and
all documentation capturing decisions
taken are signed and properly filed;
Ensure proper conduct of Board
Committee Meetings and the production
of minutes;
Co-ordinating Council communications
as necessary given by deadlines;
Prepare all relevant documentation for
Council and committee meetings;
Gather departmental reports in advance
prior to Council and Committee
meetings with the CEO’s support;
Follow up on action items to ensure that
decisions are implemented.

•

Corporate Governance Practices
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Co-ordinate Logistics for meetings
•
•

Maintain an updated calendar of Council
and Committee meetings;
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Ensure Committee members are
reminded of meetings 14 days in advance
of the meeting;
Schedule additional meetings when
required;
Ensure that meeting rooms are set up
and catering has been arranged;
Ensure that meeting packs are sent out 7
days in advance.

Ensure compliance with all relevant
regulations, provisions of the PFMA and
King IVTM codes of Good practice;
Ensure Service Level Agreements, Code
of Conduct is signed by all Council
members;
Ensure Council members are inducted
and receive training related to their work;
Co-ordinating the Council evaluation
process;
Ensuring that files of Council members
are kept securely;
Ensuring that annual declarations of
interest of Council members recorded
and filed and a members register is kept;
Ensuring that meeting declarations are
signed and filed;
Ensure the Council and Committee
Charters are reviewed annually.
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14

AUDIT AND RISK
COMMITTEE
REPORT
We are pleased to present our report for the
financial year ended 31 March 2019.

Chair of the Audit and Risk, Ms Avril Joffe
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE
The Audit and Risk Committee comprises
of the members listed hereunder and should
meet at least 2 times per annum as per
Section 7 of the PFMA. During the year under
review, 9 meetings were held (24 May 2018,
25/26 July 2018,28 & 31 August 2018, 5 & 19
Oct 2018, 11 January 2019, 7 Feb 2019 and 8
March 2019).
Name of member

Number of
meetings

Ms. Avril Joffe (Chairperson)

9

Ms Maleshini Naidoo

8

Mr Sikhuthali Nyangintsimbi External Audit Committee
member
Mr Nchoke Raphela - External
Audit Committee Member

9

Ms Charlene Louw - External
Audit Committee Member
(appointed 29 October 2018)

3

6

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
RESPONSABILITY
The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it
hascomplied with its responsibilities arising
from section SS(l)(a) of the PFMA and
Treasury Regulation 27.1. The Audit and Risk
Committee also reports that it has adopted
appropriate formal terms of reference in
the audit committee charter, has regulated
its affairs in compliance with this charter
and has discharged all its responsibilities as
contained therein.
THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL
CONTROL
The system of internal controls applied by
the National Arts Council over financial and
risk management is effective, efficient and
transparent. In line with the PFMA and the
King IV Report on Corporate Governance
requirements, the internal Audit provides
the audit committee and management with
the assurance that internal controls are
National Arts Council of South Africa Annual Report 2018/19

appropriate and effective. This is achieved
by means of the risk management process,
as well as the identification of corrective
actions and suggested enhancements to the
controls and processes. From the various
reports of the internal auditors, the Audit
Report on the unaudited annual financial
statements, and the management report of
the Audit or -General South Africa, it was
noted that no matters were reported that
indicate any material deficiencies in the
system of internal control or any deviations
therefrom. Accordingly , we can report that
the system of internal control over financial
reporting for the period under review was
efficient and effective.
The Audit and Risk Committee is satisfied
with the content and quality of monthly and
quarterly reports prepared and issued by the
management of the NAC of South Africa
during the year under review.
EVALUATION OF UNAUDITED
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT
The Audit and Risk Committee has:
• reviewed and discussed the unaudited
annual financial statements to be
included in the annual report, with
the Auditor-General and the internal
auditors;
• reviewed changes in accounting
policies and practices; and
• reviewed the entities compliance with
legal and regulatory provisions;
INTERNAL AUDIT
The audit committee is satisfied that
the internal audit function is operating
effectively and that it has addressed the risks
pertinent to the NAC and its audits.

The Chairperson of the Audit and Risk
Committee National Arts Council
July 2019
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PART D
Human Resources
Management
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HUMAN RESOURCE
OVERSIGHT STATISTICS
For the period under review, the NAC employed 30 permanent staff members, 2 contractual staff
members and 6 interns.

Personnel Cost by Programme/ Activity/ Objective
PROGRAMME TOTAL
EXPENDITURE
FOR THE ENTITY
(R’000)

PERSONNEL
PERSONNEL
EXPENDITURE EXP. AS A %
(R’000)
OF TOTAL
EXP. (R’000)

NO. OF
AVERAGE
EMPLOYEES PERSONNEL
COST PER
EMPLOYEE
(R’000)

NAC Staff

115 122

19 351

17

32

605

Temporary Staff

115 122

1 286

1

6

184

Provisions

115 122

2 397

2

38

61

Total

115 122

23 034

20

38

850

Personnel Cost by Salary Band
LEVEL

% OF
PERSONNEL
EXP. TO TOTAL
PERSONNEL
COST (R’000)

NO. OF
EMPLOYEES

AVERAGE
PERSONNEL COST
PER EMPLOYEE
(R’000)

Top Management

3 647

16

2

1 824

Senior Management

1 219

5

1

1 219

Professional qualified

4 169

18

5

834

10 832

47

17

637

Semi-skilled

963

4

10

96

Unskilled

432

2

3

144

21 262

92

38

4 754

Skilled

TOTAL
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PERSONNEL
EXPENDITURE
(R’000)
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Performance Rewards
PROGRAMME//ACTIVITY/ PERFORMANCE
OBJECTIVE
REWARDS

PERSONNEL
EXPENDITURE
(R’000)

% OF PERFORMANCE REWARDS
TO TOTAL PERSONNEL COST
(R’000)

Top Management

-

3 647

-

Senior Management

-

1 219

-

Professional qualified

-

4 169

-

Skilled

-

10 832

-

Semi-skilled

-

963

-

Unskilled

-

432

-

TOTAL

21 262

Training Costs
PROGRAMME//
ACTIVITY/
OBJECTIVE

PERSONNEL
EXPENDITURE
(R’000)

TRAINING
EXPENDITURE
(R’000)

TRAINING
EXPENDITURE
AS A % OF
PERSONNEL
COST

NO. OF
EMPLOYEES
TRAINED

AVG
TRAINING
COST PER
EMPLOYEE

Finance

5 189

106

2

7

15

Grants

8 039

54

0.7

8

8

890

4

0.5

1

4

Admin

1 510

24

2

3

8

Marketing

1 239

4

0.3

1

4

CEO’s office

3 751

8

0.2

2

4

Human Resources

2 416

36

2

2

18

23 034

236

7.7

26

61

Operations

TOTAL
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Employment and Vacancies
PROGRAMME/ACTIVITY/
OBJECTIVE

2016/2017
NO. OF EMPLOYEES

NAC

2017/2018
APPROVED
POSTS

2018/2019
NO. OF
EMPLOYEES

2018/2019
VACANCIES

% OF
VACANCIES

34

34

32

2

Top Management

2

2

2

-

-

Senior Management

1

1

1

-

-

Professional Qualified

5

6

5

-

-

17

17

17

-

-

Semi-Skilled

-

3

4

-

-

Unskilled

3

3

3

-

-

32

34

32

-

-

Skilled

TOTAL

-

Employment Changes
SALARY BAND

APPOINTMENTS

TERMINATIONS

EMPLOYMENT
AT END OF THE
PERIOD

Top Management

2

0

0

1

Senior Management

1

0

0

1

Professional Qualified

4

1

0

4

18

0

1

17

Semi-Skilled

4

0

0

2

Unskilled

3

0

0

3

33

1

1

28

Skilled

Total

104

EMPLOYMENT AT
BEGINNING OF
PERIOD
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Reasons for Staff
Leaving
REASON

NUMBER

Death

0

Resignation

1

Dismissal

1

Retirement

0

Ill health

0

Expiry of contract

0

Other

0

TOTAL

2

Labour Relations: Misconduct
and disciplinary action
NATURE OF DISCIPLINARY
ACTION
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NUMBER

Verbal Warning

1

Written Warning

2

Final Written warning

0

Dismissal

1

TOTAL

4

105

Equity Target and Employment Equity Status
LEVELS

MALES
AFRICAN
CURRENT

COLOURED

TARGET

CURRENT

INDIAN

TARGET

CURRENT

WHITE

TARGET

CURRENT

TARGET

Top
Management

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Senior
Management

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Professional
Qualified

3

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Skilled

5

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Semi-Skilled

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Unskilled

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

TOTAL

9

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

LEVELS

FEMALES
AFRICAN
CURRENT

COLOURED

TARGET

CURRENT

INDIAN

TARGET

CURRENT

WHITE

TARGET

CURRENT

TARGET

Top
Management

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Senior
Management

1

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

Professional
Qualified

1

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

Skilled

11

0

2

0

0

0

0

0

Semi-Skilled

2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Unskilled

3

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

19

0

3

0

1

0

0

0

TOTAL

Equity Target and Employment Equity Status
LEVELS

STAFF LIVING WITH DISABILITIES
MALES

FEMALES

CURRENT

TARGET

CURRENT

TARGET

Top Management

0

0

0

0

Senior Management

0

0

0

0

Professional Qualified

0

0

0

0

Skilled

0

0

0

0

Semi-Skilled

0

0

0

0

Unskilled

0

0

0

0

TOTAL

0

0

0

0

According to the Employment Equity Act, 1998 (Act 55 of 1998), the NAC is not required by legislation to set
equity targets owing to the size of its staff complement. The NAC currently has a staff complement of 32.
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Financial
Information
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ANNUAL
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
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GENERAL
INFORMATION
Country of incorporation and domicile			South Africa
Nature of business and principal activities		
Promotion, through the arts, the free and 		
							creative expression of South Africa’s 		
							culture.
Business address					
66 Margaret Mcingana Street (Cnr 			
							Gwigwi Mrwebi) Johannesburg
							South Africa 2113
Postal address						PO Box 500
							Newtown Johannesburg
							South Africa 2113
Controlling entity					
Department Of Arts and Culture
Auditors						Auditor General of South Africa
Secretary						Fluidrock Governance (Pty) Ltd
Company registration number				1989/001413/08
Governing legislation 				
Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 		
							1999) National Arts Council Act, 1997
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The reports and statements set out below comprise the audited annual financial statements
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126
Accounting Policies							127
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140-155
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COUNCIL’S RESPONSIBILITIES
AND APPROVAL
The Council is required by the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), to maintain adequate
accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the unaudited annual financial
statements and related financial information included in this report. It is the responsibility of the Council
to ensure that the unaudited annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the NAC as
at the end of the financial year and the results of its
operations and cash flows for the period then ended.
The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the unaudited annual financial
statements and were given unrestricted access to all
financial records and related data.

minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures
and constraints.

The unaudited annual financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) including
any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued
by the Accounting Standards Board.

The Council has reviewed the NAC’s cash flow position for the year to 31 March 2020 and in the light
of this review and the current financial position, it is
satisfied that the NAC has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future.

The unaudited annual financial statements are based
upon appropriate accounting policies consistently
applied and supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates.
The Council acknowledges that it is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial controls
established by the NAC and places considerable
importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable management to meet these responsibilities, the Council sets standards for internal
controls aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit
in a cost effective manner. The standards include the
proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly
defined framework, effective accounting procedures
and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an
acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored
throughout the NAC and all employees are required
to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring
the NAC’s business is conducted in a manner that in
all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The
focus of risk management in the NAC is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known
forms of risk across the NAC. While operating risk
cannot be fully eliminated, the NAC endeavours to
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The Council is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that
the system of internal control provides reasonable
assurance that the financial records may be relied on
for the preparation of the unaudited annual financial
statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
deficit.

The NAC is wholly dependent on the Department of
Arts and Culture for continued funding of operations.
The unaudited annual financial statements are prepared on the basis that the NAC is a going concern.
Although the Council is primarily responsible for the
financial affairs of the NAC, it is supported by the
NAC’s external auditors.
The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the NAC’s unaudited annual financial statements. The unaudited
annual financial statements have been audited by the
NAC’s external auditors and their report is presented
on page 6.

Council Chairperson
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
REPORT
AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
REPORT
We are pleased to present our report for the
financial year ended 31 March 2018/19.

Evaluation of Financial Statements
We have reviewed the annual financial
statements prepared by the public entity.
Auditor’s Report

Audit and Risk Committee
Responsibility
The Audit and Risk Committee reports
that it has complied with its responsibilities
arising from Section of the Public Finance
Management Act and Treasury Regulation
3.1.13. The Audit and Risk Committee also
reports that it has adopted appropriate formal
terms of reference as its Audit Committee
Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance
with this charter and has discharged all
its responsibilities as contained therein,
except that we have not reviewed changes in
accounting policies and practices.

We have reviewed the public entity’s
implementation plan for audit issues raised
in the prior year and we are satisfied that the
matters have been adequately resolved.
The Audit and Risk Committee concurs and
accepts the conclusions of the external auditor
on the annual financial statements and is of
the opinion that the audited annual financial
statements be accepted and read together with
the report of the auditor.

The Effectiveness of Internal Control
Our review of the findings of the Internal Audit
work, which was based on the risk assessments
conducted in the public entity revealed certain
weaknesses, which were then raised with the
public entity.
The following internal audit work was
completed during the year under review:
• Performance Information Review
(Quarter 1)
• Grant Management Review

Chairperson of the Audit and Risk
Committee National Arts Council
July 2019

In-Year Management and Monthly/
Quarterly Report
The public entity has submitted monthly and
quarterly reports to the Executive Authority.
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REPORT OF
THE EXTERNAL
AUDITOR

REPORT OF
THE AUDITORGENERAL TO
PARLIAMENT ON
NATIONAL ARTS
COUNCIL OF
SOUTH AFRICA
REPORT ON
THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Opinion
1.I have audited the financial statements of
the National Arts Council of South Africa
set out on pages 118 to 155, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at
31 March 2019, the statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in
net assets, cash flow statement and the
statement of comparison of budget and
actual amounts for the year then ended, as
well as the notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant
accounting poiicies.
2.In my opinion, the financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the National Arts
Council of South Africa as at 31 March 2019,
and its financial performance and cash
tlows for the year then ended in accordance
with Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (Standards of GRAP)
and the requirements of the Public Finance
Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act
No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA).
Basis for opinion
3.I conducted my audit in accordance with
the International Standards on Auditing
(ISAs). My responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the
auditor-general ‘s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of
this auditor’s report.
4.I am independent of the entity in
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accordance with sections 290 and 291 of the
International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants ‘ Code of ethics for professional
accountants {IESBA code), parts 1 and 3 of
the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ International Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) and
the ethical requirements that are relevant to my
audit in South Africa. i have fuifiiied my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA code.
5. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my opinion.
Emphasis of matter
6. I draw attention to the matter below. My
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Restatement of corresponding figures
7. As disclosed in note 25 to the financial
statements, the corresponding figures for 31
March 2018 were restated as a result of the
reclassification of transactions in the financial
statements of the entity at, and for the year
ended, 31 March 2019.

Auditor general’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements
10. My objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually
or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
11. A further description of my responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements is
included in the annexure to this auditor’s
report.

Responsibilities of the accounting
authority for the financial statements

Report on the audit of the annual
performance report

8. The accounting authority is responsible for
the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with the
Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the
Public Finance Management Act of South Africa,
1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999), and for such internal
control as the accounting authority determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Introduction and scope

9. In preparing the financial statements,
the accounting authority is responsible for
assessing the entity’s ability to continue as
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a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters relating to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the
appropriate governance structure either intends
to liquidate the entity or to cease operations , or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

12. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of
South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA)
and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I
have a responsibility to report material findings
on the reported performance information
against predetermined objectives for
selected programmes presented in the annual
performance report. I performed procedures to
identify findings but not to gather evidence to
express assurance.
13. My procedures address the reported
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performance information, which must
be based on the approved performance
planning documents of the entity. I have
not evaluated the completeness and
appropriateness of the performance
indicators included in the planning
documents. My procedures also did not
extend to any disclosures or assertions
relating to planned performance strategies
and information in respect of future periods
that may be included as part of the reported
performance information. Accordingly, my
findings do not extend to these matters.
14. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability
of the reported performance information in
accordance with the criteria developed from
the performance management and reporting
framework, as defined in the general notice,
for the following selected programmes
presented in the annual performance report
of the entity for the year ended 31 March
2019:

PROGRAMMES

PAGES IN
THE ANNUAL
PERFORMANCE
REPORT

Programme 1 - Arts
development and
public engagement

29

Programme 2 Public engagement

32

Programme 3
- Marketing and
communications

66 - 67

15. I pertormed procedures to determine
whether the reported performance
information was properly presented and
whether performance was consistent
with the approved performance planning
documents. i performed further procedures
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to determine whether the indicators
and related targets were measurable and
relevant, and assessed the reliability of
the reported pertormance information to
determine whether it was valid, accurate and
complete.
16. I did not raise any material findings on
the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information for the selected
programmes.
•
•
•

Programme 1 - Arts development and
public engagement
Programme 2 - Public engagement
Programme 3- Marketing and
communications

Other matter
17. I draw attention to the matter below.
Achievement of planned targets
18.Refer to the annual performance report
on pages 29 to 71 for information on the
achievement of planned targets for the year
and explanations provided for the under/
over achievement of a number of targets.
J Report on the audit of compliance with
legislation
Introduction and scope
19.In accordance with the PM and the
general notice issued in terms thereof, I have
a responsibility to report material findings
on the compliance of the entity with specific
matters in key legislation. I performed
procedures to identify findings but not to
gather evidence to express assurance.
20.I did not raise material findings on
compliance with the specific matters in
key legislation set out in the general notice
issued in terms of the PM.

117

I am required to
communicate the
matter to those
charged with
governance and
request that the
other information be
corrected.

Other information
21. The accounting authority is responsible
for the other information. The other
infom,ation comprises the information
included in the annual report. The other
information does not include the financial
statements, the auditor’s report and those
selected programmes presented in the
annual performance report that have been
specifically reported in this auditor’s report.
22. My opinion on the financial statements
and findings on the reported performance
information and compliance with legislation
do not cover the other information and I do
not express an audit opinion or any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
23. In connection with my audit, my
responsibility is to read the other
lnfom1ation and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements
and the selected programmes presented
in the annual performance report, or
my knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
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24. The other information I obtained prior
to the date of this auditor’s report is a draft
annual report and the final annual report
is expected to be made available to us after
31 July 2019. If, based on the work I have
performed on the other information that I
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, I conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, I am
required to report that fact. I have nothing
to report in this regard. When I do receive
and read the final annual report, if I conclude
that there is a material misstatement
therein, I am required to communicate the
matter to those charged with governance
and request that the other information be
corrected. If the other information is not
corrected, I may have to retract this auditor’s
report and re-issue an amended report as
appropriate. However, if it is corrected this
will not be necessary.
I Internal control deficiencies
25. I considered internal control relevant
to my audit of the financial statements,
reported performance information and
compliance with applicable legislation;
however, my objective was not to express
any form of assurance on it. ! did not identify
any significant deficiencies in internal
control.
Annexure - Auditor-general’s
responsibility for the audit
1. As part of an audit in accordance with the
ISAs, I exerclse professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism
throughout my audit of the financial
statements, and the procedures performed
on reported performance information for
selected programmes and on the entity’s
compliance with respect to the selected
subject matters.
Financial statements
2. In addition to my responsibility for
the audit of the financial statements as
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described in this auditor’s report, I also:
• identify and assess the risks of
material misstatement of the financial
statements whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may
invoive coiiusion, forgery, intentionai
omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control
• obtain an understanding of internal
control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control
• evaluate the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made
by the accounting authority
• conclude on the appropriateness of
the accounting authority’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial
statements. I also conclude, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the entity’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If I
conclude that ::-i. material uncertainty
exists, ! am required to draw attention
in my auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements
about the material uncertainty or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify the opinion on the financial
statements. My conclusions are based
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•

on the information available to me
at the date of this auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions
may cause a entity to cease continuing
as a going concern
evaluate the overall presentation,
structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation

Communication with those charged
with governance
3. I communicate with the accounting
authority regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of ihe aud t
and significant audit findings, inciuding any
significant deficiencies in internal control
that I identify during my audit.
4. i also confirm to the accounting authority
that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and
communicate all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to
have a bearing on my independence and,
where applicable, related safeguards.
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ACCOUNTING
AUTHORITY’S REPORT
The members submit their report for the year ended 31 March 2019.
1. Going concern
We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2019, the entity had accumulated surplus of R 5,939,383 and that
the entity’s total Assets exceed its liabilities by R 11,528,373.
The unaudited annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a
going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary
course of business.
The accumulated surplus of R 5,939,383 includes projects contracted but not fully paid and projects approved by
council but not contracted.The National Arts Council submitted the request to National Treasury to retain the
surplus.

National Arts Council of South Africa Annual Report 2018/19

121

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2019
Figures in Rand

Note(s)

2019

2018

Property, plant and equipment

2

8,672,297

10,434,099

Intangible assets

3

268,722

671,804

8,941,019

11,105,903

Assets
Non-Current Assets

Current Assets
Trade and other receivables

4

111,078

332,978

Cash and cash equivalents

5

42,702,038

34,190,607

42,813,116

34,523,585

51,754,135

45,629,488

Total Assets
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables

6

1,117,524

1,069,846

Deferred Grant Income

7

1,489,940

226,489

Provisions

8

3,026,153

2,196,029

Projects and bursaries payable

9

34,592,145

26,219,099

Total Liabilities

40,225,762

29,711,463

Net Assets

11,528,373

15,918,025

5,588,990

6,992,103

Accumulated surplus

5,939,383

8,925,922

Total Net Assets

11,528,373

15,918,025

Reserves
Revaluation reserve
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE
Figures in Rand

Note(s)

2019

2018

Other income

11

15,769

38,015

Interest received - investment

12

1,842,649

1,856,456

1,858,418

1,894,471

110,276,656

106,868,673

112,135,074

108,763,144

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions

Total revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies
Total revenue

13

Expenditure
Depreciation and amortisation

2&3

(1,325,312)

(1,064,925)

Employee related costs

14

(23,034,495)

(22,259,878)

Operating expenses

15

(12,846,338)

(11,378,022)

Projects and bursaries expenses

16

(77,914,886)

(78,478,429)

Total expenditure

(115,121,031)

(113,181,254)

Operating deficit

(2,985,957)

(4,418,110)

Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities

(562)

(21,144)

Deficit for the year

(2,986,519)

(4,439,254)
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN NET ASSETS
Figures in Rand
Balance at 01 April 2017
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Revaluation
reserve
4,423,061

Accumulated
surplus
13,365,176

Accumulated
surplus
17,788,237

Changes in net assets Deficit for the
year
Revaluation of assets

-

(4,439,254)

(4,439,254)

2,569,042

-

2,569,042

Total changes

2,569,042

(4,439,254)

(1,870,212)

Balance at 01 April 2018

6,992,103

8,925,902

15,918,005

Changes in net assets Deficit for the
year
Revaluation of assets

-

(2,986,519)

(2,986,519)

(1,403,113)

-

(1,403,113)

Total changes

(1,403,113)

(2,986,519)

(4,389,632)

Balance at 31 March 2019

5,588,990

5,939,383

11,528,373

Note(s)

10
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CASH FLOW
STATEMENT
Figures in Rand

Note(s)

2019

2018

Other income

237,669

52,137

Grants and other income received

111,540,107

106,251,745

Interest income

1,842,649

1,856,456

113,620,425

108,160,338

Employee costs

(23,034,495)

(22,259,878)

Suppliers

(11,968,557)

(10,593,018)

Projects and bursaries

(69,541,840)

(79,696,790)

(104,544,892)

(112,549,686)

17

9,075,533

(4,389,348)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

2

(564,102)

(605,679)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment
Purchase of other intangible assets

2

-

500

3

-

(588,759)

Net cash flows from investing activities

(564,102)

(1,193,938)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
year

8,511,431

(5,583,286)

34,190,607

39,773,893

42,702,038

34,190,607

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts

Payments

Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON
OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL
AMOUNTS
Budget on Accrual Basis
Figures in Rand

Approved
budget

Actual amounts
on comparable
basis

Difference
between final
budget and
actual

Other income

-

15,769

15,769

Interest received - investment

-

1,842,649

1,842,649

Total revenue from exchange transactions

-

1,858,418

1,858,418

Government grants & subsidies

109,677,000

110,276,656

599,656

Total revenue

109,677,000

112,135,074

2,458,074

Expenditure
Employee related costs

(21,207,000)

(23,034,495)

(1,827,495)

Depreciation and amortisation

-

(1,325,312)

(1,325,312)

Operating expenses

(11,779,000)

(12,846,338)

(1,067,338)

Projects and bursaries expenses

(76,691,000)

(77,914,886)

(1,223,886)

Total expenditure

(109,677,000)

(115,121,031)

(5,444,031)

Operating deficit

-

(2,985,957)

(2,985,957)

Loss on disposal of assets

-

(562)

(562)

Deficit before taxation

-

(2,986,519)

(2,986,519)

Actual Amount on Comparable Basis
as Presented in the Budget and Actual
Comparative Statement

-

(2,986,519)

(2,986,519)

Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue from non-exchange
transactions
Transfer revenue
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ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
1. Presentation of Annual Financial
Statements
The unaudited annual financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with
the Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the
Accounting Standards Board in accordance
with Section 91(1) of the Public Finance
Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).

•
•
•
•
•
•

These unaudited annual financial statements
have been prepared on an accrual basis of
accounting and are in accordance with
historical cost convention as the basis of
measurement, unless specified otherwise.
They are presented in South African Rand.
The GRAP standards complied with are
as a listed in Directive 5 of the Accounting
Standards Board (“Determining the GRAP
Reporting Framework”).
A summary of the significant accounting
policies, which have been consistently
applied in the preparation of these unaudited
annual financial statements, are disclosed
below.
1.1 New standards and interpretations
GRAP Standards issued but not yet effective
that might affect the entity in future are as
follows:
•

GRAP 20: Related Party Disclosures
(Effective 1 April 2019)

Further GRAP Standards issued but not yet
effective, and not relevant to the operations
of NAC are listed below:
• GRAP 32: Service Concession
Arrangements: Grantor (Effective 1
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•
•

April 2019)
GRAP 34: Separate Financial
Statements
GRAP 35: Consolidated Financial
Statements
GRAP 36: Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures
GRAP 37: Joint Arrangements
GRAP 38: Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities
GRAP 108: Statutory Receivables
(Effective 1 April 2019)
GRAP 109: Accounting by Principals
and Agents (Effective 1 April 2019)
GRAP 110: Living and Non-living
Resources (Effective 1 April 2020)

Management has considered all the abovementioned GRAP Standards approved but
not yet effective and anticipates that the
adoption of these standards will not have a
significant impact on the financial position,
financial performance or cash flow of the
entity.
1.2 Significant judgements and sources
of estimation uncertainty
In preparing the unaudited annual financial
statements, management is required to
make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts represented in the unaudited
annual financial statements and related
disclosures. Use of available information and
the application of judgement is inherent in
the formation of estimates. Actual results in
the future could differ from these estimates
which may be material to the unaudited
annual financial statements.
1.3 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible
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non-current assets (including infrastructure
assets) that are held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, rental to
others, or for administrative purposes, and
are expected to be used during more than one
period.

or a combination of monetary and nonmonetary assets, the asset acquired is
initially measured at fair value (the cost).
If the acquired item’s fair value was not
determinable, it’s deemed cost is the carrying
amount of the asset(s) given up.

The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised as an asset when:
• it is probable that future economic
benefits or service potential associated
with the item will flow to the entity;
and
• the cost of the item can be measured
reliably.

Property, plant and equipment (with the
exception of land and buildings) is carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment is initially
measured at cost.
The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the purchase price and other
costs attributable to bring the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Trade discounts and rebates
are deducted in arriving at the cost.

Land and buildings are carried at revalued
amount, being the fair value at the date of
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.
Revaluations are made with sufficient
regularity such that the carrying amount
does not differ materially from that which
would be determined using fair value at the
end of the reporting period.

Where an asset is acquired through a nonexchange transaction, its cost is its fair value
as at date of acquisition.

When an item of property, plant and
equipment is revalued, any accumulated
depreciation at the date of the revaluation
is restated proportionately with the change
in the gross carrying amount of the asset so
that the carrying amount of the asset after
revaluation equals its revalued amount.

Where an item of property, plant and
equipment is acquired in exchange for a
non-monetary asset or monetary assets,

The useful lives of items of property, plant
and equipment have been assessed as
follows:

Item

Depreciation method

Land

Indefinite

Buildings

Straight line

50 years

Furniture and fixtures

Straight line

6 years

Motor vehicles

Straight line

5 years

Office equipment

Straight line

5 years

Computer equipment

Straight line

3 years

Paintings
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Average useful life

Not depreciated

Banners

Straight line

3 years

Photocopiers

Straight line

5 years

Digital equipment

Straight line

3 years
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The residual value, and the useful life and
depreciation method of each asset are
reviewed at the end of each reporting date.
If the expectations differ from previous
estimates, the change is accounted for as a
change in accounting estimate.
Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an
annual basis does not require the entity
to amend the previous estimate unless
expectations differ from the previous
estimate.
Each part of an item of property, plant and
equipment with a cost that is significant
in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.
The depreciation charge for each period is
recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is
included in the carrying amount of another
asset.
Items of property, plant and equipment are
derecognised when the asset is disposed of or
when there are no further economic benefits
or service potential expected from the use of
the asset.
The gain or loss arising from the
derecognition of an item of property, plant
and equipment is included in surplus or
deficit when the item is derecognised. The
gain or loss arising from the derecognition
of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying
amount of the item.
1.4 Intangible assets
An asset is identifiable if it either:
• is separable, i.e. is capable of being
separated or divided from an entity
and sold, transferred, licensed, rented
or exchanged, either individually
or together with a related contract,
identifiable assets or liability, regardless
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•

of whether the entity intends to do so; or
arises from binding arrangements
(including rights from contracts),
regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the entity
or from other rights and obligations.

A binding arrangement describes an
arrangement that confers similar rights and
obligations on the parties to it as if it were in
the form of a contract.
An intangible asset is recognised when:
• it is probable that the expected future
economic benefits or service potential
that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the entity; and
• the cost or fair value of the asset can be
measured reliably.
The entity assesses the probability of
expected future economic benefits or service
potential using reasonable and supportable
assumptions that represent management’s
best estimate of the set of economic
conditions that will exist over the useful life
of the asset.
Where an intangible asset is acquired
through a non-exchange transaction, its
initial cost at the date of acquisition is
measured at its fair value as at that date.
Intangible assets are carried at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses.
An intangible asset is regarded as having
an indefinite useful life when, based on all
relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit
to the period over which the asset is expected
to generate net cash inflows or service
potential. Amortisation is not provided for
these intangible assets, but they are tested
for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that the asset may be
impaired. For all other intangible assets
amortisation is provided on a straight line
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basis over their useful life.
The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for intangible assets
are reviewed at each reporting date.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible
asset with a finite useful life after it was
classified as indefinite is an indicator that
the asset may be impaired. As a result the
asset is tested for impairment and the
remaining carrying amount is amortised over
its useful life.
Amortisation is provided to write down the
intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to
their residual values as follows:
Item				Useful life
Computer software, other 2 years
Assets under construction will be amortised
when brought into use.
1.5 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that
gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or a residual interest of
another entity.
The amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability is the amount at which
the financial asset or financial liability
is measured at initial recognition minus
principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between
that initial amount and the maturity amount,
and minus any reduction (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for
impairment or uncollectibility.
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a
financial instrument will cause a financial
loss for the other party by failing to discharge
an obligation.
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Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates.
Derecognition is the removal of a previously
recognised financial asset or financial
liability from an entity’s statement of
financial position.
A derivative is a financial instrument or
other contract with all three of the following
characteristics:
• Its value changes in response to the
change in a specified interest rate,
financial instrument price, commodity
price, foreign exchange rate, index of
prices or rates, credit rating or credit
index, or other variable, provided in the
case of a non-financial variable that
the variable is not specific to a party
to the contract (sometimes called the
‘underlying’).
• It requires no initial net investment or
an initial net investment that is smaller
than would be required for other types
of contracts that would be expected to
have a similar response to changes in
market factors.
• It is settled at a future date.
The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or a financial liability (or group of
financial assets or financial liabilities) and
of allocating the interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, an
entity shall estimate cash flows considering
all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, call
and similar options) but shall not consider
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future credit losses. The calculation includes
all fees and points paid or received between
parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate (see
the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from
Exchange Transactions), transaction costs,
and all other premiums or discounts. There
is a presumption that the cash flows and the
expected life of a group of similar financial
instruments can be estimated reliably.
However, in those rare cases when it is not
possible to reliably estimate the cash flows
or the expected life of a financial instrument
(or group of financial instruments), the
entity shall use the contractual cash
flows over the full contractual term of the
financial instrument (or group of financial
instruments).
Fair value is the amount for which an asset
could be exchanged, or a liability settled,
between knowledgeable willing parties in an
arm’s length transaction.
A financial asset is:
• cash;
• a residual interest of another entity; or
• a contractual right to:
- receive cash or another financial asset
from another entity; or
- exchange financial assets or financial
liabilities with another entity under
conditions that are potentially
favourable to the entity.
A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance
with the original or modified terms of a debt
instrument.
A financial liability is any liability that is a
contractual obligation to:
• deliver cash or another financial asset
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•

to another entity; or
exchange financial assets or financial
liabilities under conditions that are
potentially unfavourable to the entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates.
Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an
entity in the event of difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
or another financial asset.
Loans payable are financial liabilities, other
than short-term payables on normal credit
terms.
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises three types
of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk.
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices (other than those arising from interest
rate risk or currency risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to
the individual financial instrument or its
issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market.
A financial asset is past due when a
counterparty has failed to make a payment
when contractually due.
A residual interest is any contract that
manifests an interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. A residual
interest includes contributions from owners,
which may be shown as:
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•
•

•

equity instruments or similar forms of
unitised capital;
a formal designation of a transfer of
resources (or a class of such transfers)
by the parties to the transaction as
forming part of an entity’s net assets,
either before the contribution occurs
or at the time of the contribution; or
a formal agreement, in relation to
the contribution, establishing or
increasing an existing financial interest
in the net assets of an entity.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
issue or disposal of a financial asset or
financial liability. An incremental cost is
one that would not have been incurred if the
entity had not acquired, issued or disposed
of the financial instrument.
Financial instruments at amortised cost
are non-derivative financial assets or nonderivative financial liabilities that have fixed
or determinable payments, excluding those
instruments that:
• the entity designates at fair value at
initial recognition; or
• are held for trading.
Financial instruments at cost are
investments in residual interests that do
not have a quoted market price in an active
market, and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured.
Financial instruments at fair value comprise
financial assets or financial liabilities that
are:
• derivatives;
• combined instruments that are
designated at fair value;
• instruments held for trading. A
financial instrument is held for trading
if:
- it is acquired or incurred principally
for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing it in the near-term; or
- on initial recognition it is part of
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a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed
together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of
short term profit-taking;
- non-derivative financial assets
or financial liabilities with fixed or
determinable payments that are
designated at fair value at initial
recognition; and
- financial instruments that do not
meet the definition of financial
instruments at amortised cost or
financial instruments at cost.
Classification
The entity has the following types of financial
assets (classes and category) as reflected
on the face of the statement of financial
position or in the notes thereto:
Class

Category

Trade and other
receivables

Financial asset measured at
amortised cost

Cash and cash
equivalents

Financial asset measured at
amortised cost

The entity has the following types of financial
liabilities (classes and category) as reflected
on the face of the statement of financial
position or in the notes thereto:
Class

Category

Trade and other
payables

Financial liability measured
at amortised cost

Projects and
bursaries payables

Financial liability measured
at amortised cost

Deferred grants
income

Financial liability measured
at amortised cost

1.6 Impairment of non-cash-generating
assets
Cash-generating assets are assets
managed with the objective of generating
a commercial return. An asset generates a
commercial return when it is deployed in a

National Arts Council of South Africa Annual Report 2018/19

manner consistent with that adopted by a
profit-oriented entity.
Non-cash-generating assets are assets other
than cash-generating assets.
Impairment is a loss in the future economic
benefits or service potential of an asset, over
and above the systematic recognition of the
loss of the asset’s future economic benefits
or service potential through depreciation
(amortisation).
Carrying amount is the amount at which
an asset is recognised in the statement
of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses thereon.
A cash-generating unit is the smallest
identifiable group of assets managed with the
objective of generating a commercial return
that generates cash inflows from continuing
use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets.
Costs of disposal are incremental costs
directly attributable to the disposal of an
asset, excluding finance costs and income tax
expense.
Depreciation (Amortisation) is the
systematic allocation of the depreciable
amount of an asset over its useful life.
Fair value less costs to sell is the amount
obtainable from the sale of an asset in
an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs
of disposal.
Recoverable service amount is the higher of
a non-cash-generating asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use. Useful life is
either:
a. the period of time over which an asset
is expected to be used by the entity; or
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b. the number of production or similar
units expected to be obtained from the
asset by the entity.
Identification
When the carrying amount of a non-cashgenerating asset exceeds its recoverable
service amount, it is impaired.
The entity assesses at each reporting date
whether there is any indication that a noncash-generating asset may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, the entity
estimates the recoverable service amount of
the asset.
Recognition and measurement
If the recoverable service amount of a noncash-generating asset is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable service amount.
This reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cashgenerating asset is treated as a revaluation
decrease.
When the amount estimated for an
impairment loss is greater than the carrying
amount of the non-cash-generating asset
to which it relates, the entity recognises
a liability only to the extent that is a
requirement in the Standards of GRAP.
After the recognition of an impairment loss,
the depreciation (amortisation) charge for
the non-cash-generating asset is adjusted
in future periods to allocate the noncash-generating asset’s revised carrying
amount, less its residual value (if any), on
a systematic basis over its remaining useful
life.
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The entity assess at each reporting date
whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss recognised in prior periods
for a non-cash-generating asset may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If any
such indication exists, the entity estimates
the recoverable service amount of that asset.
An impairment loss recognised in prior
periods for a non-cash-generating asset is
reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable service amount since the
last impairment loss was recognised. The
carrying amount of the asset is increased
to its recoverable service amount. The
increase is a reversal of an impairment loss.
The increased carrying amount of an asset
attributable to a reversal of an impairment
loss does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net
of depreciation or amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss for a
non-cash-generating asset is recognised
immediately in surplus or deficit. Any
reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued
non-cash-generating asset is treated as a
revaluation increase.
After a reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised, the depreciation (amortisation)
charge for the non-cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the
non-cash-generating asset’s revised carrying
amount, less its residual value (if any), on a
systematic basis over its remaining useful
life.
1.7 Employee benefits
Employee benefits are all forms of
consideration given by an entity in exchange
for service rendered by employees.
A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance
policy issued by an insurer that is not a
related party (as defined in the Standard of
GRAP on Related Party Disclosures) of the
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reporting entity, if the proceeds of the policy
can be used only to pay or fund employee
benefits under a defined benefit plan and are
not available to the reporting entity’s own
creditors (even in liquidation) and cannot be
paid to the reporting entity, unless either:
• the proceeds represent surplus assets
that are not needed for the policy to
meet all the related employee benefit
obligations; or
• the proceeds are returned to the
reporting entity to reimburse it for
employee benefits already paid.
• Termination benefits are employee
benefits payable as a result of either:
• an entity’s decision to terminate an
employee’s employment before the
normal retirement date; or
• an employee’s decision to accept
voluntary redundancy in exchange for
those benefits.
Other long-term employee benefits are
employee benefits (other than postemployment benefits and termination
benefits) that are not due to be settled within
twelve months after the end of the period
in which the employees render the related
service.
Vested employee benefits are employee
benefits that are not conditional on future
employment.
Composite social security programmes
are established by legislation and operate
as multi-employer plans to provide postemployment benefits as well as to provide
benefits that are not consideration in
exchange for service rendered by employees.
A constructive obligation is an obligation
that derives from an entity’s actions where
by an established pattern of past practice,
published policies or a sufficiently specific
current statement, the entity has indicated
to other parties that it will accept certain
responsibilities and as a result, the entity
has created a valid expectation on the part
of those other parties that it will discharge
National Arts Council of South Africa Annual Report 2018/19

those responsibilities.
Short-term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits)
that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service.
Short-term employee benefits include items
such as:
• wages, salaries and social security
contributions;
• short-term compensated absences
(such as paid annual leave and paid
sick leave) where the compensation
for the absences is due to be settled
within twelve months after the end
of the reporting period in which the
employees render the related employee
service;
• bonus, incentive and performance
related payments payable within twelve
months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render
the related service; and
When an employee has rendered service
to the entity during a reporting period, the
entity recognise the undiscounted amount of
short-term employee benefits expected to be
paid in exchange for that service:
• as a liability (accrued expense), after
deducting any amount already paid. If
the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benefits,
the entity recognise that excess as
an asset (prepaid expense) to the
extent that the prepayment will lead
to, for example, a reduction in future
payments or a cash refund; and
• as an expense, unless another Standard
requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefits in the cost of an asset.
The expected cost of compensated
absences is recognised as an expense as the
employees render services that increase
their entitlement or, in the case of nonaccumulating absences, when the absence
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occurs. The entity measure the expected cost
of accumulating compensated absences as
the additional amount that the entity expects
to pay as a result of the unused entitlement
that has accumulated at the reporting date.
The entity recognise the expected cost of
bonus, incentive and performance related
payments when the entity has a present
legal or constructive obligation to make
such payments as a result of past events and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made. A present obligation exists when the
entity has no realistic alternative but to make
the payments.
1.8 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:
• the entity has a present obligation as a
result of a past event;
• it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic
benefits or service potential will be
required to settle the obligation; and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the
obligation.
The amount of a provision is the best
estimate of the expenditure expected to be
required to settle the present obligation at
the reporting date.
Where the effect of time value of money is
material, the amount of a provision is the
present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation.
The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability.
Where some or all of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is expected
to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is recognised when, and
only when, it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received if the entity
settles the obligation. The reimbursement
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is treated as a separate asset. The amount
recognised for the reimbursement does not
exceed the amount of the provision.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is no
longer probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service
potential will be required, to settle the
obligation.
Where discounting is used, the carrying
amount of a provision increases in each
period to reflect the passage of time. This
increase is recognised as an interest expense.
A provision is used only for expenditures
for which the provision was originally
recognised.
Provisions are not recognised for future
operating deficits.
If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the
present obligation (net of recoveries) under
the contract is recognised and measured as a
provision.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
are not recognised. Contingencies are
disclosed in note .
A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance
with the original or modified terms of a debt
instrument.
Loan commitment is a firm commitment to
provide credit under pre-specified terms and
conditions.

the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.
Determining whether an outflow of
resources is probable in relation to financial
guarantees requires judgement. Indications
that an outflow of resources may be probable
are:
• financial difficulty of the debtor;
• defaults or delinquencies in interest
and capital repayments by the debtor;
• breaches of the terms of the debt
instrument that result in it being
payable earlier than the agreed term
and the ability of the debtor to settle
its obligation on the amended terms;
and
• a decline in prevailing economic
circumstances (e.g. high interest rates,
inflation and unemployment) that
impact on the ability of entities to
repay their obligations.
Where a fee is received by the entity for
issuing a financial guarantee and/or where
a fee is charged on loan commitments,
it is considered in determining the best
estimate of the amount required to settle
the obligation at reporting date. Where a fee
is charged and the entity considers that an
outflow of economic resources is probable,
an entity recognises the obligation at the
higher of:
• the amount determined using in the
Standard of GRAP on Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and
• the amount of the fee initially
recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the Standard of
GRAP on Revenue from Exchange
Transactions.
1.9 Revenue from exchange transactions

The entity recognises a provision for
financial guarantees and loan commitments
when it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits and
service potential will be required to settle
136

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic
benefits or service potential during the
reporting period when those inflows result in
an increase in net assets, other than increases
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relating to contributions from owners.
An exchange transaction is one in which
the entity receives assets or services, or has
liabilities extinguished, and directly gives
approximately equal value (primarily in the
form of goods, services or use of assets) to
the other party in exchange.
Fair value is the amount for which an asset
could be exchanged, or a liability settled,
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an
arm’s length transaction.
Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of
trade discounts and volume rebates.
1.10 Revenue from non-exchange
transactions
Non-exchange transactions are defined as
transactions where the entity receives value
from another entity without directly giving
approximately equal value in exchange.
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic
benefits or service potential during the
reporting period when those inflows result in
an increase in net assets, other than increases
relating to contributions from owners.
Fair value is the amount for which an asset
could be exchanged, or a liability settled,
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an
arm’s length transaction.
Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of
trade discounts and volume rebates.
Government grants
Government grants are recognised as
revenue when:
• it is probable that the economic
benefits or service potential associated
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•
•

with the transaction will flow to the
entity,
the amount of the revenue can be
measured reliably, and
to the extent that there has been
compliance with any restrictions
associated with the grant.

The entity assesses the degree of certainty
attached to the flow of future economic
benefits or service potential on the basis
of the available evidence. Certain grants
payable by one level of government to
another are subject to the availability of
funds. Revenue from these grants is only
recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow
to the entity. An announcement at the
beginning of a financial year that grants
may be available for qualifying entities in
accordance with an agreed programme may
not be sufficient evidence of the probability
of the flow. Revenue is then only recognised
once evidence of the probability of the flow
becomes available.
Restrictions on government grants may
result in such revenue being recognised
on a time proportion basis. Where there is
no restriction on the period, such revenue
is recognised on receipt or when the Act
becomes effective, which-ever is earlier.
When government remit grants on a reimbursement basis, revenue is recognised
when the qualifying expense has been
incurred and to the extent that any other
restrictions have been complied with.
Conditional grants and receipts
Revenue received from conditional grants
and funding are recognised as revenue to
the extent that the National Arts Council of
South Africa has complied with any of the
criteria, conditions or obligations embodied
in the agreement. To the extent that the
criteria, conditions or obligations have not
been met, a deferred grant income liability is
recognised.
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1.11 Investment income
Investment income is recognised on a timeproportion basis using the effective interest
method.

register. In such an instance, no further
action is also required with the exception
of updating the note to the financial
statements.
1.13 Irregular expenditure (continued)

1.12 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means
expenditure which was made in vain and
would have been avoided had reasonable care
been exercised.
All expenditure relating to fruitless and
wasteful expenditure is recognised as
an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure
was incurred. The expenditure is classified in
accordance with the nature of the expense,
and where recovered, it is subsequently
accounted for as revenue in the statement of
financial performance.
1.13 Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure as defined in section
1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than
unauthorised expenditure, incurred in
contravention of or that is not in accordance
with a requirement of any applicable
legislation, including a. this Act; or
b. the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No.
86 of 1968), or any regulations made in
terms of the Act; or
c. any provincial legislation providing
for procurement procedures in that
provincial government.
National Treasury practice note no. 4 of
2008/2009 which was issued in terms of
sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires
the following (effective from 1 April 2008):
Irregular expenditure that was incurred
and identified during the current financial
and which was condoned before year
end and/or before finalisation of the
financial statements must also be recorded
appropriately in the irregular expenditure
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Irregular expenditure that was incurred and
identified during the current financial year
and for which condonement is being awaited
at year end must be recorded in the irregular
expenditure register. No further action is
required with the exception of updating the
note to the financial statements.
Where irregular expenditure was incurred
in the previous financial year and is only
condoned in the following financial year,
the register and the disclosure note to the
financial statements must be updated with
the amount condoned.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred
and identified during the current financial
year and which was not condoned by the
National Treasury or the relevant authority
must be recorded appropriately in the
irregular expenditure register. If liability for
the irregular expenditure can be attributed
to a person, a debt account must be created
if such a person is liable in law. Immediate
steps must thereafter be taken to recover
the amount from the person concerned.
If recovery is not possible, the accounting
officer or accounting authority may write off
the amount as debt impairment and disclose
such in the relevant note to the financial
statements. The irregular expenditure
register must also be updated accordingly.
If the irregular expenditure has not been
condoned and no person is liable in law,
the expenditure related thereto must
remain against the relevant programme/
expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the
note to the financial statements and updated
accordingly in the irregular expenditure
register.
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1.14 Budget information
Entity is typically subject to budgetary limits
in the form of appropriations or budget
authorisations (or equivalent), which is
given effect through authorising legislation,
appropriation or similar.
The entity shall provide information
whether resources were obtained and used in
accordance with legally adopted budget for
general purpose financial reporting.
The unaudited annual financial statements
and the budget are not on the same basis of
accounting. A comparison with the budgeted
amounts for the reporting period has been
included in the Statement of comparison of
budget and actual amounts.
1.15 Related parties
The entity operates in an economic sector
currently dominated by entities directly
or indirectly owned by the South African
Government. As a consequence of the
constitutional independence of the three
spheres of government in South Africa,
only entities within the national sphere of
government are considered to be related
parties.
Management are those persons responsible
for planning, directing and controlling
the activities of the entity, including those
charged with the governance of the entity
in accordance with legislation, in instances
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where they are required to perform such
functions.
Close members of the family of a person
are considered to be those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that management in their
dealings with the entity.
1.16 Events after reporting date
Events after reporting date are those events,
both favourable and unfavourable, that
occur between the reporting date and the
date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue. Two types of events can
be identified:
• those that provide evidence of
conditions that existed at the reporting
date (adjusting events after the
reporting date); and
• those that are indicative of conditions
that arose after the reporting date
(non-adjusting events after the
reporting date).
The entity adjusts the amount recognised in
the financial statements to reflect adjusting
events after the reporting date once the event
occurrs.
The entity discloses the nature of the event
and an estimate of its financial effect or a
statement that such estimate cannot be
made in respect of all material non-adjusting
events, where non-disclosure could influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE AUDITED
ANNUAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
2. Property, plant and equipment
2019

2018

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying
value

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying
value

Land
Buildings

1,907,021
5,750,512

(757,532)

1,907,021
4,992,980

2,254,156
6,814,887

(619,043)

2,254,156
6,195,844

Furniture and
fixtures
Motor vehicles

922,628

(230,258)

692,370

556,718

(101,897)

454,821

151,042

(110,764)

40,278

151,042

(80,556)

70,486

Office equipment

828,390

(436,511)

391,879

792,156

(298,150)

494,006

Computer
equipment
Paintings

1,027,867

(783,341)

244,526

1,136,296

(627,036)

509,260

52,270

-

52,270

52,270

-

52,270

Photocopiers

645,176

(376,353)

268,823

645,176

(247,318)

397,858

Banners

95,427

(13,277)

82,150

40,770

(40,770)

-

Digital equipment

19,555

(19,555)

-

25,050

(19,652)

5,398

Total

11,399,888

(2,727,591)

8,672,297

12,468,521

(2,034,422)

10,434,099
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NOTES TO THE AUDITED
ANNUAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2019
Opening
balance

Land
Buildings

Additions

Disposals

Revaluations

Depreciation

Total

2,254,156
6,195,844

-

-

(347,135)
(1,055,977)

(146,887)

1,907,021
4,992,980

Furniture and
fixtures
Motor vehicles

454,821

365,910

-

-

(128,361)

692,370

70,486

-

-

-

(30,208)

40,278

Office equipment

494,006

48,041

-

-

(150,168)

391,879

Computer
equipment
Paintings

509,260

54,724

(562)

-

(318,896)

244,526

52,270

-

-

-

-

52,270

Photocopiers

397,858

-

-

-

(129,035)

268,823

-

95,427

-

-

(13,277)

82,150

5,398

-

-

-

(5,398)

-

10,434,099

564,102

(562)

(1,403,112)

(922,230)

8,672,297

Depreciation

Total

Banners
Digital equipment

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2018
Opening
balance

Additions

Disposals

Revaluations

Land
Buildings

1,611,895
4,382,117

-

-

642,261
1,926,781

(113,054)

2,254,156
6,195,844

Furniture and
fixtures
Motor vehicles

107,048

421,114

-

-

(73,341)

454,821

100,695

-

-

-

(30,209)

70,486

Office equipment

591,626

56,537

-

-

(154,157)

494,006

Computer
equipment
Paintings

711,734

128,028

(16,266)

-

(314,236)

509,260

52,270

-

-

-

-

52,270

Photocopiers

526,894

-

-

-

(129,036)

397,858

Banners

6,868

-

-

-

(6,868)

-

Digital equipment

19,370

-

(5,378)

-

(8,594)

5,398

8,110,517

605,679

(21,644)

2,569,042

(829,495)

10,434,099

Property, plant and equipment disposed in the 2018/19 financial year includes fully depreciated items (banners) that
had a carrying amount of R nil at the time of disposal.
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NOTES TO THE AUDITED
ANNUAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
2. Property, plant and equipment
(continued) Change in estimate: Useful
life of assets review
A change in the estimated useful life
of assets in computer equipment and
office equipment, resulted in a change in
depreciation for the year. NAC discloses the
nature and the amount resulting from the
change in an accounting estimate that has an
effect in the current period and is expected
to have an effect in future.This change in
estimate is applied prospectively.
Revaluations/(Impairment)
Land and buildings (1,403,113) 2,569,042
The effective date of the revaluations was

31 March 2019. The revaluations were
performed by an independent valuer, Mr
Goosen, professional valuer of Corporate
Valuation. Mr Goosen is not connected to the
National Arts Council of South Africa.
Key unobservable inputs used in the
valuation model included estimated Lettable
Area (1,744 square metres), and Vacancy
Rate (10%). A capitalisation rate of 12.5% was
applied based on comparable, observable
sales and capitalisation rates for offices in
the Johannesburg area, adjusted for the
condition and locality of the NAC property,
and data from other proprietary sources.
The estimated value of the property
decreased from the previous reporting
period.

Property, plant and equipment fully depreciated and still in
use (Gross carrying amount)
Banners

-

40,770

Office equipment

78,250

70,503

Computer equipment

90,019

135,220

168,269

246,493

Repairs and maintenance		
During the 2018/19 financial year, repairs and maintenance cost amounted to R544
619 (2018: R237 447).
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3. Intangible assets
2019

Computer
software

2018

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying
value

Cost /
Valuation

Accumulated
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

Carrying
value

806,165

(537,443)

268,722

806,165

(134,361)

671,804

Opening
balance

Amortisation

Total

671,804

(403,082)

268,722

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2019

Computer
software

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2018

Computer
software
Intangible
assets under
development

Opening
balance

Additions

Transfers

Amortisation

Total

101,070

588,759

217,405

(235,430)

671,804

217,405

-

(217,405)

-

-

318,475

588,759

-

(235,430)

671,804

2019

2018

41,578
4,122
6,477
58,901
111,078

152,947
21,609
6,477
151,945
332,978

4. Trade and other receivables
Trade debtors
Staff advances
Deposits
Interest receivable

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired		
Trade and other receivables which are less than 90 days past due are not considered to be impaired. At 31
March 2019, receivables amounting to R 17,930 (2018: R 134,686) were past due but not impaired. Amounts
more than 90 days past due are disclosed in the age analysis of accounts receivable below.
The NAC has not provided for these trade receivables as there has been no significant change in their credit
quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable.
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Age Analysis of Accounts Receivable - 2019
Trade debtors

Current

30 days

60 days

90 days

120 days

Total

23,648

-

-

-

17,930

41,578

Age Analysis of Accounts Receivable - 2018
Trade debtors

Current

30 days

60 days

90 days

120 days

Total

18,261

-

-

-

134,686

152,947

5,000
658,995
42,038,043
42,702,038

5,000
6,531,880
27,653,727
34,190,607

5,000
538,023
(68)
42,038,043
121,040
42,702,038

5,000
6,410,483
(68)
27,653,727
121,465
34,190,607

2019

2018

118,060
563,675
313,126
122,663
1,117,524

200,958
483,919
283,616
101,353
1,069,846

5. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand
Cash at Bank - Current Account
Cash at Bank - Call Account

Analysis of Bank Accounts
NAC- Petty Cash
NAC- Current Account
NAC Downtown Studios- Current Account
NAC- Call Account
Bank Account UNESCO

6. Trade and other payables
Trade payables
Accrued expenses
Accrued 13th Cheque
Accrued Medical Aid

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on a 30 day term.		
An accrual for leave is recognised for leave due to employees at year end and calculated using the BCEA
rates. The accrual is expected to be realised within the subsequent financial year when the employees utilise
the leave or resign.
Age analysis of trade payables - 2019
Trade payables

Current

30 days

60 days

90 days

120 days

Total

118,060

-

-

-

-

118,060

Age analysis of trade payables - 2018
Trade payables
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Current

30 days

60 days

90 days

120 days

Total

105,301

94,540

-

-

1,117

200,958
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7. Deferred Grant Income
Movement during the year
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Income received from DAC
Less: DAC Capital Works
Balance at the end of the year

226,489
1,800,000
(536,549)
1,489,940

843,417
(616,928)
226,489

8. Provisions - Reconciliation of provisions - 2019

Leave pay
Performance bonus

Opening Balance as
at 01 April 2018

Provisions
Raised

Amounts
used

Unused Amounts
Reversed

Closing Balance as
at 31 March 2019

594,048
1,601,981
2,196,029

216,861
1,696,560
1,913,421

(181,335)
(181,335)

(901,962)
(901,962)

629,574
2,396,579
3,026,153

Opening Balance as
at 01 April 2018

Provisions
Raised

Amounts
used

Unused Amounts
Reversed

Closing Balance as
at 31 March 2019

533,519
701,981
1,235,500

240,704
1,316,191
1,556,895

(180,175)
(416,191)
(596,366)

-

594,048
1,601,981
2,196,029

Reconciliation of provisions - 2018

Leave pay
Performance bonus

Accrued leave pay” represents management’s best estimate of the NAC’s liability for leave pay. The estimate incorporates staff
ratings and reversals of a portion of the liabilities attributable to the prior year.
“Performance bonus” represents management’s best estimate of the NAC’s liability for staff bonuses.The provision raised estimates
the amount of the provision based on the anticipated performance of employees. This anticipated performance is based on
experience with the employees of the NAC, taking into account performance trends in the prior periods.

9. Projects and Bursaries Payable
Projects and bursary expenditure is a core business of the National Arts Council of South Africa. In the prior periods, the National
Arts Council recognised the approved funding amounts and related liability after the approval of the projects. Subsequent payments
were processed through the liability.
In the year under review, only those projects and bursaries that met the criteria of a present obligation are recognised.
Projects and Bursaries Payable
Opening Balance
Net Movement

(26,219,099)
(8,373,046)
(34,592,145)

(27,437,460)
1,218,361
(26,219,099)

6,992,103
(1,403,113)
5,588,990

4,423,061
2,569,042
6,992,103

10. Revaluation reserve
Opening Balance
Change during the year
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11. Other income
Insurance claims on cellphones and computer equipment

15,769

38,015

1,842,649

1,856,456

15,769
1,842,649
110,276,656
112,135,074

38,015
1,856,456
106,868,673
108,763,144

12. Investment income - Interest revenue
Bank
13. Revenue
Other income
Interest received - investment
Government grants received - NAC

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services are as follows:
Other income
Interest received - investment

15,769
1,842,649
1,858,418

38,015
1,856,456
1,894,471

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as follows:
Department of Arts and Culture - Grant received NAC

110,276,656

106,868,673

14. Employee related costs
Basic salary
Medical aid - company contributions
Unemployment Insurance Fund (UIF)
Workers Compensation Assistance (WCA)
Leave pay
Provident fund
Pension plans
Overtime payments
Housing benefits and allowances
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2019

2018

19,062,764
1,381,256
106,524
87,766
110,343
1,357,526
658,022
95,520
174,774
23,034,495

18,099,923
1,445,594
110,852
3,813
253,892
1,253,156
873,564
59,545
159,539
22,259,878
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15. Operating expenses
Auditors' fees (External)
Auditors' fees (Internal)
Bank charges
Board Secretariat services
Cleaning
Conference
Consulting fees
Expense reimbursements
Fuel and oil
Insurance
Interest paid
IT expenses
Legal expenses
Marketing
Minor assets expense
Motor vehicle expenses
Office expenses
Organisational review
Postage and courier
Printing and stationery
Recruitment costs
Remuneration - Council and Panel
Repairs and maintenance
Security
Staff training
Staff welfare
Subscriptions and membership fees
Telephone and fax
Printer costs
Travel and accommodation - Board
Travel and accommodation - Staff
Venue expenses
Water and Electricity

795,206
323,641
38,807
550,708
76,990
527,133
10,202
34,798
214,530
1,384
1,133,050
1,387,990
1,207,828
110,799
282,428
100,735
468,687
13,445
297,250
67,617
1,313,894
544,619
330,331
331,519
5,795
24,870
485,629
80,765
817,247
455,906
355,193
457,342
12,846,338

886,714
315,931
35,186
422,883
76,793
1,322
572,824
25,459
18,130
203,463
1,957
801,938
132,756
1,712,122
11,047
225,718
76,829
20,456
443,255
42,933
1,844,430
237,448
328,620
157,270
2,368
146,413
578,584
908,417
409,001
189,425
548,330
11,378,022

2019

2018

15,760,622
21,583,000
23,180,000
11,170,784
6,220,480
77,914,886

8,414,772
22,146,000
31,664,708
10,586,232
5,666,717
78,478,429

16. Project and Bursary Expenses
Projects
Orchestras
Organisational Support Funding (Company Funding)
Individuals
Bursaries

The project costs comprise of ring-fenced money for Orchestras.
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17. Cash generated from (used in) operations
2019

2018

(2,986,519)

(4,439,254)

1,325,312
562
830,124

1,064,925
21,144
960,529

221,900
47,657
1,263,451
8,373,046
9,075,533

14,122
(175,525)
(616,928)
(1,218,361)
(4,389,348)

Not yet contracted for and authorised by Council

2019

2018

Expired Projects-2015
Expired Flagship projects- 2017
Expired Projects- 2016

-

638,920
673,511
1,209,370

RMB Primary Schools Research
Research and Database

270,000
2,000,000
2,270,000

270,000
2,000,000
4,791,801

1,368,900

226,489

2019

2018

2,270,000
1,368,900
121,040

4,791,801
226,489
121,465

3,759,940

5,139,755

Deficit
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Disposal of assets
Movements in provisions
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Deferred grant income
Projects and bursaries payable
18. Commitments
Not yet contracted for and authorised by Council

Projects Approved by DAC
NAC Health and Safety Building Improvement
Total capital commitments

Not yet contracted for and authorised by council
Projects - Approved by DAC
UNESCO

The committed funds were approved by Council but not yet contracted. This is due to non-compliance of mandatory documents
required and lack of human resource capacity to deliver on the projects.
19. Related parties
Relationships
Controlling entity						Department of Arts and Culture
Public entity under common control				National Heritage Council
Council members - Non-executive				Refer to note 20
Members of key management				
Refer to note 20
Related party transactions
Amount paid to (received from) related and former related parties
Department of Arts and Culture
National Heritage Council
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(110,276,656)
-

(106,868,673)
162,000
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20. Emoluments
Executive 2019

Chief Executive Officer*
Interim Chief Executive Officer (25
September 2018 to 31 January 2019)
Chief Financial Officer
Arts Development Manager
Finance Manager
IT Manager
Communications & Marketing Specialist
Council secretary (1 April 2018 to 12 June
2018)
HR Manager

Basic Salary

Salary Structure13th Cheque

Travel
Allowance

Other
benefits

Total*

1,476,272
458,020

-

344,540

2,700

1,820,812
460,720

1,271,042
1,121,034
899,862
851,167
800,253
155,055

93,974
87,703
55,514
28,100

-

10,536
69,459

1,365,016
1,219,273
955,376
851,167
800,253
252,614

834,960
7,867,665

65,284
330,575

344,540

82,695

900,244
8,625,475

*The Chief Executive Officer Was On Special Leave From 1 September 2018, Which Remained In Effect As At 31 March
2019.

Executive 2018
Basic Salary

Salary Structure13th Cheque

Performance
Bonus

Travel
Allowance

Other
benefits

Total*

Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer (1
April
2017 to 30 November 2017)
Chief Financial Officer
(Appointed 24 January
2018)
Arts Development Manager
Finance Manager
IT Manager
Communications &
Marketing
Specialist

1,381,348
1,018,607

120,914

163,312

344,540
-

72,010

1,725,888
1,374,843

227,688

-

-

-

-

227,688

1,027,849
941,778
802,988
736,980

87,703
-

109,588
71,901

-

10,536
-

1,235,676
941,778
802,988
808,881

Council Secretary
Project Manager in CEO’s
Office
HR Manager (1 April 2017
to 31
March 2018)
HR Manager (Appointed 24
January 2018)

796,555
355,376

-

-

-

10,406
21,920

806,961
377,296

440,000

-

717

-

22,760

463,477

149,223

-

-

-

-

149,223

7,878,392

208,617

345,518

344,540

137,632

8,914,699

*The total remuneration is the cost to company package to the National Arts Council.
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20. Emoluments (continued)
Non-executive - Council members 2019
Council

Other fees

Mr. Hartley Ngoato (Chairperson)

76,345

111,768

Ms. Jabu Dlamini (Deputy Chairperson)

-

-

Ms. Avril Joffe

45,509

9,280

Ms. Erica Elk

50,273

6,898

Adv. Nakedi Ribane

80,990

7,146

Mr. Michael Arendse

90,767

21,190

Dr. Same Mdluli

54,788

2,382

Mr. Zolani Mkiva

23,821

2,382

Mr. Phumzile Apleni

64,565

11,662

Mr. Masengana Mabuza

55,161

9,156

Ms. Thokozile Nogabe

71,587

7,022

Ms. Thandiwe Profit-Mclean (Resigned December 2018)

28,834

4,516

Mr. Bongani Mavuso

23,822

2,382

Prof. Sekgothe Mokgoatsana

64,565

6,898

Mr. Edmund Mhlongo

21,439

-

Ms. Mandie Van Der Spuy

52,405

4,764

Mr. Pheni Ngove

4,764

-

Ms. Maleshini Naidoo

26,203

2,382

Mr. Phumlani Manzi

9,528

-

Mr. Johane Johannes Chisekula

9,528

-

854,894

209,828

Other fees include sub-committee meeting fees, workshops and other meetings.		
Ms. Thandiwe Profit-Mclean resigned in December 2018 and Mr. Phumzile Apleni resigned on the 18 March
2019. Mr. Johane Johannes Chisekula was appointed on 20 February 2019.
Mr. Phumlani Manzi was appointed on 12 November 2018. Mr. Dennis Sithole was appointed on 22 November
2018.
Council members are remunerated in line with Treasury Guidelines.
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20. Emoluments (continued)
Non-executive - Council members 2018
Council

Other fees

Mr. Hartley Ngoato (Chairperson)

146,550

236,546

Ms. Jabu Dlamini (Deputy Chairperson)

94,778

46,505

Ms. Avril Joffe

60,223

51,832

Ms. Erica Elk

83,048

32,100

Adv. Nakedi Ribane

57,629

41,486

Mr. Michael Arendse

62,400

43,390

Dr. Same Mdluli

37,302

25,916

Mr. Zolani Mkiva

23,755

21,400

Mr. Phumzile Apleni

51,367

14,980

Mr. Masengana Mabuza

75,258

36,380

Ms. Thokozile Nogabe

36,613

38,638

Ms. Thandiwe Profit-Mclean

58,329

43,272

Ms. Mmathebe Moja

12,381

17,120

Mr. Bongani Mavuso

48,944

39,110

Prof. Sekgothe Mokgoatsana

65,120

32,100

Mr. Edmund Mhlongo

37,477

25,680

Ms. Mandie Van Der Spuy

63,045

34,594

Mr. Pheni Ngove

34,661

21,400

Ms. Maleshini Naidoo

9,524

9,032

1,058,404

811,481
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20. Emoluments (continued)
Non executive - Panel members
In terms of the National Arts Council Act, the Council may establish an advisory panel for every field of the arts
it deems necessary. Membership of each advisory panel consists of persons who have achieved distinction or
have special knowledge or experience in the field of the arts in question, and who are not members of the Council. The advisory panels advise the Council on the merits of applications for grants and on any matter relating to
the field of the arts for which they were appointed.

2019
Remuneration

Ms Carol Brown

25,354

Ms Georgina Thompson

25,353

Mr Kingdom Moshounyane

25,354

Mr Trevor Mokeyane

25,354

Mr Arthur Zitha

38,030

Mr Thando Mgqolozana

8,451

Mr Zothani Vilakazi

54,933

Mr Fhumulani Kenneth Mathiva

29,579

Mr Theo Lawrence

33,805

Mr Njabulo Mkhondo

33,805

Mr Papama Mnqadi

29,579

Dr Conroy Cupido

29,579

Ms Busisiwe Sikhonde

42,256

Mr Piet Masilela

4,226

Ms Celeste Wannenburg

42,256

Mr Tsietsi Mohapi

42,256

Mr Njabulo Sifiso Mthimkulu

33,805

Mr Themba Sweetbirth Luthuli

33,805

Ms Smay Kearabilwe Malao

33,805

Ms Moleboheng Mokomele

33,805
625,390

2018
Remuneration
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Mr. Michael Arendse

26,548

Ms. Igor Dlamini

12,756

Ms. Nikki Froneman

12,677

Ms. Lizelle Julie

12,723

Mr. Londiwe Langa

12,677

Mr. Jacob Leboko

21,128

Mr. Tebogo Maahlamela

62,738

Mr. Othusitse Mabilo

12,677

Mr. Nthabiseng Makhene

21,707
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Ms. Nomsa Mdlalose

46,746

Mr. Wandile Mgcodo

31,863

Mr. Lionel Mkhwanazi

16,902

Ms. Mamela Nyamza

12,941

Mr. Pj Sabbagha

18,552

Mr. Menzi Thango

40,175

Ms. Marie-Heleen Coetzee

12,677

Mr. Monwabisi Grootboom

12,941

Dr. Same Mdluli

25,354

Ms. Tracey Rose

8,451

Ms. Bulelwa Bam

21,352

Mr. Molele Mohlatlego

38,460

Mr. Emmenis Coleen

9,606
491,651

Audit and Risk Committee members 2019
Emoluments

Ms. Avril Joffe (Chairperson)*

95,122

Ms Maleshini Naidoo*

40,712

Mr. Sikhuthali Nyangintsimbi - External Audit Committee Member***

56,907

Mr. Nchoke Raphela - External Audit Committee Member

35,478

Ms Charlene Louw - External Audit Committee Member **

20,952
249,171

2018
Emoluments

Ms. Avril Joffe (Chairperson)*

21,128

Ms Maleshini Naidoo*

12,889

Ms. Mmathebe Moja*

21,128

Mr. Sikhuthali Nyangintsimbi - External Audit Committee Member

8,451

Mr. Nchoke Raphela - External Audit Committee Member

21,355
84,951

*Some members of the Audit and Risk Committee members are also members of the Council. Their
remuneration in their capacity as council members is disclosed under “Non executive - Council members”
(above).
** Ms Charlene Louw was appointed as an External Audit Committee Member on the 19th of October 2018
*** Mr Sikhuthali Nyangintsimbi represented ARC at a Council meeting on the 17th of August 2018.
Audit Committee members have also attended a Public Protector meeting held on the 31st of January 2019
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21. Irregular expenditure
Opening balance
Add: Irregular Expenditure - incurred in current year
Add: Irregular Expenditure - incurred in prior year but identified in current year
Less: Irregular expenditure written off
Less: Irregular expenditure recovered
Less: Irregular expenditure condoned

2019

2018

27,177,270
27,177,270

24,912,501
511,720
1,753,049
27,177,270

2019

2018

27,177,270
27,177,270

511,720
26,665,550
27,177,270

Analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age classification
Current year
Prior years

Expenditure relating to operating expenses exceeded the budget for the year.		
The closing balance for irregular expenditure includes items inherited from prior years, the first of which was recorded in the
2009 financial year at R7 509 560. The amount further increased by R17 402 941 in the 2010-2014 financial years to R24 912
501. Investigation was concluded, and the relevant documentation submitted to National Treasury for condonement.

22. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure - Incident
During the financial year management discovered fruitless and wasteful expenditure in
the form of interest on late payments.

2019

2018

1,384

1,957

1,384

1,957

23. Going concern
We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2019, the
entity had accumulated surplus of R 5,939,383 and that the
entity’s total assets exceed its liabilities by R 11,528,373.
The unaudited annual financial statements have been
prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a
going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of
assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations

and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of
business.
The accumulated surplus of R 5,939,383 includes projects
contracted but not fully paid and projects approved by
Council but not contracted. The National Arts Council
submitted the request to National Treasury to retain the
surplus.

24. Risk management
Liquidity risk
The National Arts Council of South Africa manages liquidity through the management of working capital, capital
expenditure and cash flow and by variance reports between actual and budget items.
As at 31 March 2019
Trade and other payables

Interest Rate %
Interest free

Year 1
1,489,940

Year 1 - 5
-

Over 5 years
-

As at 31 March 2019
Trade and other payables

Interest Rate %
Interest free

Year 1
226,489

Year 1 - 5
-

Over 5 years
-
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Financial Instruments

2019

2018

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other Payables

42,702,038
111,078
1,117,524
43,930,640

34,190,607
332,978
1,069,846
35,593,431

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of economic loss should any of
NAC’s clients or market counterparties fail to fulfill
their contractual obligations.
Financial assets, which potentially subject the entity
to the risk of non-performance by counter parties
and thereby subjecting it to credit concentrations of
credit risk, consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, investments and accounts receivable.

ity.Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity
in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset.
Market risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash
equivalents and trade receivables. The entity
managed to limit its exposure by only dealing with
well-established financial institutions, approved
by the National Treasury. The entity’s exposure is
continuously monitored by the Accounting Author-

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk.

24. Risk management (continued)
Other price risk
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all
similar financial instruments traded in the market.
Related party transactions
Amount paid to (received from) related and former related parties

2019

Change in
investment

Upward
change

Downward
change

Cash and Cash equivalents

1%

384,894

(166,844)

2018

Change in
investment

Upward
change

Downward
change

Cash and Cash equivalents

1%

313,830

(25,340)

25. Comparative figures
Amounts presented as “Accrued leave pay” under trade and other payables were reclassified to provisions,
following management’s assessment of the nature of the liability. The reclassification resulted in an increase of
R 594,048 in the comparative figures for provisions, and a corresponding decrease in trade and other payables for
2018:
Certain line items that were presented under Operational Expenses (e.g. All panel related costs and costs
relating to monitoring and evaluation of projects) were reclassified to projects. The reclassification resulted
in an increase of R 1.2m in the comparative figures for projects & bursaries, and a corresponding decrease in
operating expenses for 2018.
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Contact us
Tel: +27 (0)87 700 0683
Fax: +27 (0)11 838 6363
General enquiries:
info@nac.org.za
Request online application link
via email: funding@nac.org.za
Physical Address
66 Margaret Mcingana Street
(cnr Gwigwi Mrwebi)
Johannesburg, South Africa
www.nac.org.za
RP286/2019
ISBN: 978-0-621-47763-4
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